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ALfREd HERBERT (iNdiA) LTd.

NOTicE

notiCe is herebY Given that the one hunDreD anD 

first annual General meetinG of the members of 

alfreD herbert (inDia) limiteD will be held on friday, 13th 

august, 2021 at 10:00 a.m. through video Conferencing 

(“vC”) / other audio visual means (“oavm”) to transact the 

following business:-

1. to receive, consider and adopt the audited (standalone 

and Consolidated) financial statements of the Company 

for the inancial year ended 31st March, 2021, together 
with the reports of the board of Directors and the 

auditors thereon; and 

2. to declare Dividend on equity shares for the financial 

Year 2020-21.

3. to appoint a Director in place of mr. h v lodha (Din: 

00394094), who retires by rotation and being eligible, 

offers himself for re-appointment.

 by order of the board of Directors

 for alfred herbert (india) limited 

 shobhana sethi

Date : 30th June, 2021 Chief Financial Oficer
place: Kolkata & Company secretary

NOTEs

1. Considering the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic, the 

ministry of Corporate affairs (“mCa”) has, vide its 

circular dated 13th January, 2021 read together with 

circulars dated 8th april, 2020, 13th april, 2020 and 5th 

may, 2020 (collectively referred to as “mCa Circulars”), 

permitted convening the annual General meeting 

(“aGm” / “meeting”) through video Conferencing 

(“vC”) or other audio visual means (“oavm”), without 

physical presence of the members at a common 

venue., further, the securities and exchange board of 

india vide its circular dated 12th may, 2020 and 15th 

January,2021(‘sebi circulars’) has also granted certain 

relaxations. in accordance with the mCa Circulars, 

sebi circulars, provisions of the Companies act, 2013 

(”the act”) and the securities and exchange board of 

india (listing obligations and Disclosure requirements) 

regulations, 2015 (“sebi listing regulations”), the aGm 

of the Company is being held through vC / oavm. the 

deemed venue for the aGm shall be the registered 

Ofice of the Company.

2. the register of members and the share transfer books 

of the Company will remain closed from saturday, 

7th august, 2021 to friday, 13th august, 2021 (both 

days inclusive) for annual closing and determining the 

entitlement of the shareholders to the dividend for 

2020-21.

3. a statement giving the relevant details of the 

Director seeking re-appointment under item 3 of the 

accompanying notice as required under sub clause 3 

of regulation 36 of the sebi (listing obligations and 

Disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015, is annexed 

hereto.

4. pursuant to the provisions of the act, a member entitled 

to attend and vote at the aGm is entitled to appoint 

a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the 

proxy need not be a member of the Company. since 

this aGm is being held pursuant to the mCa Circulars 

through vC / oavm, physical attendance of members 

has been dispensed with. accordingly, the facility for 

appointment of proxies by the members will not be 

available for the aGm and hence the proxy form and 

attendance slip are not annexed to this notice.

5. since the aGm will be held through vC/ oavm, the 

route map of the venue of the meeting is not annexed 

hereto.

6. in compliance with the mCa Circulars and sebi Circular 

dated 15th January, 2021 read with Circular dated 12th 

may, 2020, notice of the aGm along with the annual 

report 2020-21 is being sent only through electronic 

mode to those members whose e-mail address is 

registered with the Company/ Depository participants. 

members may note that the notice and annual report 

2020-21 will also be available on the Company’s website 

www.alfredherbert.co.in , website of the stock exchange 

i.e. bse limited at www.bseindia.com respectively. the 

aGm notice is also disseminated on the website of CDsl 

(agency for providing the remote e-voting facility and 

e-voting system during the aGm) i.e. www.evotingindia.

com.

7. for receiving all communication (including annual 

report) from the Company electronically:

 a) members holding shares in physical mode and who 

have not registered / updated their e-mail address 

with the Company are requested to register / update 

the same by writing to the Company with details of 

folio number and attaching a self-attested copy of 

pan card at kolkata@alfredherbert.com. 

 b) members holding shares in dematerialized mode 

are requested to register / update their e-mail 

address with the relevant Depository participant

8. Dividend on equity shares when sanctioned will be 

made payable to those shareholders whose name stand 

on the Company’s register of members as on the end of 

business hours on friday, 6th august, 2021. in respect 

of shares held in electronic form, the dividend will be 

paid on the basis of beneicial ownership as per details 
furnished by the Depositories for this purpose. Dividend 

on equity shares, if declared at the meeting will be paid/

dispatched on and from 14th august, 2021.



3

9. members holding shares in electronic form are hereby 

informed that bank particulars registered against their 

respective depository accounts will be used by the 

Company for payment of dividend. the Company or its 

registrars cannot act on any request received directly 

from the members holding shares in electronic form 

for any change of bank particulars or changing bank 

particulars already registered against their respective 

folios for payment of dividend are requested to write to 

the Company’s registrar.

10. in accordance with the proviso to regulation 40(1) 

of the securities and exchange board of india (listing 

obligations and Disclosure requirements) regulations, 

2015, effective from 1st april, 2019, transfers of 

securities of the Company shall not be processed unless 

the securities are held in the dematerialized form with 

a depository. accordingly, shareholders holding equity 

shares in physical form are urged to have their shares 

dematerialized so as to be able to freely transfer them.

11. non-resident indian shareholders are requested 

to inform about the following immediately to the 

Company or its registrar and share transfer agent or 

the concerned Depository participant(s), as the case may 

be:

  a) the change in the residential status on return to 

india for permanent settlement, and 

  b) the particulars of the nre account with a bank in 

india, if not furnished earlier.

12. members are requested to note that, dividends if not 

encashed for a consecutive period of 7 years from the 

date of transfer to unpaid Dividend account of the 

Company, are liable to be transferred to the investor 

education and protection fund (“iepf”). the shares in 

respect of such unclaimed dividends are also liable to be 

transferred to the Demat account of the iepf authority. 

in view of this, members are requested to claim their 

dividends from the Company, within the stipulated 

timeline. the members, whose unclaimed dividends/

shares have been transferred to iepf, may claim the same 

by making an online application to the iepf authority in 

web form no. iepf-5 available on www.iepf.gov.in. 

13. members attending the aGm through vC / oavm shall 

be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum 

under section 103 of the act.

14. at the ninety seventh aGm held on 28th July, 2017, 

the members approved appointment of m/s alps & Co, 

Chartered accountants (firm registration no. 313132e) 

as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold ofice 
for a period of ive years from the conclusion of that 
aGm till the conclusion of the one hundred and second 

AGM, subject to ratiication of their appointment 
by members at every aGm, if so required under the 

act. the requirement to place the matter relating to 

appointment of auditors for ratiication by Members 
at every aGm has been done away by the Companies 

(amendment) act, 2017 with effect from may 7, 

2018. accordingly, no resolution is being proposed for 

ratiication of appointment of statutory auditors at the 
One hundred and irst AGM.

15. pursuant to finance act 2020, dividend income will be 

taxable in the hands of shareholders w.e.f. 1st april, 2020 

and the Company is required to deduct tax at source 

from dividend paid to shareholders at the prescribed 

rates. for the prescribed rates for various categories, 

the shareholders are requested to refer to the finance 

act, 2020 and amendments thereof. the shareholders 

are requested to update their pan with the Company (in 

case of shares held in physical mode) and depositories 

(in case of shares held in Demat mode). 

 a resident individual shareholder with pan and who 

is not liable to pay income tax can submit a yearly 

declaration in Form No. 15G/15H, to avail the beneit 
of non-deduction of tax at source by visiting the link 

www.mdpl.in/form. shareholders are requested to note 

that in case their pan is not registered, the tax will be 

deducted at a higher rate of 20%. 

 Non-resident shareholders can avail beneicial rates 
under tax treaty between india and their country of 

residence, subject to providing necessary documents i.e. 

No Permanent Establishment and Beneicial Ownership 
Declaration, Tax Residency Certiicate, Form 10F, any 
other document which may be required to avail the tax 

treaty beneits by visiting the link www.mdpl.in/form. 
the aforesaid declarations and documents need to be 

submitted by the shareholders by saturday, 31st July, 

2021.

 no tDs will be deducted in case of resident individual 

shareholders who furnish their pan details and whose 

dividend does not exceed rs. 5,000/-. however, where 

the pan is not updated in Company/ Depository 

participant records or in case of an invalid pan, the 

Company will deduct tDs u/s 194 without considering 

the exemption limit of rs. 5,000/-.

 all the shareholders are requested to update their pan 

with their Depository participant (if shares are held in 

electronic form) and Company (if shares are held in 

physical form) against all their folio holdings at the 

earliest.

16. the register of Directors and Key managerial personnel 

and their shareholding maintained under section 170 

of the act, the register of Contracts or arrangements 

in which the Directors are interested, maintained under 

section 189 of the act, and the relevant documents 

referred to in the notice will be available for inspection 
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ALfREd HERBERT (iNdiA) LTd.

by the members. 

 members seeking any information with regard to the 

accounts or any matter to be placed at the aGm, are 

requested to write to the Company on or before friday, 

6th august, 2021 by sending e-mail on at kolkata@

alfredherbert.com. the same will be replied by the 

Company suitably.

17. instructions for e-voting and joining the aGm are as 

follows:

A. VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS

i. pursuant to the provisions of section 108 of the 

Companies act, 2013 read with rule 20 of the 

Companies (management and administration) rules, 

2014 (as amended) and regulation 44 of sebi (listing 

obligations & Disclosure requirements) regulations 

2015 (as amended), and mCa Circulars dated 8th april, 

2020, 13th april, 2020 and 5th may, 2020 the Company 

is providing facility of remote e-voting to its members 

in respect of the business to be transacted at the aGm. 

for this purpose, the Company has entered into an 

agreement with Central Depository services (india) 

limited (CDsl) for facilitating voting through electronic 

means, as the authorized e-voting’s agency. the facility 

of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as 

well as the e-voting system on the date of the aGm will 

be provided by CDsl.

ii. the board of Directors of the Company has appointed 

mr. abhijeet Jain (membership no. fCs 4975) proprietor 

of m/s a J & associates, Company secretaries as the 

scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair 

and transparent manner and he has communicated his 

willingness to be appointed and will be available for the 

same purpose.

iii. the members who have cast their vote by remote 

e-voting prior to the aGm may also attend/ participate 

in the aGm through vC / oavm but shall not be entitled 

to cast their vote again. 

iv. the voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid up value 

of the shares registered in the name of the member/ 

Beneicial Owner (in case of electronic shareholding) as 
on the cut-off date i.e. friday, 6th august, 2021.

v. the scrutinizer, after scrutinizing the votes cast at 

the meeting and through e-voting, will, not later 

than 2 days of conclusion of the meeting, make a 

consolidated scrutinizer’s report and submit the same 

to the Chairman. the results declared along with the 

consolidated scrutinizer’s report shall be placed on the 

website of the Company www.alfredherbert.co.in and 

on the website of CDsl www.evotingindia.com . the 

results shall simultaneously be communicated to the 

stock exchange.

vi. the instructions for shareholders voting electronically 

are as under:

 • The remote e-voting period commences at Tuesday, 
10th august, 2021 at 10:00 a.m. and ends on 

thursday 12th august, 2021 at 5.00 p.m. During 

this period, members of the Company, holding 

shares either in physical form or in dematerialized 

form, as on the cut-off date of friday, 6th august, 

2021, may cast their votes electronically as per 

the process detailed in this notice. the remote 

e-voting module shall be disabled for voting 

thereafter. once the vote on a resolution(s) is cast 

by the member, the member shall not be allowed 

to change it subsequently. a person who is not a 

member as on the cut-off date should treat this 

notice for information purposes only.

 • The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion 
to their share of the paid-up equity share capital of 

the Company as on the cut-off date i.e. friday, 6th 

august, 2021.

 • Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/
password are advised to use “forgot user 

iD”/“forgot password” options available on the 

websites of Depositories/Depository participants.

 • On the voting page, enter the number of shares 
(which represents the number of votes) as on the 

cut-off date of friday, 6th august, 2021 under “for/

aGainst” for each item of the notice separately or 

alternatively, you may partially enter any number 

“for” and partially “aGainst” but the total 

number in “for/aGainst” taken together shall not 

exceed your total shareholding as on the Cut-off 

date. You may also choose the option “abstain”. 

if the member does not indicate either “for” or 

“aGainst”, it will be treated as “abstain” and the 

shares held will not be counted under either head.

 • Members holding multiple folios/demat accounts 
shall choose the voting process separately for each 

folio/demat accounts.

 • You can also update your mobile number and e-mail 
id in the user proile details of the folio which may 
be used for sending future communication(s).

 • As per circular of SEBI on e-Voting Facility provided 
by listed entities, dated 9th December, 2020, all 

“individual shareholders holding shares of the 

Company in demat mode” can cast their vote, 

by way of a single login credential, through 

their demat accounts / websites of Depositories / 

Depository participants. the procedure to login 

and access remote e-voting, as devised by the 

Depositories / Depository participant(s):
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National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) 

1. users already registered for iDeas e-services facility of 

nsDl may follow the following procedure:

i. type in the browser / Click on the following e-services 

link: https://eservices.nsdl.com 

ii.  Click on the button “Beneicial Owner” available for 
login under ‘iDeas’ section. 

iii. a new page will open. enter your user iD and password 

for accessing iDeas.

iv.  on successful authentication, you will enter your iDeas 

service login. Click on “access to e-voting” under value 

added services on the panel available on the left hand 

side. 

v. Click on “active e-voting Cycles” option under e-voting.

vi. You will see Company name: “alfreD herbert (inDia) 

limiteD” on the next screen. Click on the e-voting link 

available against alfreD herbert (inDia) limiteD and 

you will be re-directed to the e-voting page to cast your 

vote without any further authentication.

vii. members who have not registered for iDeas facility may 

follow the below steps: 

a) to register for this facility, visit the url: https://eservices.

nsdl.com

b) on the home page, select “register online for iDeas”

c) on completion of the registration formality, follow the 

steps provided above.

viii. members may alternatively vote through the e-voting 

website of NSDL in the manner speciied below: 

a) visit the url: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com

b) Click on the “login” icon available under the 

“shareholder/member” section.

c) enter user iD (i.e. 16-digit demat account number 

held with nsDl), password/otp, as applicable, and the 

veriication code shown on the screen. 

d) post successful authentication, you will be redirected to 

the nsDl iDeas site wherein you can see the e-voting 

page.

e) Click on company name or e-voting service provider 

name i.e. CDsl and you will be redirected to CDsl 

website for casting your vote.

ix. for any technical assistance, members may contact nsDl 

helpdesk by writing to evoting@nsdl.co.in  or calling the 

toll free no.: 18001020990 or 1800224430.

Central Depository Services Limited (CDSL)

users already registered for easi / easiest facility of CDsl 

may follow the following procedure: 

i.  type in the browser / Click on any of the following links:         

 https:// web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login  

  or 

 www.cdslindia.com  and click on new system myeasi 

/ login to my easi option under Quick login (best 

operational in internet explorer 10 or above and mozilla 

firefox) 

ii. enter your user iD and password for accessing easi / 

easiest. 

iii. You will see Company name: “alfreD herbert (inDia) 

limiteD” on the next screen. Click on the e-voting link 

available against alfreD herbert (inDia) limiteD and 

you will be re-directed to the e-voting page to cast your 

vote without any further authentication

iv. members who have not registered for easi/ easiest 

facility may follow the below steps:

a) to register for this facility, visit the url:https://web.

cdslindia.com/myeasi/registration/easiregistration

b) on completion of the registration formality, follow the 

steps provided above.

v. members may alternatively vote through the e voting 

website of CDSL in the manner speciied below: 

a) visit the url: www.cdslindia.com

b) enter the demat account number and pan

c) enter otp received on mobile number and email 

registered with the demat account for authentication.

d) post successful authentication, the member will receive 

links for the respective e-voting service provider i.e. 

CDsl where the e-voting is in progress.

vi. for any technical assistance, members may contact CDsl 

helpdesk by writing to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com  

or calling at 022-23058738 or 022- 23058542-43.



6

ALfREd HERBERT (iNdiA) LTd.

vii. Login method for e-voting and joining virtual 
meeting for shareholders other than individual 
shareholders holding in demat form & physical 
shareholders.

1) the shareholders should log on to the e-voting website 
www.evotingindia.com.

2) Click on “shareholders” module.

3) now enter your user iD 

 a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneiciary ID, 
 b. for nsDl: 8 Character Dp iD followed by 8 Digits 

Client iD, 

 c. shareholders holding shares in physical form should 
enter folio number registered with the Company.

4) Next enter the Image Veriication as displayed and Click 
on login.

5) if you are holding shares in demat form and had logged 
on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier 
e-voting of any company, then your existing password is 
to be used. 

6) If you are a irst-time user follow the steps given below:

for shareholders holding shares in 

Demat form and physical form

pan enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *pan 
issued by income tax Department (applicable 
for both demat shareholders as well as 

physical shareholders)

• Shareholders who have not updated 
their pan with the Company/Depository 
participant are requested to use the 
sequence number sent by Company/rta 
or contact Company/rta.

D i v i d e n d 

b a n k 

Details or 

Date of 

birth (Dob)

enter the Dividend bank Details or Date of 
birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded 
in your demat account or in the company 

records in order to login.

• If both the details are not recorded with 
the depository or company, please enter 
the member id / folio number in the 
Dividend Bank details ield as mentioned 
in instruction (v).

7) after entering these details appropriately, click on 

“submit” tab.

8) shareholders holding shares in physical form will then 

directly reach the Company selection screen. however, 

shareholders holding shares in demat form will now 

reach ‘password Creation’ menu wherein they are 

required to mandatorily enter their login password in 

the new password ield. Kindly note that this password 
is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for 

resolutions of any other company on which they are 

eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting 

through CDsl platform. it is strongly recommended not 

to share your password with any other person and take 

utmost care to keep your password conidential.

9) for shareholders holding shares in physical form, the 

details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions 

contained in this notice.

10) Click on the evsn for the “alfreD herbert (inDia) 

limiteD” on which you choose to vote.

11) on the voting page, you will see “resolution 

DesCription” and against the same the option “Yes/

no” for voting. select the option Yes or no as desired. 

the option Yes implies that you assent to the resolution 

and option no implies that you dissent to the resolution.

12) Click on the “resolutions file linK” if you wish to 

view the entire resolution details.

13) after selecting the resolution, you have decided to 

vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A conirmation box will 
be displayed. If you wish to conirm your vote, click on 
“oK”, else to change your vote, click on “CanCel” and 

accordingly modify your vote.

14) once you “Confirm” your vote on the resolution, you 

will not be allowed to modify your vote.

15) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on 

“Click here to print” option on the voting page.

16) if a demat account holder has forgotten the login 

password then enter the user iD and the image 

veriication code and click on Forgot Password & enter 
the details as prompted by the system.

viii. Note for non-individual shareholders and custodians:

* non-individual shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, 

huf, nri etc.) and Custodian are required to log on to www.

evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates.

*a scanned copy of the registration form bearing the 

stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to helpdesk.

evoting@cdslindia.com. 

* after receiving the login details a Compliance user should 

be created using the admin login and password. the 

Compliance user would be able to link the account(s) for 

which they wish to vote on

* the list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed 

to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the 

accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

* a scanned copy of the board resolution and power of 

attorney (poa) which they have issued in favour of the 

Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in pDf format in the 

system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

in case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, 
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you may refer the frequently asked Questions (“faQs”) 

and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com 

under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@

cdslindia.com. 

ix. The instructions for attending the AGM through VC/

OAVM

• The Company has opted to provide the same electronic 
voting system at the meeting, as used during remote 

e-voting, and the said facility shall be operational till all 

the resolutions proposed in the notice are considered 

and voted upon at the meeting and may be used for 

voting only by the members holding shares as on the 

Cutoff Date who are attending the meeting and who 

have not already cast their vote(s) through remote 

e-voting.

• Shareholder will be provided with a facility to attend 
the aGm through vC/oavm through the CDsl e-voting 

system. shareholders may access the same at https://

www.evotingindia.com under shareholders/members 

login by using the remote e-voting credentials. the link 

for vC/oavm will be available in shareholder/members 

login where the evsn of Company will be displayed.

• The facility for joining the AGM shall open 15 minutes 
before the scheduled time for commencement of the 

aGm and shall be closed after the expiry of 15 minutes 

after such scheduled time.

• Members are encouraged to join the Meeting using 
Google Chrome (preferred browser), safari, internet 

explorer, microsoft edge or mozilla firefox 22.

• Members are advised to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN 
connection to participate at the aGm through vC in 

a smooth manner. participants may experience audio/

video loss due to luctuation in their respective networks.

• Shareholders who would like to express their views or ask 
questions during the aGm may register themselves as a 

speaker by sending their request from their registered 

email address mentioning their name, DpiD and 

Client iD/folio no. at kolkata@alfredherbert.com from 

monday, 9th august, 2021 (10:00 a.m.) and ends on 

tuesday, 10th august, 2021 (5:00 p.m.).those members 

who have registered themselves as a speaker will only 

be allowed to express their views/ask questions during 

the aGm. the Company reserves the right to restrict 

the number of speakers depending on the availability 

of time for the aGm. those shareholders who have 

registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed 

to express their views/ask questions during the meeting.

x. Process for those shareholders whose email/

mobile no. are not registered with the Company/

Depositories.

1. for physical shareholders- please provide necessary 

details like folio no., name of shareholder, scanned 

copy of the share certiicate (front and back), PAN (self-
attested scanned copy of pan card), aaDhar (self-

attested scanned copy of aadhaar Card) by sending an 

email to Company at kolkata@alfredherbert.com or by 

visiting the link of the rta at https://mdpl.in/form/email-

update

2. for Demat shareholders - please update your email id & 

mobile no. with your respective Depository participant 

(Dp).

3. for individual Demat shareholders – please update your 

email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 

participant (Dp) which is mandatory while e-voting & 

joining virtual meetings through Depository.

 by order of the board of Directors

 for alfred herbert (india) limited 

 shobhana sethi

Date : 30th June, 2021 Chief Financial Oficer
place: Kolkata & Company secretary
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ALfREd HERBERT (iNdiA) LTd.

ANNEXURE TO iTEm NO.3 Of THE NOTicE

Details of Director seeking re-appointment at the forthcoming annual General meeting (in pursuance of sub-clause 3 of regulation 

36 of the sebi (listing obligations and Disclosure requirements) regulation, 2015 of the listing agreement (as on 31st march, 2021)

name of Director harsh vardhan lodha

Director Identiication Number (DIN) 00394094

Date of birth 13th february 1967

nationality indian

Date of appointment on the board 20th september 1990

Qualiication Chartered accountant

shareholding in ahil 43590 shares

list of Directorship held in other 

Companies (excluding foreign, private and 

section 8 Companies)

birla Corporation ltd.

birla Cable ltd

hindustan Gum & Chemicals limited

J.K. fenner (india) ltd

punjab produce holdings ltd**

universal Cables ltd.

vindhya telelinks limited

baroda agents & trading Co pvt. ltd**

birla furukawa fibre optics pvt. ltd

east india investment Co pvt. ltd**

Gwalior webbing Co pvt. ltd**

oneworld resources pvt. ltd

rCCpl private limited

swiss india financial services Co. pvt. ltd.

the punjab produce & trading Co pvt. ltd.**

memberships/Chairmanships of 

Committees across public Companies

Chairman

stakeholders relationship Committee:

birla Corporation ltd

Corporate social responsibility Committee:

birla Corporation ltd

hindustan Gum & Chemicals limited

universal Cables ltd.

rCCpl private limited 

the punjab produce & trading Co. pvt. limited*

member

Corporate social responsibility Committee-

Gwalior webbing Co. pvt. limited*

Committee of Director:

birla Corporation ltd

rCCpl private limited

nomination and remuneration Committee:

birla Corporation ltd

rCCpl private limited

relationship between Directors inter-se brother of mr. a v lodha and brother in law of mrs. simika lodha

**These companies have iled Form DIR-12 with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs on the basis of an illegal direction from one 
of the administrators pendentelite of the estate of priyamvada Devi birla purportedly acting as a Chairman of a meeting of 

board of Directors of the Companies held on 19th october 2020 that i have ceased to be a director in the said companies. the 

wrongful act has been done without my knowledge, consent and without proper compliance with the provisions of law which 

has been legally challenged by me. there has been no valid cessation of my directorship in the said Companies. the legality of 

such actions is also subject to the decision of Court. i am therefore disclosing the same and as and when the matter is decided 

inally I will act accordingly.
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diREcTORs’ REPORT

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 101st annual 

report together with the audited accounts of your Company 

for the year ended 31st march 2021.

REsULTs Of OUR OPERATiONs ANd sTATE Of AffAiRs

the financial results are as under:                           (rs. in lakhs)

particulars For the for the

   year ended year ended

   31st March 31st march

   2021 2020

Proit before Tax and
exceptional items 80.42 108.99

exceptional items 90.00 -

provision for tax
(including deferred tax) 24.99 23.43

Profit after Tax (34.57) 85.56

surplus from earlier years
brought forward 1,465.62 653.71

amount available for appropriation 1,431.05 739.27

appropriations:  

 Dividend for 2019-20 27.00 19.29

 Dividend tax for 2019-20 - 3.96

General reserve 100.00 240.00

special reserve - - 17.15

   127.00 280.40

   1,304.05 458.87

transfer to retained earnings 275.51 1,006.75

surplus carried to balance sheet 1,579.86 1465.62

l accounts for the year ended 31st march 2021 have been 

prepared in conformity with indian accounting standards 

(‘Ind AS’) notiied under section 133 of Companies Act, 
2013(‘”the act”) read with Companies (indian accounting 

standards) rules, 2015 as amended by Companies (indian 

accounting standards) rules, 2016 from 1st april, 2019, 

leading to major changes in the accounting policies.

fiNANciAL PERfORmANcE

the Company’s performance was satisfactory during the year. 

The Company’s gross income for the inancial year ended 31st 
march 2021 stood at rs. 278.61 lakhs as against rs. 320.85 

lakhs in 2019-20. Proit/Loss before tax stood at Rs. (9.58) 
lakhs in 2020-21 as against Rs. 108.99 lakhs proit before tax 
and exceptional items in 2019-20. Proit/Loss after tax of the 
Company stood at rs. (34.57) lakhs. the performance of the 

Company’s non-current investments was also satisfactory. as 

on 31st march, 2021 other comprehensive income net of tax 

amounted to Rs. 1502.38 lakhs for the year. The proit realized 
on sale of some non-current investments was transferred to 

retained earnings in conformity with the accounting standards.

the Company is developing its property in Kolkata where the 

work is progressing. with lockdowns imposed due to CoviD-19 

pandemic, the completion of the building was delayed. barring 

unforeseen circumstances, we are hopeful that the said building 

would be completed in the current year.

the performance of the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary 

alfred herbert limited was disappointing and unsatisfactory. 

Despite supporting Alfred Herbert Limited signiicantly including 
providing signiicant inancial support over the years in the 
form of loans, the Company performed poorly, necessitating a 

deep review and examination of the way forward. the situation 

was made much worse due to the Covid-19 pandemic not 

only compressing demand but delaying projects and deliveries 

leading to further losses. after a comprehensive review, it was 

felt that is was highly unlikely that this business in its current 

form would create positive value in the foreseeable future. 

it was accordingly decided to restructure ahl operations 

signiicantly with the primary objective of cutting losses to the 
maximum extent possible going forward. this necessitated a 

painful decision to minimize in house operations in bengaluru 

and rationalize manpower and attendant costs. the Company 

is now focused on minimizing its liabilities and evaluating what 

may be the best structure for it to continue operations in future. 

diVidENd

Your Directors take pleasure in recommending for approval the 

payment of Dividend of rs.2.75 (per share) on 771429 equity 

shares of the Company for the year ended 31st march, 2021 

subject to the approval of the members in the 101st annual 

General meeting of the Company. 

TRANsfER TO REsERVEs:

the Company has transferred rs. 100 lakhs to the General 

reserve account.

cHANgE iN NATURE Of BUsiNEss

there has been no change in the nature of business of the 

Company during the inancial year 2020-21.

mEETiNgs Of THE BOARd

During the year four meetings of the board were held during the 

year under review. for details of meetings of the board, please 

refer to the Corporate Governance report, which is a part of this 

report. the intervening gap between the meetings was within 

the period prescribed under the Companies act, 2013.

diREcTORs ANd KEy mANAgERiAL PERsONNEL

pursuant to the provisions of the Companies act, 2013, mr. 

h v lodha, Director, retires by rotation and being eligible, 

offers himself for re-appointment. based on the performance 

evaluation and recommendation of the nomination and 

remuneration committee, the board recommends his 

reappointment. a resolution seeking shareholders’ approval for 

his re-appointment forms part of the notice.

pursuant to the provisions of section 203 of the act, the Key 

managerial personnel of the Company as on march 31, 2021 are:

Mr. V Matta – Chief Executive Oficer

mrs. shobhana sethi – Chief Financial Oficer and Company Secretary

there is no change among the Key managerial personnel during 

the year under review.

dEcLARATiON By iNdEPENdENT diREcTORs

the Company has received necessary declaration from each 
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independent Director under section 149(7) of the Companies 

act, 2013, that he / she meets the criteria of independence 

laid down in section 149(6) of the Companies act, 2013 

and regulation 25 of sebi (listing obligations & Disclosure 

requirements) regulations, 2015.

BOARd EVALUATiON

pursuant to the provisions of the Companies act, 2013 and 

regulation 4(f) and regulation 17 of sebi (listing obligations 

& Disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015, the board 

has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own 

performance, the Directors individually as well as the evaluation 

of the working of its Committees.

cOmmiTTEEs Of THE BOARd 

as on march 31, 2021, the board had three committees: 

the audit Committee, the nomination and remuneration 

Committee, and the stakeholders relationship Committee. a 

majority of the committees consists entirely of independent 

Directors. During the year 4 meetings of audit Committee, 

1 meetings of stakeholders relationship Committee and 1 

meeting of nomination and remuneration Committee were also 

held, the details of which viz., dates and number of meetings 

attended by each director etc., are given in the Corporate 

Governance report. also, all recommendations made by the 

committees were approved by the board. a detailed note on the 

composition of the board and its committees is provided in the 

Corporate Governance report.

PARTicULARs Of LOANs, gUARANTEEs OR iNVEsTmENTs

the provisions of section 186 of the Companies act, 2013 

pertaining to investments, loans and Guarantees is not 

applicable to the Company since the Company is a non-banking 

financial Company. 

sHARE cAPiTAL

the paid –up equity share Capital of the Company as on 31st 

march 2021 was rs.77.14 lakhs. During the year under review, 

the Company has not issued shares with differential voting 

rights nor granted stock options nor sweat equity.

dEPOsiTs

the Company has not accepted any deposit from public and as 

such, no amount on account of principal or interest on deposits 

from public was outstanding as on the date of the balance 

sheet.

ANNUAL RETURN

the details forming part of the extract of the annual return in 

form mGt-9 as required under section 92 of the Companies act, 

2013, is marked as ‘annexure –b’ which is annexed hereto and 

forms part of the Directors’ report.

sEcRETARiAL sTANdARds 

the Company complies with all applicable mandatory secretarial 

standards issued by the institute of Company secretaries of india.

LisTiNg ON sTOcK EXcHANgE

the Company’s shares are listed on bombay stock exchange 

(bse) limited.    

sigNificANT & mATERiAL ORdERs PAssEd By THE 

REgULATORs OR cOURTs

There are no signiicant material orders passed by the Regulators/
Courts which would impact the going concern status of the 

Company and its future operations.

diREcTORs’ REsPONsiBiLiTy sTATEmENT

as stipulated in section 134(3) (C) of the Companies act, 

2013, your Directors subscribe to the “Directors’ responsibility 

Statement” and conirm as under:

a) that in the preparation of the annual inancial statements 
for the year ended 31st march 2021, the applicable 

accounting standards have been followed along with 

proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

b) that such accounting policies as mentioned in note no.1 of 

the notes to the financial statements have been selected 

and applied consistently and judgment and estimates have 

been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a 

true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as 

at 31st March 2021 and of the proit of the Company for 
the year ended on that date

c) that proper and suficient care has been taken for 
the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies act 

2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 

preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) that the annual inancial statements have been prepared on 
a going concern basis;

e) that proper internal inancial controls were in place and that 
the inancial controls were adequate and were operating 
effectively;

f) that systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of 

all applicable laws were in place and were adequate and 

operating effectively.

sEcRETARiAL AUdiTOR

pursuant to the provisions of section 204 of the Companies act, 

2013 and the Companies (appointment and remuneration of 

managerial personnel) rules, 2014, the Company has appointed 

ms. priyanka tibrewal, practicing Company secretary as secretarial 

Auditor of the Company for the inancial year 2021-22.

AUdiT REPORTs ANd AUdiTORs

audit reports 

l The Auditors’ Report for inancial year 2020-21 does not 
contain any qualiication, reservation or adverse remark. 
The Report is enclosed with the inancial statements in this 
annual report. 

l as required by the listing regulations, the practicing 

Company Secretary’s certiicate on corporate governance 
for inancial year 2020-21 is enclosed to the Board’s 
report. The certiicate does not contain any qualiication, 
reservation or adverse remark. 

l The Secretarial Auditors’ Report for inancial year 2020-21 
does not contain any qualiication, reservation or adverse 
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remark. the secretarial auditors’ report is enclosed as 

‘annexure a’ to the board’s report in this annual report.

statutory Auditors

m/s. alps & Co. Chartered accountants (firm registration no. 

frn 313132e) existing auditors of the Company were appointed 

for a period of 5(ive) years by the Members of the Company in 
the 97th annual General meeting held on 28th July 2017. by 

virtue of the amendment made in the Companies (amendment) 

Act, 2017 notiied on May 7, 2018, the Company is not 
required to place before the annual General meeting the matter 

pertaining to ratiication of appointment of Auditors.

cORPORATE sOciAL REsPONsiBiLiTy:

The proit of the Company is less than the amount speciied 
under section 135 of the Companies act, 2013 and, thereby, 

provision of Corporate social responsibilities and obligations 

thereof are not applicable to the Company.

PARTicULARs REgARdiNg cONsERVATiON Of 

ENERgy, TEcHNOLOgy ABsORPTiON, REsEARcH ANd 

dEVELOPmENT ANd fOREigN EXcHANgE EARNiNgs ANd 

OUTgO

there were no foreign exchange earnings and expenditure during 

the year. the other particulars relating to Conservation of energy 

and technology absorption stipulated under section134(3m)

of the Companies act, 2013 read with rule 8 of Companies 

(accounts) rules, 2014, are not applicable.

cORPORATE gOVERNANcE

the Company has complied with the Corporate Governance 

code as stipulated under the listing agreement with the stock 

exchange. a separate section on Corporate Governance, along 

with Certiicate from the Auditors conirming the compliance, is 
annexed and forms part of the annual report.

sUBsidiARy cOmPANiEs, JOiNT VENTUREs ANd 

AssOciATE cOmPANiEs

the Company has two wholly owned subsidiaries (wos) as 

on 31st march, 2021. there are no associate or Joint venture 

Companies within the meaning of section 2(6) of the Companies 

act, 2013. there has been no material change in the nature of 

business of the subsidiaries.

in accordance with the General Circular issued by the ministry 

of Corporate affairs, Government of india, the balance sheet, 

Statement of Proit & Loss and other documents of the Subsidiary 
Companies are not being attached with the balance sheet of the 

Company. However, the inancial information of the Subsidiary 
Companies is disclosed in the annual report in compliance with 

the said circular in form aoC 1. 

The consolidated inancial statements presented by the Company 
include inancial results of its Subsidiary Companies, Alfred 
herbert limited and herbert holdings limited and is available 

on the website of the Company www.alfredherbert.co.in

BUsiNEss RisK mANAgEmENT

The main identiied risks at the Company are Commercial 
risks, financial risks, operational risks and legal & regulatory 

risks. Your Company has established a comprehensive risk 

management system to ensure that risk to the Company’s 

continued existence as a going concern and to its development 

are identiied and addressed on timely basis. Risk Management 
strategy as approved by the board of Directors is implemented 

by the Company management

PARTicULARs Of EmPLOyEEs: 

During the year, the Company paid an aggregate sum of rs. 

15.18 lakh to Key managerial personnel, mr. v matta, Chief 

Executive Oficer and Mrs. Shobhana Sethi, Company Secretary 
& Chief Financial Oficer.

VigiL mEcHANism

pursuant to the provisions of revised regulation 22 of sebi 

(listing obligations & Disclosure requirements) regulations, 

2015 and section 166 (9)&(10) of the Companies act, 2013, 

the Company had established a vigil mechanism for Directors 

and employees to report concerns of unethical behaviour, 

actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of 

Conduct.    

REmUNERATiON POLicy

the board has, on the recommendation of the nomination & 

remuneration Committee framed a policy for selection and 

appointment of Directors, senior management and their 

remuneration.

iNTERNAL cONTROL sysTEms & THEiR AdEQUAcy

the Company has an internal Control system commensurate 

with the size and scale of its operations. 

RELATEd PARTy TRANsAcTiONs

all related party transactions that were entered into during 

the inancial year were in the ordinary course of business. 
none of the Directors has any direct pecuniary relationships or 

transactions vis-à-vis the Company.

PREVENTiON Of sEXUAL HARAssmENT Of WOmEN AT 

THE WORKPLAcE

the Company is not required to set up an internal Complaints 

Committee as per the provisions of sexual harassment of women 

at workplace (prevention, prohibition and redressal) act, 2013. 

the Company has not received any complaints during the year.

PERsONNEL

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the 

services rendered by the employees of the Company during the 

year.  

 on behalf of the board

 r C tapuriah s s Jain

Kolkata Director Director

Date: 30th June, 2021 Din: 00395997      Din: 00013732
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fORm mR-3

sEcRETARiAL AUdiT REPORT

for the finanCial Year enDeD on 31st marCh, 2021

[pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies act, 2013 and rule no. 9 of the Companies(appointment and remuneration of 
managerial personnel) rules, 2014]

to,
the members
alfred herbert (india) limited 

i have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and adherence to good corporate 
practices by alfred herbert (india) limited (hereinafter called the Company). secretarial audit was conducted in a manner 
that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing my opinion 
thereon.

Based on my veriication of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns iled and other records maintained 
by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its oficers, agents and authorized representatives during 
the conduct of secretarial audit, i hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the 
inancial year ended on 31st March, 2021 complied with statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has 
proper board-processes and Compliance – mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms, and returns iled and other records maintained by the company for 
the inancial year ended on 31.03.2021 according to the provisions of:
(i) the Companies act, 2013 (the act) and the rules made there under;

(ii) the securities Contracts (regulation) act, 1956 (‘sCra’) and the rules made there under;

(iii) the Depositories act, 1996 and the regulations and bye-laws framed there under;

(iv) foreign exchange management act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of foreign Direct 
investment, overseas Direct investment and external Commercial borrowings (not applicable during the period under 
review);

(v) the regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the securities and exchange board of india act, 1992 (‘sebi act’) viz.:-

 a. the securities and exchange board of india (substantial acquisition of shares and takeovers) regulations, 2011;

 b. the securities and exchange board of india (prohibition of insider trading) regulations, 2015;

 c. the securities and exchange board of india (issue of Capital and Disclosure requirements) regulations, 2009;

 d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Beneits) Regulations, 2014 - (Not Applicable to 
the Company during the period under review);

 e. the securities and exchange board of india (issue and listing of Debt securities) regulations, 2008 -(not applicable 
to the Company during the period under review);

 f. the securities and exchange board of india (registrars to an issue and share transfer agents) regulations, 1993 
regarding the Companies act and dealing with client

 g. the securities and exchange board of india (Delisting of equity shares) regulations, 2009 - (not applicable to the 
Company during the period under review);

 h. the securities and exchange board of india (buyback of securities) regulations, 1998 - (not applicable to the 
Company during the period under review);

i further report that having regard to the Compliance system prevailing in the company and on examination of the relevant 
documents and records in pursuance thereof on, test check basis,  the company has complied with the following laws 
speciically applicable to the Company, as indentiied by the management, that is to say:
a. reserve bank of india act, 1934 (section 45-1a) and directions thereon, viz.,

 l non banking financial Companies acceptance of public Deposits (reserve bank) Directions, 1998.

 l non banking finance (non-Deposit accepting or holding) Companies prudential norms (reserve bank) Directions, 
2007

b. prevention of money laundering act, 2002. 

i further report that i have not commented on the compliance of various tax laws and accounting standards and compliance 
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of schedule iii in the preparation of financial statements as it is dealt separately by an appropriate independent professional 
and forms part of the annual report.

i have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) secretarial standard (ss 1 & ss 2) issued by the institute of Company secretaries of india (iCsi);

(ii) the securities exchange board of india (listing obligations and Disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015 for the listing 
agreement entered into by the Company with bombay stock exchange (bse).

During the audit period, the Company has complied with the provisions of the act, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, 
etc. mentioned above.

i further report that

the board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of executive Directors, non-executive Directors 
and independent Directors. the changes in the composition of the board of Directors that took place during the period under 
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the act.

adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the board meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at 
least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clariications on the agenda 
items before the meeting and meaningful participation at the meeting.

majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded, wherever required, as 
part of the minutes. however, the resolutions in the board /Committee meetings as observed, were unanimous and hence, no 
dissenting views have been recorded.a compliance report by the Company secretary (Cs) is submitted to the board periodically.

i further report that as per the explanation given to me and the representations made by the management, there are adequate 
systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable law, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

I further report that during the audit period, there are no speciic events/actions which have the major bearing on the company’s 
affairs.

Note: i have relied upon the accuracy of the documents and information as shared by the Company with me through 
appropriate information technology tools to assist me in completing the secretarial audit work during lock down period due 
to unprecedented situation prevailing in the Country due to CoVID-19 virus pandemic and with a limited physical veriication.
    CS PRIYANKA TIBREWAL
    fCs: 7893
place: Kolkata  C. p. no.: 8843
Date: 30.06.2021 uDin no. f007893C000548895

‘Annexure A’

to,
the members
Alfred Herbert (India) Limited

my report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. my responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2. i have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness 
of the contents of the Secretarial records. The veriication was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are relected 
in secretarial records. i believe that the processes and practices i followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. I have not veriied the correctness and appropriateness of inancial records and books of Accounts of the Company.
4. wherever required, i have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations 

and happening of events etc.

5. the compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standard is the responsibility 
of management; my examination was limited to the veriication of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the eficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

    CS PRIYANKA TIBREWAL
    fCs: 7893
place: Kolkata  C. p. no.: 8843
Date: 30.06.2021 uDin no. f007893C000548895



14

ALfREd HERBERT (iNdiA) LTd.

Annexure- ‘B’

fORm NO. mgT 9

EXTRAcT Of ANNUAL RETURN

as on inancial year ended on 31.03.2021

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company

(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

i REgisTRATiON & OTHER dETAiLs:

i Cin l74999wb1919plC003516

ii registration Date 2nD DeCember 1919

iii name of the Company alfreD herbert (inDia) limiteD

iv Category/sub-category of the Company CompanY havinG share Capital

v Address of the Registered ofice & contact details 13/3, stranD roaD, KolKata- 700001.
tel. no. 033-2226 8619, 033-2229 9124

vi whether listed company Yes

vii name , address & contact details of the registrar 
& transfer agent, if any.

maheshwari DatamatiCs pvt. ltD.
23, r. n. muKherJee roaD, KolKata- 700001. 
tel. no. 033 2248 2248, 033-2243 5029

ii PRiNciPAL BUsiNEss AcTiViTiEs Of THE cOmPANy
all the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated

sL No Name & Description of main products/services NIC Code of the Product /service % to total turnover of the company

1 non-banKinG finanCial aCtivities n-05.04665 Dt. 29.11.2001 85.38

2

3

4

iii PARTicULARs Of HOLdiNg, sUBsidiARy & AssOciATE cOmPANiEs

Sl No Name & Address of the Company CIN/GLN HOLDING/ SUBSIDIARY/ 
AssOciATE

% Of sHAREs 
HELd

APPLicABLE 
sEcTiON

1 alfreD herbert limiteD u32109wb1987plC043261 subsiDiarY 100 2(87)

2 herbert holDinGs limiteD u67120wb1987plC043328 subsiDiarY 100 2(87)

3

IV SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break up as % to total Equity)

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % change 
during 

the year
Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares
Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian  

a) individual/huf  2,72,305  -    2,72,305  35.2988  2,72,302  -    2,72,302  35.2984  (0.0004)

b) Central Govt.or state Govt. – – – – – – – – – 

c) bodies Corporates  38,270  -    38,270  4.9609  38,271  -    38,271  4.9611  0.0001 

d) bank/fi – – – – – – – – –

e) any other – – – – – – – – –

SUB TOTAL:(A) (1)  3,10,575  -    3,10,575  40.2597  3,10,573  -    3,10,573  40.2594  (0.0003)

(2) Foreign

a) nri-individuals  2,58,619  -    2,58,619  33.5247  2,58,627  -    2,58,627  33.5257  0.0010 

b) other individuals – – – – – – – – –

c) bodies Corp. – – – – – – – – –

d) banks/fi – – – – – – – – – 

e) any other… – – – – – – – – –

SUB TOTAL (A) (2)  2,58,619  -    2,58,704  33.5247  2,58,627  -    2,58,627  33.5257  0.0010 

Total Shareholding of Promoter 
(A)= (A)(1)+(A)(2)  5,69,194  -    5,69,279  73.7844  5,69,200  -   

 
5,69,200  73.7851  0.0008 
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B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING

(1) institutions

a) mutual funds – – – – – – – – – 

b) banks/fi  30  60  90  0.0117  30  60  90  0.0117  –   

c) Central Govt – – – – –  84  84  0.0109  0.0109 

d) state Govt. – – – – – – – – – 

e) venture Capital fund – – – – – – – – – 

f) insurance Companies – – – – – – – – – 

g) fiis – – – – – – – – – 

h) foreign venture Capital funds – – – – – – – – – 

i) others (specify) – – – – – – – – –

SUB TOTAL (B)(1):  30  60  90  0.0117  30  144  174  0.0226  0.0109 

(2) Non Institutions

a) bodies corporates

i) indian  3,706  1,041  4,747  0.6154  9,279  1,041  10,320  1.3378  0.7224 

ii) overseas – – – – – – – – – 

b) individuals

i) individual shareholders holding 
nominal share capital upto rs.1 
lakh

 1,12,869  42,009  1,54,878  20.0768  1,07,777  38,942  1,46,719  19.0191  (1.0576)

ii) individuals shareholders 
holding nominal share capital in 
excess of rs. 1 lakh

– – – – – – – – – 

c) others (specify)

 i) trusts 90 – 90 0.0117 90 – 90 0.0117 – 

 ii) Clearing member  7  -    7  0.0009  130  -    130  0.0169  0.0159 

iii) non resident individual  19,701  225  19,926  2.5830  19,728  225  19,953  2.5865  0.0035 

iv) investor education and 
protection fund authoriy

 22,497  -    22,497  2.9163  24,843  -    24,843  3.2204  0.3041 

SUB TOTAL (B)(2):  1,58,870  43,275  2,02,145  26.2041  1,61,847  40,208  2,02,055  26.1924  (0.0117)

Total Public Shareholding 
(B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2)  1,58,900  43,335  2,02,235  26.2157  1,61,877  40,352 2,02,229  26.2150  (0.0008)

C. Shares held by Custodian for GDRs 
& ADRs  – – – – – – – – –  

Grand Total (A+B+C)  7,28,094  43,335  7,71,514  100.0000 7,31,077  40,352 7,71,429  100.0000 –   

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % change 
during 

the year
Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares
Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares

Sl. 
No.

Shareholders Name Shareholding at the  
beginning of the year

Shareholding at the  
end of the year % change in 

share holding 
during the year

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of

the company

% of shares pledged 
encumbered to total 

shares

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

% of shares pledged 
encumbered to total 

shares

1 aDitYa viKram loDha  38,043 4.9315  –    38,043 4.9315  –    –   

2 harsh varDhan loDha  43,590 5.6506  –    43,590 5.6506  –    –   

3 anamiKa loDha  220,576 28.5932  –    220,576 28.5932  –    –   

4 simiKa loDha  220,576 28.5932  –    220,576 28.5932  –    –   

5 aDitYa viKram loDha (Karta of 
rajendra singh aditya vikram huf)

 8,133 1.0543  –    8,133 1.0543  –    –   

6 Jain inDustrial anD CommerCial 
serviCes pvt. ltD.

 38,270 4.9609  –    38,270 4.9609  –    –   

7 varDhaman loDha  6 0.0008  –    6 0.0008  –    –   

8 samviKa  loDha – – –  1 0.0001 –  0.0001 

9 viJaY tanDon (trustee of iris family 
trust)

– – –  1 0.0001 –  0.0001 

10 elsi serviCes llp –   –   –  1 0.0001 –  0.0001 

11 avni  loDha – – –    1 0.0001 ––  0.0001 

12 srishti loDha –   – –  1 0.0001 –  0.0001 

13 anoushKa loDha –   –   –    1 0.0001 –  0.0001 

Total 5,69,194 73.7844 5,69,200 73.7851  –      

(ii) SHARE HOLDING OF PROMOTERS
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(iii) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS’ SHAREHOLDING (SPECIFY IF THERE IS NO CHANGE)

Sl. No.

Share holding at the
beginning of the Year

Cumulative Share holding
during the year

No. of 
Shares

% of total shares
of the company

No. of 
Shares

% of total shares
of the company

1   viJaY tanDon (trustee of iris family trust)

at the beginning of the year 0 0.0000 0 0.0000

as on 31/12/2020 - transfer 1 0.0001 1 0.0001

at the end of the year 1 0.0001

2 elsi serviCes llp

at the beginning of the year 0 0.0000 0 0.0000
as on 05/02/2021 - transfer 1 0.0001 1 0.0001

at the end of the year 1 0.0001

3 avni loDha

at the beginning of the year 0 0.0000 0 0.0000

as on 31/03/2021 - transfer 1 0.0001 1 0.0001

at the end of the year 1 0.0001

4 srishti loDha

at the beginning of the year 0 0.0000 0 0.0000

as on 31/12/2020 - transfer 1 0.0001 1 0.0001

at the end of the year 1 0.0001

5 anoushKa loDha

at the beginning of the year 0 0.0000 0 0.0000

as on 31/12/2020 - transfer 1 0.0001 1 0.0001

at the end of the year 1 0.0001

6 samviKa loDha

at the beginning of the year 0 0.0000 0 0.0000

as on 31/12/2020 - transfer 1 0.0001 1 0.0001

at the end of the year 1 0.0001

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters & Holders of GDRs & ADRs) 

Sl. No. For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders

Shareholding at the end of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the company

No. of shares % of total shares of
the company

1 o p ChuGh

at the beginning of the year 1269 0.1645 1269 0.1645

as on 11/09/2020 - transfer -781 -0.1012 488 0.0633

as on 25/09/2020 - transfer -90 -0.0117 398 0.0516

at the end of the year 398 0.0516

2 aJit aravinD prabhu

at the beginning of the year 17989 2.3319 17989 2.3319

at the end of the year 17989 2.3319

3 shalini a prabhu

at the beginning of the year 4188 0.5429 4188 0.5429

as on 10/04/2020 - transfer 3 0.0004 4191 0.5433

as on 17/04/2020 - transfer 19 0.0025 4210 0.5457

as on 19/06/2020 - transfer 23 0.0030 4233 0.5487

as on 26/06/2020 - transfer 20 0.0026 4253 0.5513

as on 10/07/2020 - transfer -39 -0.0051 4214 0.5463

as on 31/07/2020 - transfer -90 -0.0117 4124 0.5346

as on 07/08/2020 - transfer 1 0.0001 4125 0.5347

as on 28/08/2020 - transfer -35 -0.0045 4090 0.5302

as on 11/09/2020 - transfer 1 0.0001 4091 0.5303

as on 18/09/2020 - transfer -21 -0.0027 4070 0.5276

as on 25/09/2020 - transfer 13 0.0017 4083 0.5293
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Sl. No. For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders

Shareholding at the end of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the company

No. of shares % of total shares of
the company

as on 13/11/2020 - transfer 25 0.0032 4108 0.5325

as on 20/11/2020 - transfer 51 0.0066 4159 0.5391

as on 11/12/2020 - transfer 1 0.0001 4160 0.5393

as on 18/12/2020 - transfer -110 -0.0143 4050 0.5250

as on 31/12/2020 - transfer -23 -0.0030 4027 0.5220

as on 15/01/2021 - transfer 1 0.0001 4028 0.5221

as on 12/02/2021 - transfer -26 -0.0034 4002 0.5188

as on 26/02/2021 - transfer 20 0.0026 4022 0.5214

as on 05/03/2021 - transfer -27 -0.0035 3995 0.5179

as on 19/03/2021 - transfer 10 0.0013 4005 0.5192

as on 26/03/2021 - transfer -57 -0.0074 3948 0.5118

at the end of the year 3948 0.5118

4 Keshav GarG

at the beginning of the year 8865 1.1492 8865 1.1492

as on 10/04/2020 - transfer 20 0.0026 8885 1.1518

as on 17/04/2020 - transfer 24 0.0031 8909 1.1549

as on 01/05/2020 - transfer 3 0.0004 8912 1.1553

as on 29/05/2020 - transfer 74 0.0096 8986 1.1649

as on 21/08/2020 - transfer 28 0.0036 9014 1.1685

as on 31/12/2020 - transfer 39 0.0051 9053 1.1735

as on 22/01/2021 - transfer 223 0.0289 9276 1.2024

as on 05/03/2021 - transfer 98 0.0127 9374 1.2151

at the end of the year 9374 1.2151

5 aravinD prabhu K v

at the beginning of the year 9597 1.2441 9597 1.2441

as on 17/04/2020 - transfer -49 -0.0064 9548 1.2377

as on 24/04/2020 - transfer -3 -0.0004 9545 1.2373

as on 01/05/2020 - transfer -9 -0.0012 9536 1.2361

as on 08/05/2020 - transfer -35 -0.0045 9501 1.2316

as on 15/05/2020 - transfer -20 -0.0026 9481 1.2290

as on 22/05/2020 - transfer -1 -0.0001 9480 1.2289

as on 29/05/2020 - transfer 30 0.0039 9510 1.2328

as on 05/06/2020 - transfer 26 0.0034 9536 1.2361

as on 12/06/2020 - transfer -3 -0.0004 9533 1.2358

as on 19/06/2020 - transfer -52 -0.0067 9481 1.2290

as on 26/06/2020 - transfer -20 -0.0026 9461 1.2264

as on 30/06/2020 - transfer -68 -0.0088 9393 1.2176

as on 03/07/2020 - transfer -80 -0.0104 9313 1.2072

as on 10/07/2020 - transfer -106 -0.0137 9207 1.1935

as on 24/07/2020 - transfer 38 0.0049 9245 1.1984

as on 31/07/2020 - transfer -12 -0.0016 9233 1.1969

as on 07/08/2020 - transfer -71 -0.0092 9162 1.1877

as on 14/08/2020 - transfer 10 0.0013 9172 1.1890

as on 21/08/2020 - transfer -24 -0.0031 9148 1.1859

as on 28/08/2020 - transfer 20 0.0026 9168 1.1884

as on 04/09/2020 - transfer 10 0.0013 9178 1.1897

as on 11/09/2020 - transfer -108 -0.0140 9070 1.1757

as on 18/09/2020 - transfer -120 -0.0156 8950 1.1602

as on 25/09/2020 - transfer 10 0.0013 8960 1.1615

as on 30/09/2020 - transfer -16 -0.0021 8944 1.1594

as on 09/10/2020 - transfer 94 0.0122 9038 1.1716

as on 16/10/2020 - transfer 31 0.0040 9069 1.1756

as on 23/10/2020 - transfer 56 0.0073 9125 1.1829
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Sl. No. For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders

Shareholding at the end of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the company

No. of shares % of total shares of
the company

as on 30/10/2020 - transfer 59 0.0076 9184 1.1905

as on 06/11/2020 - transfer 2 0.0003 9186 1.1908

as on 13/11/2020 - transfer 31 0.0040 9217 1.1948

as on 20/11/2020 - transfer 43 0.0056 9260 1.2004

as on 27/11/2020 - transfer 43 0.0056 9303 1.2059

as on 11/12/2020 - transfer 20 0.0026 9323 1.2085

as on 18/12/2020 - transfer -76 -0.0099 9247 1.1987

as on 25/12/2020 - transfer 15 0.0019 9262 1.2006

as on 01/01/2021 - transfer 2 0.0003 9264 1.2009

as on 08/01/2021 - transfer -76 -0.0099 9188 1.1910

as on 15/01/2021 - transfer -18 -0.0023 9170 1.1887

as on 22/01/2021 - transfer 3 0.0004 9173 1.1891

as on 29/01/2021 - transfer -5 -0.0006 9168 1.1884

as on 05/02/2021 - transfer -67 -0.0087 9101 1.1798

as on 12/02/2021 - transfer 1 0.0001 9102 1.1799

as on 19/02/2021 - transfer -11 -0.0014 9091 1.1785

as on 26/02/2021 - transfer 68 0.0088 9159 1.1873

as on 05/03/2021 - transfer -31 -0.0040 9128 1.1833

as on 12/03/2021 - transfer -159 -0.0206 8969 1.1626

as on 19/03/2021 - transfer -74 -0.0096 8895 1.1531

as on 26/03/2021 - transfer -5 -0.0006 8890 1.1524

as on 31/03/2021 - transfer 62 0.0080 8952 1.1604

at the end of the year 8952 1.1604

6 hiteshKumar naranbhai patel

at the beginning of the year 1431 0.1855 1431 0.1855

at the end of the year 1431 0.1855

7 maYYappan rm

at the beginning of the year 2394 0.3103 2394 0.3103

as on 10/04/2020 - transfer 19 0.0025 2413 0.3128

as on 17/04/2020 - transfer 3 0.0004 2416 0.3132

as on 01/05/2020 - transfer 14 0.0018 2430 0.3150

as on 08/05/2020 - transfer 5 0.0006 2435 0.3156

as on 15/05/2020 - transfer 8 0.0010 2443 0.3167

as on 22/05/2020 - transfer 6 0.0008 2449 0.3175

as on 05/06/2020 - transfer -7 -0.0009 2442 0.3166

as on 12/06/2020 - transfer 27 0.0035 2469 0.3201

as on 19/06/2020 - transfer -61 -0.0079 2408 0.3121

as on 26/06/2020 - transfer -7 -0.0009 2401 0.3112

as on 30/06/2020 - transfer -50 -0.0065 2351 0.3048

as on 03/07/2020 - transfer 42 0.0054 2393 0.3102

as on 10/07/2020 - transfer 1 0.0001 2394 0.3103

as on 17/07/2020 - transfer -14 -0.0018 2380 0.3085

as on 11/09/2020 - transfer -50 -0.0065 2330 0.3020

as on 18/09/2020 - transfer -11 -0.0014 2319 0.3006

as on 25/09/2020 - transfer -6 -0.0008 2313 0.2998

as on 30/09/2020 - transfer -15 -0.0019 2298 0.2979

as on 09/10/2020 - transfer -5 -0.0006 2293 0.2972

as on 16/10/2020 - transfer -10 -0.0013 2283 0.2959
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Sl. No. For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders

Shareholding at the end of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the company

No. of shares % of total shares of
the company

as on 05/02/2021 - transfer -10 -0.0013 2273 0.2946

as on 12/02/2021 - transfer -12 -0.0016 2261 0.2931

as on 19/03/2021 - transfer 488 0.0633 2749 0.3564

as on 26/03/2021 - transfer 141 0.0183 2890 0.3746

as on 31/03/2021 - transfer 55 0.0071 2945 0.3818

at the end of the year 2945 0.3818

8 investor eDuCation anD proteCtion funD 
authoritY

at the beginning of the year 22497 2.9163 22497 2.9163

as on 30/09/2020 - transfer 2346 0.3041 24843 3.2204

at the end of the year 24843 3.2204

9 neville Coelho

at the beginning of the year 1410 0.1828 1410 0.1828

at the end of the year 1410 0.1828

10 samir mahenDra shah

at the beginning of the year 2190 0.2839 2190 0.2839

at the end of the year 2190 0.2839

(v) Shareholding of Directors & KMP 

Sl. No For Each of the Directors & KMP

Shareholding at the end of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the company

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the company

1 ramesh tapuriah

at the beginning of the year 132 0.0171 132 0.0171

at the end of the year 132 0.0171

2 simiKa loDha

at the beginning of the year 220576 28.5932 220576 28.5932

at the end of the year 220576 28.5932

3 harsh varDhan loDha

at the beginning of the year 43590 5.6506 43590 5.6506

at the end of the year 43590 5.6506

4 aDitYa viKram loDha

at the beginning of the year 38043 4.9315 38043 4.9315

at the end of the year 38043 4.9315



20

ALfREd HERBERT (iNdiA) LTd.

V iNdEBTEdNEss

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans 
excluding deposits

Unsecured Loans Deposits Total 
Indebtedness

Indebtness at the beginning of the financial year

i) principal amount  –  –  –  –

ii) interest due but not paid  –  –  –  –

iii) interest accrued but not due  –  –  –  –

Total (i+ii+iii)  –  –  –  –

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

additions  –  –  –  –

reduction  –  –  –  –

Net Change  –  –  –  –

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) principal amount  –  –  –  –

ii) interest due but not paid  –  –  –  –

iii) interest accrued but not due  –  –  –  –

Total (i+ii+iii)  –  –  –  –

Vi REmUNERATiON Of diREcTORs ANd KEy mANAgERiAL PERsONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager: 

Sl.No. Particulars of Remuneration Name of the MD/WTD/Manager Total Amount

1 Gross salary

(a) salary as per provisions contained in 

section 17(1) of the income tax. 1961.

 – – – – – – 

(b) value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the 

income tax act, 1961

 – – – – – – 

(c ) Proits in lieu of salary under section 
17(3) of the income tax act, 1961

 – – – – – – 

2 stock option  – – – – – – 

3 sweat equity  – – – – – – 

4 Commission  – – – – – – 

as % of proit  – – – – – – 

others (specify)  – – – – – – 

5 others, please specify  – – – – – – 

Total (A)  – – – – – – 

Ceiling as per the Act  – – – – – – 
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B. Remuneration to other directors: 
sl.no. particulars of remuneration name of the Directors total amount

1 independent Directors

(a) fees for attending

 board / committee meetings

 

ramesh ChanDra tapuriah  70,000 

alKa bhanDari  50,000 

sarDul sinGh Jain  65,000 

(b) Commission  –  –  –  –   

(c) others, please specify  –  –  –  –   

Total (1)  –  –  –  1,85,000 

2 other non executive Directors

(a) fee for attending  

 board / committee meetings

aDitYa viKram loDha  45,000 

harsh varDhan loDha  40,000 

simiKa loDha  40,000 

(b) Commission  –  –  –  -   

(c ) others, please specify.  –  –  –  –   

Total (2)  –  –  –  1,25,000 

Total (B)=(1+2)  –  –  –  3,10,000 

Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act.  3,10,000 

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD 
Sl. No. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel Total

1 Gross salary Cfo & Company secretary Ceo

(a) salary as per provisions contained in section 

17(1) of the income tax act, 1961.

 3,85,168  11,33,008  15,18,176 

(b) value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the income 

tax act, 1961

– – – 

(c ) Proits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 
of the income tax act, 1961

– – – 

2 stock option – – – 

3 sweat equity – – – 

4 Commission as % of Proit – – – 

5 others, please specify – – – 

Total  3,85,168  11,33,008  15,18,176 

VII PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES 
Type Section of the 

Companies Act

Brief 

Description

Details of Penalty/Punishment/

Compounding fees imposed

Authority (RD/

NCLT/Court)

Appeal made if any 

(give details)

A. COMPANY

penalty  –  –  –  –  – 

punishment  –  –  –  –  – 

Compounding  –  –  –  –  – 

B. DIRECTORS

penalty  –  –  –  –  – 

punishment  –  –  –  –  – 

Compounding  –  –  –  –  – 

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

penalty  –  –  –  –  – 

punishment  –  –  –  –  – 

Compounding  –  –  –  –  –
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Code of Conduct:

 the Company has always encouraged and supported 
ethical business practices in personal and corporate 
behaviour by its directors and employees. the Company 
has framed a speciic Code of Conduct for the members 
of the board of Directors and senior management 
personnel of the Company. 

cORPORATE gOVERNANcE REPORT fOR THE yEAR 2020-21

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE

  the Company believes that good corporate governance 
practices would ensure a better transparency, 
accountability, integrity and responsibility in corporate 
actions and thereby would help in boosting investors 
/ stake holder’s conidence in the Company. The focus 
of the Company has always been to ensure continuing 
value creation for its shareholders and above all, to 
achieve business excellence with the goal of long term 
sustainable development.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 the strength of the board of Directors as on 31st march 
2021 is 6 out of which 3 are independent. the board 
is headed by non-executive Chairman. the composition 
of the board of Directors is in conformity with the 
Corporate Governance Code.

 other directorships do not include directorships of 
private limited Companies, foreign Companies and 
companies registered under section 8 of the act. none of 
the Directors is a member of more than 10 Committees 
and Chairman of more than 5 Committees as speciied 
in regulation 26 (1)(b) of sebi listing regulations across 
in which all the Companies in which he is a Director. 
for the purpose of determination of limit of the board 
Committees, chairpersonship and membership of 

the audit Committee and stakeholders’ relationship 
Committee has been considered as per regulation 26(1)
(b) of sebi listing regulations. 

 none of the Directors on the board holds directorship 
in more than 10 (ten) public companies. none of the 
independent Directors serves as an independent Director 
in more than 7 (seven) listed entities.

 During the year, 4 meetings of the board of Directors 
were held on 30.07.2020, 15.09.2020, 13.11.2020 and 
11.02.2021.

 During fY 2020-21, information as mentioned in part a 
of schedule ii of the sebi listing regulations, has been 
placed before the board for its consideration.

 During fY 2020-21, one meeting of the independent 
Directors was held on february 11, 2021. the independent 
Directors, inter-alia, reviewed the performance of non-
independent Directors, board as a whole and Chairman 
of the Company, taking into account the views of 
executive Directors and non-executive Directors.

 the board periodically reviews the compliance reports 
of all laws applicable to the Company.

 the composition and category of the Directors on 
board, their attendance at the board meetings during 
the year and at the last annual General meeting, as also 
number of Directorships and Committee memberships 
/ Chairmanships and number of shares held by them as 
on 31st march 2021 are as follows :

   no. of   no of Details of other

 relationship  board attendance no.of other listed Committee 

name of with other  meetings in last shares Director- membership

Director Directors Category attended a.G.m held ships * member Chairman

mr. a v lodha brother of mr. h v lodha non-independent 4 Yes 38,043 1 - -

  non-executive

mr. h v lodha brother of mr. a v lodha non-independent 4 Yes 43,590 4 2 -

  non-executive

mr. r C tapuriah none independent** 4 Yes 132 3 4 4

  non-executive

mr. s s Jain none independent** 4 Yes - 4 5 5

  non-executive

mrs. simika lodha wife of mr. a v lodha & woman 4 Yes 2,20,576 - - -

 sister- in- law of non-independent

 mr. h v lodha non-executive

mrs. a bhandari none independent**  4 Yes - - - -

  non-executive

*  including alternate Directorships and Directorships of private Companies.

** including 1 meeting of independent Directors

3. Committees of the Board

i)  Audit Committee

 the audit Committee of the board of our Company 
comprises exclusively of independent non-executive 
Directors mr. s s Jain, mr. r C tapuriah and mrs. a. 
bhandari. 

  mr. s. s. Jain is the Chairman of the Committee. the 
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Committee acts as a link between the statutory & 
internal auditors and the board of Directors. the terms 
of reference of the audit Committee are in accordance 
with sub-clause ii of Clause 49 of the listing agreement 
entered into with the stock exchanges and inter-alia 
include:

l To ensure that the inancial reporting process and the 
disclosure of its inancial information at the inancial 
statements are correct, suficient and credible. 

l recommend the appointment of statutory auditors and 
fixation of audit fees. 

l Reviewing, with the Management, the annual inancial 
statements. 

l reviewing, with the management, performance of 
statutory and internal auditors and adequacy of the 
internal Control systems. 

l reviewing the adequacy of internal audit functions. 

l Discussion with statutory auditors and internal auditors 
on nature and scope of audit etc.

l reviewing the Company’s financial and risk 
management policies.

 the Company held 4 audit Committee meetings during 
the year – 30.07.2020, 15.09.2020, 13.11.2020 and 
11.02.2021

 attendances of Directors at these meetings are as under: -

Name of Member Status No. of Meetings 

attended 

mr. s s Jain Chairman 4

mr. r C tapuriah member 4

mrs. a bhandari member 4

ii) Nomination & Remuneration Committee

the nomination & remuneration Committee shall act in 
accordance with the prescribed provisions of section 178 of 
the Companies act, 2013 and shall perform the following 
functions: -

l to formulate the criteria for determining qualiications;
l  to frame and formulate positive attributes and 

independence of a director;

l to recommend to the board a policy, relating to 
the remuneration for the directors, key managerial 
personnel and other employees;

l to identify persons who are qualiied to become directors 
and who may be appointed a senior management in 
accordance with the criteria laid down;

l to recommend to the board their appointment and 
removal and shall carry out evaluation of every director’s 
performance.

During the year, meeting of the nomination & remuneration 
Committee was held on 13.11.2020.

the nomination & remuneration Committee comprise mr. 

r.C. tapuriah as its Chairman, with mr. a.v. lodha and mrs. a 
bhandari as its members.

attendance of Directors at these meetings is as under: -

Name of Member Status No. of Meetings 

attended 

mr. r C tapuriah Chairman 1

mr. a v lodha member 1

mrs. a bhandari member 1

iii) Stakeholders Relationship Committee

the stakeholders relationship Committee looks into issues 
relating to shareholders transfer of shares, redressal of 
Complaints from investors and shall consider and resolve the 
grievances of share holders of the Company.

During the year, the Committee held meeting on 30.07.2020.

the composition and attendance of Directors/members at 

these meetings are as under: 

Name of Member Status No. of Meetings 

attended 

mr. s s Jain Chairman 1

mr. r C tapuriah member 1

mrs. a bhandari member 1

During the year 8 complaints were received from the 
shareholders which were replied/ resolved to the satisfaction 

of the shareholders as on 31st march 2021.

4. Details of sitting fees paid to the Directors during the 

financial Year ended 31st march 2021

Name of Director Sitting Fees Rs.

mr. a.v. lodha … 45,000/-

mr. r.C. tapuriah … 70,000/-

mr. h.v. lodha … 40,000/-

mr. s.s. Jain … 65,000/-

mrs. a. bhandari … 50,000/-

 mrs. s. lodha … 40,000/-

5. General Body Meetings

the last 3 annual General meetings were held as under: -

Year venue Date time

2019-20 virtual annual General meeting held at 14 

Government place east, Kolkata- 700 069

04.09.2020 11:00 a.m.

2018-19 bengal national Chamber of Commerce & industry 

23, r.n mukherjee road, Kolkata – 700 001

12.07.2019 10:30 a.m.

2017-18 bengal national Chamber of Commerce & industry 

23, r.n mukherjee road, Kolkata – 700 001

27.07.2018 10:30 a.m.

there was no special resolution, which required passing 
through postal ballot. at present no special resolution is 
proposed to be passed through a postal ballot or at the 

annual General meeting.
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6. Disclosures

 i) Details of transactions with related parties during 

the year have been furnished in schedule 32 of 

the accounting policies and notes on accounts 

of the annual accounts. there are no materially 

signiicant transactions with related parties i.e. 
Directors, management, subsidiaries and relatives 

conlicting with the Company’s interests.

 ii) the Company has complied with all the requirements 

of the listing agreement with the stock exchanges 

as well as regulations & Guidelines of securities 

and exchange of board of india (sebi). no penalties 

were imposed by sebi, stock exchanges or any 

statutory authorities on matters relating to Capital 

markets during the last three years.

 iii) the Company has complied with all the applicable 

mandatory requirements. the Company has not 

adopted the non- mandatory requirements of the 

listing agreement.

 iv) subsidiary Companies- as per regulation 24 of 

the sebi listing regulations, the audit Committee 

reviews the consolidated inancial statements of 
the Company and the investments made by its 

unlisted subsidiary companies. the minutes of the 

Board meetings along with a report on signiicant 
developments of the unlisted subsidiary companies 

are periodically placed before the board of Directors 

of the Company.

 v) Disclosure under the sexual harassment of 

women at workplace (prevention, prohibition and 

redressal) act, 2018, the Company is not required 

to set up an internal Complaints Committee as per 

the provisions of sexual harassment of women at 

workplace (prevention, prohibition and redressal) 

act, 2018. the Company has not received any 

complaints during the year. 

7. Means of Communications

the quarterly, half-yearly and the annual financial results are 
published in english and vernacular newspapers and are also 
furnished to the stock exchange with whom the Company 
has listing arrangements to enable them to put them on their 
website. the Company’s results are displayed on the website 
www.alfredherbert.co.in.

8. General Shareholder information

i) annual General meeting for fY 2020-21

 pursuant to the General Circular dated april 8, 2020, 
the General Circular dated april 13, 2020, the General 
Circular dated may 5, 2020, the General Circular dated 
June 15, 2020, the General Circular dated september 
28, 2020, the General Circular dated December 31, 2020 
and the General Circular dated January 13, 2021 issued 

by the ministry of Corporate affairs (“mCa Circulars”), 
the 101st annual General meeting (“aGm”) for the year 
ended 31st march, 2021 is scheduled to be held on 
friday, 13th august, 2021 at 10:00 a.m. through video 
Conferencing (“vC”).

 the members may attend the 101st aGm scheduled 
to be held on friday, 13th august, 2021, through vC. 
Detailed instructions for participation are provided in 

the notice of the 101st aGm. 

ii) Next Financial Calendar

  Company’s financial Year is based on 12 months starting 

from 1st april to 31st march

 1st quarterly results : before 15th august 2021

 2nd quarterly results : before 15th november 
2021

 3rd quarterly results : before 15th february 
2022

audited yearly results for 

the year ending 31st march 

2022

: before 30th may 2022

Date of book Closure : from 7th august 2021 to 
13th august 2021 (both 
days inclusive)

Dividend payment Date : on or after 14th august 
2021

iii) Listing of Stock Exchange

the Company’s shares are listed at : bombay stock exchange 

limited

listing fees as prescribed have been paid to the above stock 

exchange for the financial Year 2020-21

stock Code of equity shares of the Company is as under:

bombay stock exchange limited : scrip Code no. 505216

Corporate identity (Cin) : l74999wb1919plC003516

 isin : ine782D01027

iv) market price Data during the financial Year 2020-21:

month
bombay stock exchange ltd.

high (rs.) low (rs.)

april 560.65 500.00

may 555.55 490.00

June 560.65 504.00

July 585.85 509.20

august 579.90 520.00

september 588.00 530.35

october 570.95 515.00
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november 579.00 520.00

December 588.00 523.00

January 575.70 525.00

february 573.90 530.00

march 589.00 525.25

v) Registrar and Share : maheshwari Datamatics pvt. limited

 Transfer Agent  23, r.n mukherjee road, 5th floor, 

   Kolkata – 700 001

   telephone no. 2248 2248 / 2243 5809

   e-mail: mdpldc@yahoo.com

               info@mdpl.in

   fax: (033) 2248 4787

vi) Share Transfer System

all the transfers received are processed by the registrar and 
transfer agents and are approved by the Company secretary 
and Chief Financial Oficer who has been authorised by 
the board of Directors in this regard. share transfers are 
registered and returned within one month from the date of 

lodgment, if documents are complete in all respect.

9. Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March 2021

no. of equity shares 

held

no. of 

shareholders

no. of

equity shares

total % total %

upto 1000 2297 99.1368 119238 15.4568

1001 to 5000 9 0.3884 16588 2.1503

5001 to 10000 4 0.1726 31716 4.1113

10001 to 50000 5 0.2158 162735 21.0953

50001 and above 2 0.0863 441152 57.1863

total 2,317 100 7,71,429 100

no. of shareholders : 2,317

share Capital : 7,71,429

10. Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March 2021

Category no. of 

share-

holders

no. of 

shares held

total share-

holding as a % 

of total share

promoter’s holding

indian promoters 8 3,10,573 40.26

nri promoters 5 2,58,627 33.53

13 5,69,200 73.79

Category no. of 

share-

holders

no. of 

shares held

total share-

holding as a % 

of total share

non-promoters holding

individuals 2,231 1,46,719 19.02

non-resident individuals 27 19,953 2.58

bodies Corporate 34 10,320 1.33

financial institutions/ 
banks 

2 90 0.01

trusts 1 90 0.01

Clearing member 7 130 0.01

investor education & 
protection fund

1 24843 3.22

Central Government/ state 
Government

1 84 0.01

2,304 2,02,229 26.21

Total 2,317 7,71,429 100.00

Dematerialization of shares: - 94.77% of equity shares have 

been dematerialized as on 31st march 2021

11. Share Reconciliation Audit

as stipulated by sebi, a practicing Company secretary carries 

out the share reconciliation audit to reconcile the total 

admitted Capital with nsDl and CDsl and the total issued 

and listed Capital. this audit is carried out every quarter and 

the report thereon is submitted to stock exchanges, nsDl 

and CDsl and is also placed before the board of Directors.

address for correspondence: alfred herbert (india) limited

 13/3 strand road,

 Kolkata – 700 001

telephone nos: 2248 4801/ 2248 4802 / 2226 

8619 / 2229 9124 

fax: (033) 2229 9124

12. Declaration on Code of Conduct

This is to conirm that the Board of Directors of the Company 
has laid down a Code of Conduct for its members and 

senior management personnel of the Company. it is further 

conirmed that all the Directors and Senior Management 
Personnel of the Company has afirmed compliance with 
the Code of Conduct of the Company for the inancial year 
ended 31st march, 2021 as envisaged in Clause 49 of the 

listing agreement with the stock exchanges.

place: Kolkata 

Date: 30th June, 2021
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cERTificATiON Of NON-disQUALificATiON

Of diREcTORs

(pursuant to regulation 34(3) and schedule v para C clause 

(10)(i) of the  sebi (listing obligations and Disclosure 

requirements) regulations, 2015)

to

the members of

alfred herbert (india) limited,

13/3 strand road

Kolkata 700 001

i have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, 

returns and disclosures received from the Directors 

of m/s alfreD herbert (inDia) limiteD having Cin 

L74999WB1919PLC003516 and having registered ofice at 
13/3, strand road, Kolkata- 700001 (hereinafter referred to 

as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the Company for 

the purpose of issuing this Certiicate, in accordance with 
regulation 34(3) read with schedule v para-C sub clause 10(i) 

of the securities exchange board of india (listing obligations 

and Disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015.

in my opinion and to the best of my information and according 

to the veriications (including Directors Identiication Number 
(Din) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered 

necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company 

& its oficers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on 
the board of the Company as stated below for the financial 

Year ending on 31st march, 2021 have been debarred or 

disqualiied from being appointed or continuing as Directors 
of Companies by the securities and exchange board of india, 

ministry of Corporate affairs, or any such other statutory 

authority.

sr.

no. 
name of Director Din

Date of

appointment

in Company

1. sardul singh Jain 00013732 30/10/2004

2. aditya vikram lodha 00036158 24/09/1987

3. harsh vardhan lodha 00394094 20/09/1990

4. ramesh Chandra tapuriah 00395997 25/07/1984

5. simika lodha 02460015 30/03/2015

6. alka bhandari 07737342 27/02/2017

ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/ continuity 
of every director on the board is the responsibility of the 
management of the Company. my responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these based on my veriication. This is neither 
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 
the effectiveness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the Company.
 Cs priyanka tibrewal
 membership no. 7893
place : Kolkata  Cp no. 8843
Date: 30th June, 2021 uDin no. f007893C000632321

cERTificATiON Of cOdE Of cONdUcT

the board of Directors
alfred herbert (india) limited,
13/3 strand road 30th June’2021
Kolkata 700 001

This is to conirm that the Board of Directors of the Company 
has laid down a Code of Conduct for its members and senior 
Management Personnel of the Company. It is further conirmed 
that all the Directors and senior management personnel of the 
Company has afirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct 
of the Company for the financial Year ended 31st march 2021 
as envisaged under schedule v of regulation 34(3) of the sebi 
(listing obligations & Disclosure requirements) regulations, 
2015.

for alfred herbert (india) limited,

v matta
Chief Executive Oficer 

sTATUTORy cOmPLiANcE cERTificATE

the board of Directors
alfred herbert (india) limited,
13/3 strand road
Kolkata 700 001

pursuant to part b of schedule ii of regulation 17(8) of sebi 
(listing obligations & Disclosure requirements) regulations, 
2015, this is to certify that:
a) We, have reviewed inancial statements and cash low 

statement for the year ended 31st march 2021 and that to 
the best of our knowledge and belief:

 i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue 
statement or omit any material fact or contain statements 
that might be misleading;

 ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of 
the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing 
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b) there are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no 
transactions entered into by the Company during the year 
which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s 
code of conduct.

c) we accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining 
internal controls for inancial reporting and that we have 
evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems 
of the Company pertaining to inancial reporting and we 
have disclosed to the auditors and the audit Committee, 
deiciencies in the design or operation of such internal 
controls if any, of which, we are aware and the steps we have 
taken or propose to take to rectify these deiciencies.

d) they have indicated to the auditors and the audit Committee
 i) Signiicant changes in internal control over reporting 

during the year;
 ii) Signiicant change in accounting policies during the year 

and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the 
inancial statements, 

 iii) Instances of signiicant fraud of which they have become 
aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the 
management or an employee having a signiicant role 
in the Company’s internal control system over inancial 
reporting.

shobhana sethi v matta
Company Secretary & Chief Executive Oficer
Chief Financial Oficer
30th June’2021
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to

the members of 

Alfred Herbert (India) Limited

1. This certiicate is issued in accordance with the terms of 
our engagement letter dated 30th July, 2020.

2. this report contains details of compliance of conditions 

of corporate governance by alfred herbert (india) limited 

(‘the Company’) for the year ended 31st march, 2021 

as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27, clause (b) to (i) of 

regulation 46 (2) and paragraphs C, D and e of schedule 

v of the securities and exchange board of india (listing 

obligations and Disclosure requirements) regulations, 

2015 as amended from time to time (‘listing regulations’) 

pursuant to the listing agreement of the Company with 

bombay stock exchange limited.

 management’s responsibility for compliance with the 

conditions of listing regulations

3. the compliance with the terms and conditions contained 

in the corporate governance is the responsibility of the 

management of the Company including the preparation 

and maintenance of all relevant supporting records and 

documents.

Auditor’s Responsibility

4. our examination was limited to procedures and 

implementation thereof adopted by the Company for 

ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate 

Governance. it is neither an audit nor an expression of 

opinion on the inancial statements of the Company.

5. pursuant to the requirements of the listing regulations, 

it is our responsibility to provide a reasonable assurance 

whether the Company has complied with the conditions 

of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the listing 

regulations for the year ended 31st march, 2021.

6. we conducted our examination in accordance with the 

Guidance Note on Reports or Certiicates for Special 
purposes (revised 2016) (the ‘Guidance note’) issued by 

the institute of Chartered accountants of india (‘iCai’). 

the Guidance note requires that we comply with the 

ethical requirements of the Code of ethics issued by iCai.

7. we have complied with the relevant applicable 

requirements of the standard on Quality Control (sQC) 1, 

Quality Control for firms that perform audits and reviews 

of historical financial information, and other assurance 

and related services engagements.

Opinion

8. in our opinion, and to the best of our information and 

according to explanations given to us, we certify that the 

Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate 

Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned listing 

regulations.

9. we state that such compliance is neither an assurance as 

to the future viability of the Company nor the eficiency or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted 

the affairs of the Company.

A Restriction on use

10. The certiicate is addressed and provided to the members 
of the Company solely for the purpose to enable the 

Company to comply with the requirement of the listing 

regulations, and it should not be used by any other 

person or for any other purpose. accordingly, we do 

not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for 

any other purpose or to any other person to whom this 

certiicate is shown or into whose hands it may come 
without our prior consent in writing.

 for a l p s & Co. 

 Chartered accountants

 firm’s iCai regn. no. 313132e

 (r.s.tulsYan)

Kolkata partner 

Dated: 30th June 2021 m. no.  051793

 uDin: 21051793aaaaam8243

iNdEPENdENT AUdiTOR’s REPORT ON cOmPLiANcE WiTH THE cONdiTiONs Of
cORPORATE gOVERNANcE As PER PROVisiONs Of cHAPTER iV OfsEcURiTiEs

AND ExCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE
REqUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015, AS AMENDED
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iNdEPENdENT AUdiTOR’s REPORT

to 

the members of

Alfred Herbert (India) Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone inancial statements of ALFRED HERBERT (INDIA) LIMITED (“the Company”), 
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Proit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
income), the statement of Changes in equity and the Cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the 

standalone inancial statements, including a summary of signiicant accounting policies and other explanatory notes for 
the year ended on that date (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone inancial statements”).

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone 

inancial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“ the Act”) in the manner so required and 
give a true and fair view in conformity with the indian accounting standards prescribed under section 133 of the act read 

with the Companies (indian accounting standards) rules, 2015, as amended, (“ind as”) and other accounting principles 

generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, and its proit (including other 
comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash lows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) speciied under section 143(10) of the Act. 
our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the 

standalone financial statements”section of our report. we are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code 

of ethics issued by the institute of Chartered accountants of india (iCai) together with the ethical requirements that are 

relevant to our audit of the standalone inancial statements under the provisions of the Act, and the Rules thereunder, 
and we have fulilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of 
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion on the standalone inancial statements.

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most signiicance in our audit of the 
standalone inancial statements for the inancial year ended March 31, 2021. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the standalone inancial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do 
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. we have considered the matters described below to be the key audit 

matters for incorporation in our report.

We have fulilled the responsibilities described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the standalone inancial 
statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. accordingly, our audit included the performance 

of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone inancial 
statements. the result of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, 

provide the basis for our opinion on the accompanying standalone inancial statements.
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Key Audit Matters Addressing the Key Audit Matters

Assessment of impairment of investments and loans/ 
advances given to subsidiaries (Refer note no. 40 and 
41 to the accompanying note forming integral part 
of the Standalone Financial Statements)

the outbreak of pandemic CoviD 19 has made substantial 
impact on working of a wholly owned subsidiary 
company and its viability of operation independently. 
the Company has provided the entire investment of rs. 
90 lakhs in that subsidiary.

the Company had given loans and advances which 
aggregates to rs. 541.89 lakhs as at march 31, 2021, 
to its wholly owned subsidiary. this subsidiary has 
incurred loss during the year and as at the year-end 
networth stands eroded. the Company has recognized 
impairment amounting to rs 541.89 lakhs as at march 
31, 2021 (including rs. 460.00 lakhs recognized upto 
march 31, 2020) against the above loans and advances.

we consider this a key audit matter given the relative 
signiicance of value of investment and loans and 
advances to the inancial statements and extent of 
managements judgements and estimates involving 
recoverabilities of the amount there against.

Our audit procedures based on which we arrived 
at the conclusion regarding reasonableness of the 
inventory include the following:

we understood and tested the design and operating 
effectiveness of controls as established by management 
indetermination of appropriateness of the carrying value 
of investment and loans and advances.

we evaluated the Company’s process regarding 
impairment assessment by involving our expertise to 
assist in assessing the appropriateness of the impairment.

We evaluated the cash low forecasts (with underlying 
economic growth rate) by comparing them to the 
budgets provided by the management and our 
understanding of the industry’s external factors.

we assessed the Company’s sensitivity analysis and 
evaluated whether any reasonably foreseeable change in 
assumptions could affect the recoverabilities in future.

we reviewed the investments, loans and advances 
including with respect to the prudential norms guidelines 
for making provision thereagainst as issued by reserve 
bank of india in this respect.

based on the above procedures performed, we observed 
the management’s impairment assessment to be 
reasonable.

Information Other Than The Standalone Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

the Company’s board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. the other information comprises 

the information included in the Annual Report but does not include the standalone inancial statements, consolidated 
inancial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. Our opinion on the standalone inancial statements does not cover 
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone inancial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
identiied above when it becomes available, and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the standalone inancial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 

material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. we have nothing to report with 

respect to the above.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged With Governance For The Standalone Financial Statements

the Company’s board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the act with respect to the 

preparation of these standalone inancial statements that give a true and fair view of the inancial position, inancial 
performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash lows of the Company in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards speciied under 
section 133 of the act read with relevant rules, as amended. this responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 

preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 

making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of 

adequate internal inancial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone inancial statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone inancial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
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basis of accounting unless the board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has 

no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s inancial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities For The Audit of The Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone inancial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. 

reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with sas 

will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to inluence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these standalone inancial statements.

as part of an audit in accordance with sas, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism 

throughout the audit. we also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone inancial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is suficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. the risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls;

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. under section 143(3)(i) of the act, we are also responsible for expressing our 

opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal inancial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls;

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management;

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

signiicant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the standalone inancial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. our conclusions are based on the audit 

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. however, future events or conditions may cause the 

Company to cease to continue as a going concern;

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone inancial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the standalone inancial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone inancial statements that, individually or in aggregate, 
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone inancial statements 
may be inluenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work 
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identiied misstatements in the standalone 
inancial statements.

we communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 

the audit and signiicant audit indings, including any signiicant deiciencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit.

we also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 

thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

from the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 

signiicance in the audit of the standalone inancial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. we describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 

matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 

because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest beneits 
of such communication.
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Report On Other Legal And Regulatory Requirements

1. as required by the Companies (auditor’s report) order, 2016 (“the order”), issued by the Central Government of 

india in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the act, we give in the “annexure a” a statement on the matters 

speciied in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. further to our comments in the annexure referred to in the paragraph above, as required by section 143(3) of the 

act, we report that:

 a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

 b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 

from our examination of those books;

 c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Proit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of 
Changes in equity and the Cash flow statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of 

account;

 d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone inancial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards 
speciied under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015 as amended from time to time;

 e) on the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on march 31, 2021 taken on record 

by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualiied as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a 
director in terms of section 164 (2) of the act;

 f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal inancial controls with reference to the standalone inancial 
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in 

“Annexure B”.Our report expresses an unmodiied opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the 
internal control with reference to the standalone inancial statements of the Company.

3. with respect to the other matters to be included in the auditors’ report in accordance with rule 11 of the Companies 

(audit and auditors) rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 

the explanations given to us:

 i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have impact on its inancial position.

 ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any 

material foreseeable losses.

 iii. there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the investor education and 

protection fund by the company.

4. with respect to the reporting under section 197(16) of the act to be included in the auditors’ report, in our opinion 

and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration (including sitting fees) paid by the 

Company to its Directors during the current inancial year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the 
act and is not in excess of the limit laid down therein.

 for a l p s & Co. 
 Chartered accountants
 firm’s iCai regn. no. 313132e

 (r.s.tulsyan)
 partner 

Kolkata m. no. 51793

Dated: 30th day of June, 2021 uDin no.21051793aaaaaK5128
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i. In respect of the Company’s ixed assets
 a. the Company has maintained proper records 

showing full particulars including quantitative 
details and situations of its ixed assets.

 b. All the ixed assets have not been physically veriied 
by the management during the year but there is 
a regular programme of veriication which, in our 
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of 
the company and the nature of its assets. no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such veriication.

 c. the title deed of immoveable properties are held in 
the name of the Company.

ii. the Company does not have any inventory. accordingly, 
provisions of Clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of the aforesaid 
order, are not applicable to the Company.

iii. according to the information and explanation given 
to us, the company has not granted any other loans, 
secured or unsecured, to companies, irms, Limited 
liability partnerships or other parties covered in the 
register maintained under section 189 of the act, except 
to its wholly owned subsidiary company. the terms 
and conditions are not prejudicial to the interest of the 
Company. however, no interest has been recognized 
during the year on loan given to its subsidiary company 
and full provision for doubtful is made, considering the 
prudential Guidelines issued by reserve bank of india 
(Refer Note 7.3 to the standalone inancial statements).

iv. in our opinion, and according to the information and 
explanation given to us, the Company has complied 
with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the act 
in respect of the loans and investments made, and 
guarantees and security provided by it, as applicable.

v. the Company has not accepted any deposits from the 
public within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 or any 
other relevant provisions of the act, and the rules 
framed there under.

vi. The maintenance of Cost records has not been speciied 
by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of 
section 148 of the act, for the Company.

vii. according to the information and explanations given to us 
and based on our examination of the books of account:

 a. the Company is generally regular in depositing 
with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory 
dues including provident fund, employee’s state 
insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, Duty 
of Customs, Duty of excise, value added tax, Cess 
and any other statutory dues to the appropriate 
authorities.

  on the basis of the records of the Company and the 
information and explanations given to us, there was 
no arrears of outstanding statutory dues as on the 
last day of the inancial year concerned outstanding 
for a period of more than six months from the date 
they became payable.

 b. according to the records of the Company and 
according to the information and explanations given 
to us, there are no dues of income tax, sales tax, 

service tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of excise, value 
added tax and Cess which have not been deposited 
on account of any dispute.

viii. The Company has no borrowings from inancial 
institution, bank, government and the Company has 
no debenture holders.  accordingly, clause (viii) of 
paragraph 3 of the aforesaid   order is not applicable to 
the Company.

ix. according   to   the   information   and   explanations 
given to us, the Company has not raised money by way of 
initial public offer or further public offer including debt 
instruments and term loan during the year. accordingly, 
clause (ix) of paragraph 3 of the aforesaid order is not 
applicable to the Company.

x. During the course of our examination of books and 
records of the Company carried out in accordance with 
generally accepted auditing practices in india, and 
according to the information and explanations given to 
us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud 
by the Company or any fraud on the Company by its 
oficers or employees, noticed or reported during the 
year, nor have we been informed of any such cases by 
the management.

xi. according to the information and explanations given to 
us, no managerial remuneration is paid during the year 
by the Company. accordingly, clause (xi) of paragraph 3 
of the aforesaid order is not applicable to the Company.

xii. the Company is not a nidhi Company. accordingly, 
clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the aforesaid order is not   
applicable to the Company.

xiii. on the basis of our examination of the books of account 
of the Company and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the transactions entered into 
with the related parties are in compliance with section 
177 and 188 of the act and the same has been disclosed 
in the standalone inancial statements as required by the 
applicable accounting standards.

xiv. the Company has not made any preferential allotment or 
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 
debentures during the year under review.

xv. on the basis of our examination of the records of 
the Company and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has not entered 
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons 
connected with him.

xvi. the Company is registered under section 45-ia of the 
reserve bank of india act, 1934 and has received registration 
certiicate from the Reserve Bank of India and the Certiicate 
no. is n.05.04665 dated 29th november 2001.

 for a l p s & Co. 

 Chartered accountants

 firm’s iCai regn. no. 313132e

 (r.s.tulsyan)

Kolkata partner 

Dated: 30th day of June, 2021 m. no. 51793

 uDin no.21051793aaaaaK5128

Annexure “A” to Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 
report of even date)
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Annexure “B” to Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in paragraph (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to 
standalone financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
We have audited the internal inancial controls with reference 
to standalone inancial statements of ALFRED HERBERT 
(inDia) limiteD (“the Company”) as at march 31, 2021 
in conjunction with our audit of the standalone inancial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
Management’s Responsibility For Internal Financial 
Controls With Reference To The Standalone Financial 
Statement
the board of Directors of the company is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal inancial controls based 
on the internal control with reference to standalone inancial 
statements criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
note on audit of internal financial Controls over financial 
reporting (“the Guidance note”) issued by the institute of 
Chartered accountants of india (iCai). these responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal inancial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and eficient conduct 
of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, 
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
inancial information, as required under the Act.
Auditors’ Responsibility
our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 
internal inancial controls with reference to standalone 
inancial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with the Guidance note issued by iCai and 
the standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) 
of the act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
inancial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal inancial controls with reference 
to the standalone inancial statements was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects.
our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal inancial controls 
system with reference to the standalone inancial statements 
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal inancial 
controls with reference to the standalone inancial statements 
included obtaining an understanding of internal inancial 
controls with reference to standalone inancial statements, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing 
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. the procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
standalone inancial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
suficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal inancial controls system 
with reference to standalone inancial statements.

Meaning Of Internal Financial Controls With Reference To 
Standalone Financial Statements
A company’s internal inancial control with reference to 
the standalone inancial statements is a process designed 
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
inancial reporting and the preparation of the standalone 
inancial statements for external purposes in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles. a company’s 
internal inancial control with reference to the standalone 
inancial statements includes those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly relect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of the standalone inancial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company 
are being made only in accordance with authorizations 
of management and directors of the company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of 
the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 
standalone inancial statements.
Inherent Limitations Of Internal Financial Controls With 
Reference To Standalone Financial Statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal inancial 
controls with reference to the standalone inancial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal inancial controls 
with reference to the standalone inancial statements 
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
inancial control with reference to the standalone inancial 
statements may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies 
or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion
in our opinion, to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all 
material respects, an adequate internal inancial controls with 
reference to the standalone inancial statements and such 
internal inancial controls with reference to the standalone 
inancial statements were operating effectively as at March 
31, 2021, based on the internal control with reference to 
standalone inancial statements criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance note on audit of internal 
financial Controls over financial reporting issued by the 
institute of Chartered accountants of india.
 for a l p s & Co. 
 Chartered accountants
 firm’s iCai regn. no. 313132e

 (r.s.tulsyan)
Kolkata partner 
Dated: 30th day of June, 2021 m. no. 51793
 uDin no.21051793aaaaaK5128
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Standalone Balance Sheet
as at 31st march, 2021                                                                                                                                 (rs. in lakhs)

     As at as at

    note 31st March, 31st march,

    number 2021 2020

ASSETS

(i) financial assets

 (a) Cash and cash equivalents 5  3.96 555.06

 (b) other bank balances 6  22.86 21.65 

 (c) loans 7 - -

 (d) investments 8 6,104.88 4,343.19 

 (e) Other inancial assets 9 50.26 48.02

 Total financial assets   6,181.96 4,967.92

(II) Non financial assets

 (a) Current tax assets (net) 10 42.59 46.03

 (b) investment property 11 284.26 284.26

 (c) property, plant and equipment 12 135.56 152.46

 (d) Capital work in progress   2,438.01 2,031.18

 (e) Other non inancial assets 13  38.82 59.23

 Total non financial assets   2,939.24 2,573.16

 TOTAL ASSETS   9,121.20 7,541.08

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

(I) Financial liabilities

 (a) lease liabilities 14 46.77 57.86

 (b) Other inancial liabilities 15 65.58 50.69

 Total financial liabilities   112.35 108.55

(II) Non financial liabilities

 (a) provisions 16 1.20 0.69 

 (b) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 17 237.53 101.13

 (c) Other non inancial liabilities 18  8.63 10.03

 Total non financial liabilities   247.36 111.85

(III) Equity

 (a) equity share capital 19  77.14 77.14

 (b) other equity 20  8,684.34 7,243.54

 Total equity   8,761.48 7,320.68

 Total liabilities   359.71 220.40

 TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY   9,121.20 7,541.08 

accompanying notes to standalone financial statements           1 - 44   

the accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements 
as per our report of even date attached

for alps & Co. For and on behalf of the Board 
Chartered accountants    
firm registration no. : 313132e v. matta r. C. tapuriah 
r s tulsyan Chief Executive Officer Director
Partner pan : aDmpm4399r Din-00395997
membership no. : 051793
 shobhana sethi s. s. Jain
place : Kolkata Company Secretary & Chief Financial Officer Director
Dated: 30th June, 2021  pan : Dlbps7691G Din-00013732
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Standalone Statement of Proit and Loss
for the year ended 31st March, 2021                                                             (Rs in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

PARTICULARS
note
no.

For the year 
ended

March 31, 2021

for the year 
ended

march 31, 2020

revenue from operations

(i)   interest income 21  51.20  59.24 

(ii)  Dividend income 22  24.54  113.39 

(iii) net gain on fair value changes 23  162.13  109.64 

(I) Total revenue from operations  237.87  282.27 

(II) Other income 24  40.74  38.58 

(III) Total income (I + II)  278.61  320.85 

Expenses

(i)   finance costs 25  6.48  6.19 

(ii)  Impairment on inancial instruments 26  81.89  90.00 

(iii) Employee beneits expense 27  47.76  48.56 

(iv) Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 28  17.63  16.38 

(v)  other expenses 29  44.43  50.73 

(IV) Total Expenses  198.19  211.86 

(V) Profit/(loss) before exceptional item and tax (III - IV)  80.42  108.99 

(VI) Exceptional item 26a  90.00  - 

(VII) Profit/(loss) before tax (V - VI)  (9.58)  108.99 

(VIII) Tax expense 30

Current tax  7.55  - 

Deferred tax - charge/(credit)  17.44  23.43 

(IX) Profit for the year (VII - VIII)  (34.57)  85.56 

(X) Other comprehensive income

(i)  Items that will not be reclassiied to proit or loss 30  1,639.54  (871.03)

(ii) income tax relating to above
     - Current tax 18.20 -

     - Deferred tax 118.96 (653.79)

total other comprehensive income for the year (i - ii)  1,502.38  (217.24)

(XI) Total comprehensive income for the year (IX + X)  1,467.81  (131.68)

(XII) Earnings per equity share (Face value of Rs.10 each)

basic (rs)  (4.48)  11.09 

Diluted (rs)  (4.48)  11.09 

accompanying notes to standalone financial statements           1 - 44  

the accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements 
as per our report of even date attached

for alps & Co. For and on behalf of the Board 
Chartered accountants    
firm registration no. : 313132e v. matta r. C. tapuriah 
r s tulsyan Chief Executive Officer Director
Partner pan : aDmpm4399r Din-00395997
membership no. : 051793
 shobhana sethi s. s. Jain
place : Kolkata Company Secretary & Chief Financial Officer Director
Dated: 30th June, 2021  pan : Dlbps7691G Din-00013732
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(i) Equity Share Capital
Particulars (Rs. in Lakhs)
As at March 31, 2019   77.14
movement during the year  -
As at March 31, 2020   77.14
movement during the year  -
As at March 31, 2021   77.14

(ii) Other Equity
As at March 31, 2021                                                                                                    (rs. in lakhs)

particulars
reserves and surplus other Comprehensive income

totalCapital 

reserve

Capital revalu-

ation reserve

statutory reserve (in terms of section 

45iC of reserve bank of india act, 1934) 

General 

reserve

retained

earnings

remeasurement of 

Deined Beneit Plans
equity instrument through 

other Comprehensive income
as at march 31, 2019  0.10  50.36  822.12  3,260.00  653.71  0.00  2,612.18  7,398.47 
Proit for the year  -  -  -  -  85.56  -  -  85.56 
other comprehensive income for the year  -  -  -  -  -  0.19  (217.43)  (217.24)
transfer from retained earnings to statutory reserve  -  -  17.15  -  (17.15)  -  -  - 
transfer from retained earnings to General reserve  -  -  -  240.00  (240.00)  -  -  - 
transfer from other comprehensive income to retained earnings  -  -  -  -  0.19  (0.19)  -  - 
transfer to retained earnings on disposal of equity instruments  -  -  -  -  1,006.56  -  (1,006.56)  - 
Dividend paid including Dividend Distribution tax  -  -  -  -  (23.25)  -  -  (23.25)
As at March 31, 2020  0.10  50.36  839.27  3,500.00  1,465.62  (0.00)  1,388.19  7,243.54 
Proit for the year  -  -  -  -  (34.57)  -  -  (34.57)
other comprehensive income for the year  -  -  -  -  -  (0.20)  1,502.58  1,502.38 
transfer from retained earnings to statutory reserve  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
transfer from retained earnings to General reserve  -  -  -  100.00  (100.00)  -  -  - 
transfer from other comprehensive income to retained earnings  -  -  -  -  (0.20)  0.20  -  - 
transfer to retained earnings on disposal of equity instruments  -  -  -  -  276.01  -  (276.01)  - 
Dividend paid during the year  -  -  -  -  (27.00)  -  -  (27.00)
As at March 31, 2021  0.10  50.36  839.27  3,600.00  1,579.86  (0.00)  2,614.77  8,684.34 

refer note no. 20 for nature and purpose of reserves. 

accompanying notes to standalone financial statements           1 - 44  

the accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements 

as per our report of even date attached

for alps & Co. For and on behalf of the Board 
Chartered accountants
firm registration no. : 313132e v. matta r. C. tapuriah 
r s tulsyan Chief Executive Officer Director
Partner pan : aDmpm4399r Din-00395997
membership no. : 051793
 shobhana sethi s. s. Jain
place : Kolkata Company Secretary & Chief Financial Officer Director
Dated: 30th June, 2021  pan : Dlbps7691G Din-00013732

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31st March, 2021
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PARTICULARS
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2021 
 for the year ended 

march 31, 2020 
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax  (9.58)  108.99 
Adjustments for :

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment expense  17.63  16.38 
finance costs  6.48  6.19 
rental income as per eir method  (0.73)  (0.73)
net (gain)/loss on fair value changes  (162.13)  (109.64)
Impairment on inancial instruments  171.89  90.00 

Operating profit before working capital changes  23.56  111.19 
Movement in working capital:

Decrease/(increase) in loans and advances  (81.89)  (90.00)
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables  18.11  (26.95)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables  13.40  28.96 
(Decrease)/increase in provisions  0.31  0.67 

Cash (utilised in)/generated from operations (26.51)  23.86 
taxes (paid)/refund  (22.31)  5.32 

Net Cash generated from/(utilised in) operating activities  (48.82)  29.19 
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

additions to property, plant and equipment, investment 
property and capital work in progress

 (407.55)  (515.46)

(purchase)/sale of investments (net)  (49.82)  1,045.10 
additions to other bank balances  (1.04)  (16.06)

Net Cash generated from/(utilised in) investing activities  (458.41)  513.59 
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

repayment of lease liabilities  (16.87)  (14.22)
Dividend paid  (27.00)  (19.29)
Corporate dividend tax paid  -  (3.96)

Net cash utilised in financing activities  (43.87)  (37.47)
net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (551.10)  505.30 
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year  555.06  49.76 
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year  3.96  555.06 

Notes:
(i) The above cash low statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in the Indian 

accounting standard 7 “statement of Cash flows”.
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents as at the balance sheet date consists of:

 (rs. in lakhs) 
particulars As at March 31, 2021  as at march 31, 2020 

Cash on hand  0.04  0.12 
Balances with banks

 in Current accounts  3.92  61.94 
 in fixed Deposit accounts  -  493.00 

Total  3.96  555.06 

accompanying notes to standalone financial statements           1 - 44  
the accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements 
as per our report of even date attached
for alps & Co. For and on behalf of the Board 
Chartered accountants    
firm registration no. : 313132e v. matta r. C. tapuriah 
r s tulsyan Chief Executive Officer Director
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 shobhana sethi s. s. Jain
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Standalone Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31st March, 2021

(rs. in lakhs)
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1 Corporate Information

 the alfred herbert (india) limited (‘the Company”) is a non-

Banking Finance Company (NBFC) having the registered ofice 
at herbert house 13/3, strand road, Kolkata-700 001, engaged 

in non-banking inancial activities inancial service activities. 
it has been registered with the reserve bank of india (rbi) 

as a non-banking finance Company (nbfC) and is therefore 

governed by directions and laws issued for nbfC by rbi.

2 Statement of Compliance with Ind AS and Recent 

Pronouncements 

 2.1 These inancial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with indian accounting standards (“ind as”) 

prescribed under section 133 of the Companies act, 2013 

(“act”) read with rule 3 of the Companies (indian accounting 

standards) rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time). 

Ind ASs issued and notiied by the Ministry of Corporate 
affairs under the Companies (indian accounting standards) 

Rules, 2015 (as amended) till the inancial statements 
approved for issue by the board of Directors have been 

considered in preparing these inancial statements. 
accounting policies have been consistently applied except 

where a newly issued indian accounting standard is initially 

adopted or a revision to an existing indian accounting 

standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto 

in use.

 2.2 Recent Pronouncements

 Proposed amendments to Indian Accounting Standards 

(Ind AS)

 on June 18, 2021, ministry of Corporate affairs (“mCa”) has 

issued Companies (indian accounting standards) amendment 

rules, 2021 notifying amendments to certain existing ind 

as. these amendments have been made effective from the 

date of publication in the Oficial Gazette i.e. on 18th June, 
2021. Certain such ind as which are relevant to companies 

operations includes ind as 1 ‘presentation of financial 

statements’, ind as 8 ‘accounting policies, Changes in 

estimates and errors’, ind as 12 ‘income taxes’, ind as 16 

‘property, plant and equipments’, ind as 27 ‘separate financial 

statements’, ind as 34 ‘interim financial reporting’, ind as 37 

‘provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets’, ind 

as 38 ‘intangible assets’, ind as 107 ‘financial instruments: 

Disclosures’, ind as 109 ‘financial instruments’, ind as 115 

‘revenue from Contracts with Customers’, ind as 116 ‘leases’.  

even though the company will evaluate the impact of the 

above, none of these amendments as such are vital in nature 

and as are not likely to have any material impact on the inancial 
statements of the company. there are other amendments in 

various others ind as which have not been listed hereinabove 

since these are not relevant to the company.  

    

3 Significant Accounting Policies

 3.1 Basis of Preparation

 the standalone financial statements have been prepared 

under the historical cost convention on accrual basis excepting 

certain inancial instruments which are measured in terms of 
relevant ind as at fair value/ amortized costs at the end of each 

reporting period.

 historical cost convention is generally based on the fair value 

of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

 the standalone financial statements are presented in indian 

rupees and all values are rounded off to the nearest lakhs upto 

two decimal places.

 3.2 Fair Value Measurement

 fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset 

or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 

market participants at the measurement date under current 

market conditions.

 the Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at 

fair value into one of three levels depending on the ability to 

observe inputs employed for such measurement:

 level 1: inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets 

for identical assets or liabilities.

 level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 

1 that are observable either directly or indirectly for the asset 

or liability.

 level 3: inputs for the asset or liability which are not based on 

observable market data (unobservable inputs).

 the company has an established control framework with 

respect to the measurement of fair values. this includes a 

inance team that has overall responsibility for overseeing 
all signiicant fair value measurements who regularly review 
signiicant unobservable inputs, valuation adjustments and 
fair value hierarchy under which the valuation should be 

classiied.

 3.3 Property Plant and Equipment

 property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition, 

construction and subsequent improvements thereto less 

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. for 

this purpose cost include deemed cost on the date of transition 

and comprises purchase price of assets or its construction cost 

including duties and taxes, inward freight and other expenses 

incidental to acquisition or installation and adjustment for 

exchange differences wherever applicable and any cost directly 

attributable to bring the asset into the location and condition 

necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner 

intended for its use.
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 parts of an item of property, plant and equipment having 

different useful lives and material value and subsequent 

expenditure on property, plant and equipment arising on 

account of capital improvement or other factors are accounted 

for as separate components.

 the cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and 

equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item 

if it is probable that the future economic beneits embodied 
within the part will low to the Company and its cost can be 
measured reliably. the costs of the day-to-day servicing of 

property, plant and equipment are recognised in the income 

statement when incurred.

 3.4 Investment Property

 investment properties are properties held to earn rentals 

or for capital appreciation, or both. investment properties 

are measured initially at their cost of acquisition. the cost 

comprises purchase price, borrowing cost, if capitalisation 

criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the 

asset to its working condition for the intended use. subsequent 

costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised 

as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable 

that the future economic beneits associated with the item will 
low to the Company. All other repair and maintenance costs 
are recognised in the Statement of Proit and Loss as incurred.

 3.5 Derecognition of Tangible Assets and Investment 

Property

 an item of property, plant and equipment and investment 

property is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future 

economic beneits are expected to arise from its use or disposal. 
Gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item 

of property, plant and equipment and investment property 

is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds 

and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the 

Statement of Proit and Loss. 

 3.6 Impairment of Tangible Assets and Investment 

Property

 tangible assets and investment property are reviewed at 

each balance sheet date for impairment. in case events and 

circumstances indicate any impairment, recoverable amount of 

assets is determined. an impairment loss is recognized in the 

statement of proit and loss, whenever the carrying amount 
of assets either belonging to Cash Generating unit (CGu) 

or otherwise exceeds recoverable amount. the recoverable 

amount is the higher of asset’s fair value less cost of disposal 

and its value in use. in assessing value in use, the estimated 

future cash lows from the use of the assets are discounted to 
their present value at appropriate rate. 

 impairment losses recognized earlier may no longer exist 

or may have come down. based on such assessment at 

each reporting period the impairment loss is reversed and 

recognized in the Statement of Proit and Loss. In such cases 
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the lower of its 

recoverable amount and the carrying amount that have been 

determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been 

recognized for the asset in prior years. 

 3.7 Capital work in progress and Capital Advances

 Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the balance 

sheet date, is shown as Capital work in progress. advances 

given towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment 

outstanding at each balance sheet date are disclosed in other 

non financial assets. 

 3.8 Foreign Currency Transactions

 transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for at the 

exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. foreign 

currency assets and liabilities are translated at exchange rates 

prevailing at the year end. the loss or gain thereon and also on 

the exchange differences on settlement of the foreign currency 

transaction during the year are recognized in the statement 

of Proit & Loss, except in the cases where any ixed asset 
acquired from a country outside india, in such case, these are 

adjusted to the cost of respective ixed assets. 

 3.9 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (inancial instruments) 
are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the instruments.

 Financial assets and inancial liabilities are initially measured 
at fair value. transaction costs that are directly attributable 

to the acquisition or issue of inancial assets and inancial 
Liabilities (other than inancial assets and inancial liabilities 
at fair value through proit or loss) are added to or deducted 
from the fair value of the inancial assets or inancial liabilities, 
as appropriate, on initial recognition. transaction costs directly 

attributable to the acquisition of inancial assets or inancial 
liabilities at fair value through proit or loss are recognised 
immediately in the Statement of Proit and Loss.

 The classiication of inancial instruments whether to be 
measured at Amortized Cost, at Fair Value through Proit and 
loss (fvtpl) or at fair value through other Comprehensive 

income (fvtoCi) depends on the objective and contractual 

terms to which they relate. Classiication of inancial 
instruments are determined on initial recognition.

 (i) Cash and cash equivalents 

 All highly liquid inancial instruments, which are readily 
convertible into determinable amounts of cash and which 

are subject to an insigniicant risk of change in value and are 
having original maturities of three months or less from the 

date of purchase, are considered as cash equivalents. Cash 

and cash equivalents includes balances with banks which are 

unrestricted for withdrawal and usage. 

 (ii) Investment in subsidiaries

 the Company has chosen to carry investments in subsidiaries 

at cost less impairment, if any in the standalone inancial 
statements. 
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 (iii) Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities measured at 

amortised cost

 financial assets held within a business whose objective is to 

hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash lows 
and the contractual terms of the inancial asset give rise on 
speciied dates to cash lows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding are 

measured at amortized cost. 

 the above financial assets and financial liabilities subsequent 

to initial recognition are measured at amortized cost using 

effective interest rate (eir) method. 

 the effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated 

future cash payments or receipts (including all fees and points 

paid or received, transaction costs and other premiums or 

discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or 

Financial Liability to the gross carrying amount of the inancial 
asset or to the amortised cost of inancial liability, or, where 
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on 

initial recognition. 

 (iv) Financial Asset at Fair Value through Other 

Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

 financial assets are measured at fair value through other 

comprehensive income if these inancial assets are held within 
a business whose objective is achieved by both collecting 

contractual cash lows and selling inancial assets and the 
contractual terms of the inancial asset give rise on speciied 
dates to cash lows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding. subsequent to 

initial recognition, they are measured at fair value and changes 

therein are recognised directly in other comprehensive 

income. 

 (v) for the purpose of para (iii) and (iv) above, principal is 

the fair value of the inancial asset at initial recognition and 
interest consists of consideration for the time value of money 

and associated credit risk.

 (vi) Financial Assets or Liabilities at Fair value through 

profit or loss

 financial instruments which does not meet the criteria of 

amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive 

income are classiied as Fair Value through Proit or loss. These 
are recognised at fair value and changes therein are recognized 

in the statement of proit and loss. 

 (vii) Impairment of financial assets

 A inancial asset is assessed for impairment at each balance 
sheet date. A inancial asset is considered to be impaired if 
objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had 

a negative effect on the estimated future cash lows of that 
asset. 

 The company measures the loss allowance for a inancial asset 
at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if 

the credit risk on that inancial instrument has increased 

signiicantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a 
inancial instrument has not increased signiicantly since initial 
recognition, the company measures the loss allowance for 

that inancial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month 
expected credit losses. 

 however, for trade receivables or contract assets that result 

in relation to revenue from contracts with customers, the 

company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 

lifetime expected credit losses. 

 (viii) Derecognition of financial instruments

 The Company derecognizes a inancial asset or a group of 
inancial assets when the contractual rights to the cash lows 
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the inancial asset 
and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the 

asset to another party. 

 On derecognition of a inancial asset (except for equity 
instruments designated as fvtoCi), the difference between 

the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration 

received and receivable are recognized in statement of proit 
and loss. 

 on derecognition of assets measured at fvtoCi the cumulative 

gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive 

income is reclassiied from equity to proit or loss as a 
reclassiication adjustment. 

 financial liabilities are derecognized if the Company’s 

obligations speciied in the contract expire or are discharged or 
cancelled. the difference between the carrying amount of the 

inancial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and 
payable is recognized in Statement of Proit and Loss. 

 3.10 Equity Share Capital

 an equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual 

interest in the assets of the company after deducting all of 

its liabilities. par value of the equity shares is recorded as 

share capital and the amount received in excess of par value is 

classiied as Securities Premium. 

 Costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares 

are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax 

effects. 

 3.11 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 

Assets 

 provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in 

measurement are recognized when there is a legal or 

constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is 

probable that there will be an outlow of resources and a 
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. 

provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. the 

amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the 

consideration required to settle the present obligation at the 

end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and 

uncertainties surrounding the obligation. 

 Contingent liabilities are not recognized and are disclosed by 
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way of notes to the standalone inancial statements when there 
is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence 

of which will be conirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly 

within the control of the Company or when there is a present 

obligation that arises from past events where it is either not 

probable that an outlow of resources will be required to settle 
the same or a reliable estimate of the amount in this respect 

cannot be made. 

 Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the 

standalone financial statements by way of notes to accounts 

when an inlow of economic beneits is probable. 
 3.12 Employee Benefits

 Employee beneits are accrued in the year in which services are 
rendered by the employees. Short term employee beneits are 
recognized as an expense in the statement of proit and loss 
for the year in which the related service is rendered. 

 (i) Gratuity (Deined Beneit Plan) : The Company has a Gratuity 
fund administered by the trustees, which is independent of 

the Company’s inance. The liability in respect of Gratuity has 
been determined by actuarial valuation following projected 

unit Credit method. 

 (ii) leave encashment : according to the prevailing practice of 

the Company, the employees are allowed to enjoy the leave 

within the year. no encashment of leave is allowed. 

 iii) Provident Fund (Deined Contribution Scheme) : Accounted 
for on accrual basis based on the monthly contribution made 

to the appropriate authorities. 

 3.13 Recognition of Dividend and Interest Income

 revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the 

economic beneits will low to the Company and the revenue 
can be reliably measured. Dividend income is recognised when 

the Company’s right to receive the payment is established. 

under ind as 109, interest income is recorded using the 

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method for all inancial instruments 
measured at amortised cost. the eir is the rate that exactly 

discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected 

life of the inancial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter 
period, to the net carrying amount of the inancial asset. The 
eir (and therefore the amortised cost of the asset) is calculated 

by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, 

fees and costs that are an integral part of the eir.

 3.14 Leases

 As a lessee

 a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys 

the right to control the use of an identiied asset 
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 

the Company’s lease asset class primarily consist of leases for 

land, plant and machinery and building. at the inception of the 

contract, Company assess whether a contract is, or contains, a 

lease. a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys 

the right to control the use of an identiied asset for a period 

of time in exchange for consideration. to assess whether a 

contract conveys the right to control the use of an identiied 
asset, the Company assesses whether: 

 (i) the contract involves the use of an identiied asset 

 (ii) Company has substantially all of the economic beneits 
from the use of the asset through the period of the lease and

 (iii) Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

 at the date of commencement of the lease, Company 

recognizes a right-of-use asset (“”rou””) and a corresponding 

lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, 

except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-

term leases) and low-value leases. for these short-term or low-

value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as 

an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term 

of the lease. the right-of-use assets are initially recognized 

at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease 

liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before 

the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct 

cost less any lease incentives. they are subsequently measured 

at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or 

terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. rou assets 

and lease liabilities include these options when it is reasonably 

certain that they will be exercised. the lease liability is initially 

measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future 

lease payments. the lease payments are discounted using the 

interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, 

using the incremental borrowing rates. lease liabilities are 

remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related 

right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if 

whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option. 

on the balance sheet, rou assets have been included in 

property, plant and equipment and lease liabilities have been 

included in borrowings and other inancial liabilities.

 3.15 Taxes on Income

 income tax expense representing the sum of current tax 

expense and the net charge of the deferred taxes is recognized 

in the income statement except to the extent that it relates 

to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive 

income. 

 Current tax is provided on the taxable income and recognized 

at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the 

tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been 

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting 

period. 

 Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between 

the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the standalone 

financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used 

in the computation of taxable proit. Deferred tax liabilities 
are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. 

Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible 

temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that 
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taxable proits will be available against which those deductible 
temporary differences can be utilized. 

 Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates 

that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is 

settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) 

that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of 

the reporting period. 

 the carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the 

end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that 

it is no longer probable that suficient taxable proits will be 
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be 

utilized. 

 3.16 Earnings Per Share

 basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net 

proit attributable to the equity shareholders of the company 
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 

during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by 

dividing the net proit attributable to the equity shareholders 
of the company by the weighted average number of equity 

shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and 

also the weighted average number of equity shares that could 

have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential 

equity shares 

4 Critical accounting judgments, assumptions and key 

sources of estimation and uncertainty

 The preparation of the standalone inancial statements 
in conformity with the measurement principle of ind as 

requires management to make estimates, judgments and 

assumptions. these estimates, judgments and assumptions 

affect the application of accounting policies and the reported 

amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent 

assets and liabilities at the date of the standalone inancial 
statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses 

during the period. accounting estimates could change from 

period to period. actual results could differ from those 

estimates. appropriate changes in estimates are made as 

management becomes aware of changes in circumstances 

surrounding the estimates. Differences between the actual 

results and estimates are recognized in the year in which the 

results are known / materialized and, if material, their effects 

are disclosed in the notes to the inancial statements. 
 Application of accounting policies that require signiicant 

areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments and 

the use of assumptions in the inancial statements have been 
disclosed below. the key assumptions concerning the future 

and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance 

sheet date, that have a signiicant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities 

within the next inancial year are discussed below: 
 4.1 Depreciation and impairment on property, plant and 

equipment and investment property

 property, plant and equipment are depreciated on straight-

line basis over the estimated useful lives in accordance with 

schedule ii of the Companies act, 2013, taking into account 

the estimated residual value, wherever applicable. 

 the company reviews its carrying value of its tangible 

assets and investment property whenever there is objective 

evidence that the assets are impaired. in such situation asset’s 

recoverable amount is estimated which is higher of asset’s or 

cash generating units (CGu) fair value less cost of disposal 

and its value in use. in assessing value in use the estimated 

future cash lows are discounted using pre-tax discount rate 
which relect the current assessment of time value of money. 
in determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market 

realisations are considered or otherwise in absence of such 

transactions appropriate valuations are adopted. the Company 

reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in 

order to determine the amount of depreciation and amount 

of impairment expense to be recorded during any reporting 

period. this reassessment may result in change estimated in 

future periods.

 4.2 Current Tax and Deferred Tax

 Signiicant judgment is required in determination of taxability 
of certain income and deductibility of certain expenses during 

the estimation of the provision for income taxes.  Deferred 

tax assets are recognised for unused losses (carry forward of 

prior years’ losses) and unused tax credit to the extent that it is 

probable that taxable proit would be available against which 
the losses could be utilised. Signiicant management judgment 
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that 

can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level 

of future taxable proits together with future tax planning 
strategies.

 4.3 Defined Benefit Obligations (DBO)

 Critical estimate of Dbo involves a number of critical underlying 

assumptions such as standard rates of inlation, mortality, 
discount rate, anticipation of future salary increases, etc as 

estimated by independent actuary appointed for this purpose 

by the management. variation in these assumptions may 

signiicantly impact the DBO amount and the annual deined 
beneit expenses. 

 4.4 Provisions and Contingencies

 provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when 

it becomes probable that there will be a future outlow 
of funds resulting from past operations or events and the 

amount of cash outlow can be reliably estimated. The timing 
of recognition and quantiication of the liability requires the 
application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances, 

which can be subject to change. management judgment is 

required for estimating the possible outlow of resources, 
if any, in respect of contingencies/claim/litigations/ against 

the Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome 

of pending matters with accuracy. the carrying amounts of 

provisions and liabilities and estimation for contingencies are 

reviewed regularly and revised to take account of changing 

facts and circumstances. 
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5. Cash and Cash Equivalents                                                                                                                                            (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer 

note no.
As at

March 31, 2021
as at

march 31, 2020

Cash on hand  0.04  0.12 

Balances with banks :

   in Current accounts  3.92  61.94 

   in fixed Deposit accounts  -  493.00 

Total  3.96  555.06 

6. Other Bank Balances                                                                                                                                                           (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer 

note no.
As at

March 31, 2021
as at

march 31, 2020

earmarked balances with banks in unpaid dividend account  5.45  5.28 

fixed Deposits with bank  17.41  16.37 

Total  22.86  21.65 

7. Loans                                                                                                                                                                              (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer 

note no.
As at

March 31, 2021
as at

march 31, 2020

Unsecured

At amortised cost 

(Considered doubtful)

loan to related party  541.89  460.00 

impairment allowances for doubtful receivables  (541.89)  (460.00)

Total  -    -   

7.1    Loans within India – –
      

7.2 Movement in impairment allowances for doubtful receivables                                                                                   (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars As at
March 31, 2021

as at
march 31, 2020

Opening Balance  460.00  370.00 

recognised during the year  121.89  90.00 

reversed/adjusted during the year  (40.00)  - 

Closing Balance  541.89  460.00 
     

7.3 loans and advances given to wholly owned subsidiary, alfred herbert limited became doubtful, as per prudential guidelines issued 
by reserve bank of india (the guidelines), entire outstanding amount of rs. 541.89 lakhs has been provided for in terms of the said 
guidelines. further, no interest as a matter of support to the subsidiary and also considering the guidelines has been accrued against 
the said loan. 
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8. Investments                                                                                                                                         (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars refer 
note 
no.

nominal 
value/ 

face value

As at March 31, 2021 as at march 31, 2020
Number/

Units
Amount number/ 

units
amount

Investment in mutual funds - Unquoted
Measured at fair value through profit and loss

hDfC Cash management fund - t.a. plan - retail - regular plan - weekly 
Dividend reinvest 10 – –  543,967.55  228.88 
iDfC banking & psu Debt fund - Growth 10 5,824,613.94  1,120.35 7,629,912.21  1,353.78 
uti treasury advantage fund - regular plan - Growth 1000  13,364.33  349.56  13,364.33  328.60 
hDfC banking & psu Debt fund - regular plan - Growth 10  707,009.00  126.11 – –
iCiCi prudential banking & psu Debt fund - regular plan - Growth 10 1,722,786.72 430.38 – –

Investment in bonds - Quoted
Measured at amortised cost
8.30% nhai tax free bonds 1000  3,743  38.37  3,743  38.37 

8.50% nhai tax free bonds 1000  30,000  300.00  30,000  300.00 
8.75% nhai tax free bonds 1000  21,200  211.60  21,200  211.60 
Investment in equity instruments 
investments in subsidiaries (fully paid up) - unquoted
measured at cost
herbert holdings limited 10  220,000  70.00  220,000  70.00 
alfred herbert limited 10  900,007  90.00  900,007  90.00 
less: provision for dimunition  (90.00)  - 
Investment in other bodies corporate - Quoted
Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
Graphite india limited 2  -  -  5,900  7.50 
Grasim industries limited 2  157  2.28  157  0.75 
aditya birla fashion and retail limited (abfrl) 10  -  -  546  0.84 
aditya birla Capital limited 10  -  -  219  0.09 
Mangalore Reinery and Petrochemicals Limited 10  -  -  400  0.09 
hDfC bank limited 2  5,000  74.68  5,000  43.10 
hindalco industries limited 1  45,750  149.53  45,750  43.76 
reliance industries limited 10  110,000  2,203.52  130,000  1,446.19 
i D f C 10  -  -  50,000  7.43 
i D f C first bank ltd (bonus issue) 10  -  -  50,000  10.55 
i t C limited 1  90,000  196.65  90,000  154.80 
vedanta limited (formerly known as sesa sterlite limited) 1  6,012  13.75  6,012  3.89 
birla Corporation limited 10  50,000  475.23  -  - 
reliance industries limited - right shares 10  8,666  94.54  -  - 
iCiCi bank limited 2  25,000  145.31  -  - 
nestle india limited 10  540  92.71  -  - 
Investment in other bodies corporate - Unquoted
Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
woodlands multispeciality hospital limited 10  1,780  10.31  1,780  2.98 
Kirloskar Computer services limited 10  10,000  1.00  10,000  1.00 
less - provision for diminution in value of share (1.00) (1.00)

Total  6,104.88  4,343.19 
8.1  investments within india  6,104.88  4,343.19 

8.3 Details of subsidiaries in accordance with Ind AS 112 Disclosure of interests in other entities:

name of the subsidiary principal activity place of incorporation and 
principal place of business

 proportion of ownership interest/voting rights held 
by the Company 

 As at March 31, 2021  as at march 31, 2020 
herbert holdings limited investment india 100% 100%
alfred herbert limited manufacturing of machinery 

for rubber and tyre industries
india 100% 100%
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9. Other Financial Assets                                                                                                                                 (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer 

note no.

As at

March 31, 2021

as at

march 31, 2020

Unsecured,

At Amortised Cost

considered good

security deposits  41.74  41.74 

Interest accrued but not due on inancial assets measured at amortised 
cost

 3.49  5.18 

others 9.1  5.03  1.10 

Total  50.26  48.02 

     

9.1 others includes advances recoverable from subsidiary company.

10. Current Tax Assets (Net)                                                                                                                           (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer 

note no.

As at

March 31, 2021

as at

march 31, 2020

advance tax including tax deducted at source (net of provision for tax) 10.1  42.59  46.03 

Total  42.59  46.03 

 

10.1 advance tax is net of provision for tax of rs, 55.93 lakhs (march 31, 2020 - 30.18 lakhs). 
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11. Investment Property 

 as at march 31, 2021                                                                                                                                     (rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Land Building - Freehold Total

Gross Block

As at April 1, 2020  21.75  262.51  284.26 

additions  -    -    -   

Disposal/adjustments  -    -    -   

As at March 31, 2021  21.75  262.51  284.26 

Accumulated Depreciation

As at April 1, 2020  -    -    -   

Charge during the year  -    -    -   

Disposal/adjustments  -    -    -   

As at March 31, 2021  -    -    -   

Net Block as at March 31, 2021  21.75  262.51  284.26 

 As at March 31, 2020                                                                                                                                (rs. in lakhs) 

Particulars Land Building - Freehold Total

Gross Block

As at April 1, 2019  21.75  262.51  284.26 

additions  -    -    -   

 Disposal/adjustments  -    -    -   

As at March 31, 2020  21.75  262.51  284.26 

Accumulated Depreciation

As at April 1, 2019  -    -    -   

Charge during the year  -    -    -   

Disposal/adjustments  -    -    -   

As at March 31, 2020  -    -    -   

Net Block as at March 31, 2020  21.75  262.51  284.26 

11.1 Disclosure pursuant to ind as 40 “investment property” : 

 a) Amount recognised in Statement of Proit and Loss for Investment Property :                                       (rs. in lakhs)

particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021
for the year ended 

march 31, 2020

rental income derived from investment property  40.01  38.57 

Direct operating expenses arising from investment property that 
generated rental income

 4.06  4.02 

 b) fair value of investment property - rs. 6,868.66 lakhs (march 31, 2020 - rs. 6,355.40 lakhs)

 c) the fair values of investment properties have been determined on the basis of circle rate prevailing in the area in 
which the properties are located and/or the valuation report received from an independent valuer.
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12. Property, Plant and Equipment

 As at March 31, 2021                                                                                                                                    (rs. in lakhs)

particulars
land- 

freehold
land - right 

of use
building

plant and 
equipment

furniture and 
ixtures total

Gross block

As at March 31, 2020  14.49  67.74  77.24  13.34  0.12  172.95 

additions  -    -    -    0.72  -    0.72 

Disposal/adjustments  -    -    -    -    -    -   

As at March 31, 2021  14.49  67.74  77.24  14.06  0.12  173.67 

Accumulated depreciation

As at March 31, 2020  -    12.29  5.84  2.32  0.03  20.48 

Charge during the year  -    13.40  2.93  1.28  0.02  17.63 

Disposal/adjustments  -    -    -    -    -    -   

As at March 31, 2021  -    25.69  8.77  3.60  0.05  38.11 

Net block as at March 31, 2021  14.49  42.06  68.47  10.47  0.07  135.56 

 As at March 31, 2020                                                                                                                               (rs. in lakhs)

particulars
land- 

freehold
land - right 

of use
building

plant and 
equipment

furniture and 
ixtures total

Gross block

As at March 31, 2019  14.49  -    77.24  13.34  0.12  105.20 

additions  -    67.74  -    -    -    67.74 

 Disposal/adjustments  -    -    -    -    -    -   

As at March 31, 2020  14.49  67.74  77.24  13.34  0.12  172.95 

Accumulated depreciation

As at March 31, 2019  -    -    2.92  1.17  0.02  4.10 

Charge during the year  -    12.29  2.93  1.15  0.02  16.38 

Disposal/adjustments  -    -    -    -    -    -   

As at March 31, 2020  -    12.29  5.84  2.32  0.03  20.48 

Net block as at March 31, 2020  14.49  55.46  71.40  11.03  0.09  152.46 

       

12.1 land amounting to rs. 14.49 lakhs pertains to Company’s land at bangalore. in response to the Company’s writ petition 
against the order of the Assistant Commissioner of Forest, Karnataka for vacating the Company’s property in Whiteield 
acquired from Karnataka industrial area Development board (KiaDb), the single bench of hon’ble high Court at Karnataka 
upheld the Company’s contention and held that the land did not belong to the forest department. the review petition 
iled by the forest department against the said judgement has been dismissed and the action initiated by the oficials of 
the forest department having been held to be bad in law. this order is appealable before the hon’ble supreme Court of 
india.       
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13. Other Non Financial Assets                                                                                                                           (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer note 

no.
As at

March 31, 2021
as at

march 31, 2020

Capital advances  20.64  48.46 

advances other than capital advances

other advances  0.03  0.02 

Others

Prepaid expenses  -    0.04 

Balances with government authorities  18.15  10.71 

Total  38.82  59.23 

14. Lease Liabilities                                                                                                                                             (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer note 

no.
As at

March 31, 2021
as at

march 31, 2020

At amortised cost

lease liabilities  46.77  57.86 

Total  46.77  57.86 

15. Other Financial Liabilities                                                                                                                             (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer note 

no.
As at

March 31, 2021
as at

march 31, 2020

At amortised cost

unpaid dividend  5.45  5.28 

other payables

security deposits  6.99  6.36 

retention money  50.48  34.67 

others  2.66  4.38 

Total  65.58  50.69 

16. Provisions                                                                                                                                                      (rs. in lakhs)

particulars
refer note 

no.
As at

March 31, 2021
as at

march 31, 2020

Provision for employee beneits

Gratuity  1.20  0.69 

Total  1.20  0.69 

17. Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)                                                                                                                             (rs. in lakhs)

particulars
refer note 

no.
As at

March 31, 2021
as at

march 31, 2020

Deferred tax liabilities  237.53  101.13 

Deferred tax assets  -  - 

Deferred tax liabilities (net)  237.53  101.13 
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17.1 Components of Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets) are as follows :
 as at march 31, 2021                                                                                                                                         (rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at
april 1, 2020

 Charge/
(credit) in 

proit and loss 

 Charge/
(credit) in other 
comprehensive 

income 

As at
March 31, 

2021

Deferred tax liabilities 

timing difference w.r.t property, plant and 
equipment 

 33.82  0.73  -    34.55 

Difference in carrying value and tax base of 
investments and effect of revaluation of asset 

 66.91  16.71  119.01  202.63 

Remeasurement of deined beneit plan  0.39  -    (0.05)  0.34 

 Total deferred tax liabilities  101.13  17.44  118.96  237.53 

 Deferred tax assets  -    -    -    -   

 Total deferred tax assets  -    -    -    -   

 Deferred tax liabilities (net)  101.13  17.44  118.96  237.53 

 As at March 31, 2020                                                                                                                                         (rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at
april 1, 2019

 Charge/(credit) 
in proit and 

loss 

 Charge/
(credit) in other 
comprehensive 

income 

As at
March 31, 

2020

Deferred tax liabilities 

timing difference w.r.t property, plant and 
equipment 

 34.00  (0.17)  -    33.82 

Difference in carrying value and tax base of 
investments and effect of revaluation of asset 

 697.18  23.60  (653.86)  66.91 

Remeasurement of deined beneit plan  0.32  -    0.07  0.39 

Total deferred tax liabilities  731.49  23.43  (653.79)  101.13 

Deferred tax assets  -    -    -    -   

Total deferred tax assets  -    -    -    -   

Deferred tax liabilities (net)  731.49  23.43  (653.79)  101.13 

18. Other Non Financial Liabilities                                                                                                                        (rs. in lakhs)

particulars refer note 
no.

As at
March 31, 2021

as at
march 31, 2020

income received in advance  4.69  5.42 

statutory Dues  0.53  1.22 

others  3.41  3.39 

Total  8.63  10.03 
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19. Equity Share Capital                                                                                                                                         (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer note 

no.
As at

March 31, 2021
as at

march 31, 2020

Authorised 

50,00,000 (march 31, 2020 - 50,00,000) equity shares of rs 10 each
 500.00  500.00 

 500.00  500.00 

Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid Up

7,71,429 (march 31, 2020 - 7,71,429) equity shares of rs 10 each  77.14  77.14 

 77.14  77.14 

19.1 the Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of rs. 10 per share. each holder of equity share is 
entitled to one vote per share. the Company may declare and pay dividends. the dividend, if any proposed by the board of 
Directors of the Company is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing annual General meeting. in the event 
of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after 
distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity shares held by equity shareholders.

19.2 Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding :

particulars As at
March 31, 2021

as at
march 31, 2020

Number of shares at the beginning of the year  771,429  771,429 

movement during the year - - 

Number of shares at the end of the year 771,429 771,429

19.3 Shareholders holding more than 5 % of the equity shares in the Company:

name of the shareholders As at
March 31, 2021

as at
march 31, 2020

Anamika Lodha

- no of shares held: 220,576 220,576

- percentage of shares held: 28.59% 28.59%

Simika Lodha

- no of shares held: 220,576 220,576

- percentage of shares held: 28.59% 28.59%

20. OTHER EQUITY                                                                                                                                               (rs. in lakhs)

particulars refer note 
no.

As at
March 31, 2021

as at
march 31, 2020

Capital reserve 20.2  0.10  0.10 

Capital revaluation reserve 20.3  50.36  50.36 

statutory reserve (in terms of section 45iC of reserve bank of 
india act, 1934)

20.4  839.27  839.27 

General reserve 20.5  3,600.00  3,500.00 

retained earnings 20.6  1,579.84  1,465.62 

other Comprehensive income 20.7  2,614.77  1,388.19 

Total  8,684.34  7,243.54 

20.1 refer statement of Changes in equity (“soCe”)for movement in balances of reserves

 Nature and purpose of reserves :
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20.2 Capital Reserve

 Capital reserve is a reserve which is not free for distribution. the balance in this reserve represents the amount of share 
forfeited by the Company.

20.3 Capital Revaluation Reserve

 this represents revaluation of land at Kolkata and bangalore and building at bangalore.

20.4 Statutory Reserve  (in terms of Section 45IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934)

 statutory reserve represents the reserve created pursuant to the reserve bank of india act, 1934 (the “rbi act”) and related 
regulations applicable to those companies. under the rbi act, a non banking financial Company is required to transfer an 
amount not less than 20% of its net proit to a reserve fund before declaring any dividend. Appropriation from this reserve 
fund is permitted only for the purposes speciied by the RBI.

20.5 General Reserve

 The general reserve is created from time to time by appropriating proits from retained earnings. The general reserve is 
created by a transfer from one component of equity to another. Accordingly, it is not reclassiied to the statement of proit 
and loss.   

20.6 Retained Earnings

 Retained earnings generally represents the undistributed proits/ amount of accumulated earnings of the company and 
includes remeasurement gains/losses on deined beneit obligations.

20.7 Other Comprehensive Income

 this reserve represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on the revaluation of equity instruments measured at fair 
value. the company transfers amounts from this reserve to retained earnings when the relevant equity instruments are 
disposed.

21. Interest Income                                                                                                                                                (rs. in lakhs)

particulars refer note 
no.

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

for the year ended
march 31, 2020

On Financial Assets measured at amortised cost

- interest income on bonds  46.51  46.75 

- other interest income  4.69  12.49 

Total  51.20  59.24 

22. Dividend Income                                                                                                                                                (rs. in lakhs)

particulars refer note 
no.

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

for the year ended
march 31, 2020

Dividend income on investments  24.54  113.39 

Total  24.54  113.39 

23. Net gain on Fair Value changes                                                                                                                       (rs. in lakhs)

particulars
refer note 

no.
For the year ended

March 31, 2021
for the year ended

march 31, 2020

net gain on fair valuation of investments measured at fvtpl  23.1  162.13  109.64 

Total   162.13  109.64 

23.1 Details of net gain on fair valuation of investments measured at fair value through profit and loss

particulars
For the year ended

March 31, 2021
for the year ended

march 31, 2020

realised  41.81  12.65 

unrealised  120.32  96.99 

Total  162.13  109.64 
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24. Other Income                                                                                                                                                    (rs. in lakhs)

particulars refer note 
no.

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

for the year ended 
march 31, 2020

rental income  40.74  38.57 

miscellaneous income  -    0.01 

Total  40.74  38.58 

25. Finance Costs                                                                                                                                                    (rs. in lakhs)

particulars
refer note 

no.
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021
for the year ended 

march 31, 2020

interest expense on

    - security deposits  0.63  0.58 

    - lease liabilities  5.19  5.61 

    - others 25.1  0.66 -

Total  6.48  6.19 

25.1 others includes interest on shortfall in payment of advance income tax                 0.66                                  -

26 Impairment on Financial Instruments                                                                                                              (rs. in lakhs)

particulars
refer note 

no.
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021
for the year ended 

march 31, 2020

Impairment on financial instruments

loans  81.89  90.00 

Total  81.89  90.00 

26A. Impairment on financial instruments                                                                                                                (rs. in lakhs)

particulars
refer note 

no.
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021
for the year ended 

march 31, 2020

Impairment on financial instruments

investment in subsidiary 41  90.00 -   

Total  90.00  -   

27. Employee Benefits Expense                                                                                                                              (rs. in lakhs)

particulars
refer note 

no.
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021
for the year ended 

march 31, 2020

salaries and wages  43.69  44.33 

Contribution to provident and other funds  3.67  3.73 

staff welfare expense  0.40  0.51 

Total  47.76  48.56 

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Contd.)
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28 Depreciation, amortisation and impairment                                                                                                (rs. in lakhs)

particulars
refer note 

no.
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021
for the year ended 

march 31, 2020

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 12  17.63  16.38 

Total  17.63  16.38 

29. Other Expenses                                                                                                                                                  (rs. in lakhs)

particulars
refer note 

no.
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021
for the year ended 

march 31, 2020

rent  0.10  1.30 

repairs and maintenance

building  0.67  -   

others  2.24  3.62 

rates and taxes  5.88  5.98 

auditor's remuneration

        statutory audit fees  0.50  0.50 

        tax audit fees  0.10  0.10 

  Certiication and other matters  0.13  0.30 

legal and professional fees  11.69  9.86 

flat maintenance  2.32  2.31 

travelling expenses  1.54  2.35 

postage and telephone  1.25  2.29 

insurance charges  0.29  0.24 

Directors' sitting fees  3.10  2.90 

electricity charges  2.17  4.56 

motor Car expenses  0.90  0.92 

security service charges  5.21  5.23 

miscellaneous expenditure  6.34  8.26 

Total  44.43  50.73 

30. Tax Expenses - Current Tax                                                                                                                            (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021
for the year ended 

march 31, 2020

provision for Current tax  7.55  -   

Total  7.55  -   

30.1 Components of Tax Expense : 

 The components of Income Tax expense during the year ended March 31, are :       (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2021

for the year ended
march 31, 2020

Current tax

in respect of the current year  7.55  -   

Total Current tax expense recognised in the current year  7.55  -   

Deferred tax

in respect of the current year  17.44  23.43 

Total Deferred tax expense recognised in the current year  17.44  23.43 

Total Tax expense recognised in the current year  24.99  23.43 

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Contd.)
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30.2 Reconciliation of Income tax expense for the year with accounting profit is as follows:

 Taxable Income differs from ‘proit before tax’ as reported in the statement of proit and loss because of items of income or 
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. Details in this respect 
are as follows:                                                                                                                                                    (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2021

for the year ended
march 31, 2020 

Profit before tax  (9.58)  108.99 

tax rate 25.17% 25.17%

Income tax expense calculated at rate applicable -  27.43 

less : effect of income exempt from taxation/ deductible for computing 
taxable proit
    non deductible tax expenses -  26.01 

    Capital Gain on sale of investment 25.19 -

    tax exempt income  -  (40.31)

    business loss (17.64) -

    fair valuation of investments 16.71  (26.86)

    effect of other adjustments  0.73  37.15 

Income tax expense recognised in profit and loss 24.99  23.43 

30.3 Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income                                                                              (rs. in lakhs)

particulars
For the year ended

March 31, 2021
for the year ended

march 31, 2020 

Deferred tax

Arising on income and expenses recognised in other comprehensive 
income :

net gain on fair value of investments measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income

119.01  (653.86)

Remeasurement of Deined Beneit Plans (0.05)  0.07 

Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive income 118.96  (653.79)

Bifurcation of the income tax recognised in other comprehensive 
income into:-

Items that will not be reclassiied to proit or loss 118.96  (653.79)

Items that may be reclassiied to proit or loss - - 

31. Components of Other Comprehensive Income                                                                                            (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2021

for the year ended
march 31, 2020 

Items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss

net gain on fair value of investments measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income

 1,639.75  (871.29)

Remeasurement of deined beneit plans  (0.20)  0.26 

Total  1,639.54  (871.03)

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Contd.)
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32. Related Party Disclosures

 Related parties have been identified in terms of Ind AS 24 “Related Party Disclosures” as listed below :

 List of Related Parties where control exists

 A Name of the Related Parties Relationship     

  alfred herbert limited  subsidiary Company     

  herbert holdings limited  subsidiary Company     

  la Crème De la Crème services llp  llp where certain Directors are partners

 B Key Management Personnel Relationship     

  Ms Shobhana Sethi Company Secretary & Chief Financial Oficer  
  Mr Vikram Matta  Chief Executive Oficer   

 C Transactions with related parties are as follows:                                                                                 (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars subsidiary Companies llp where certain Directors 
are partners Key managerial personnel

alfred herbert limited herbert holdings limited la Crème De la Crème services llp

Year ended
march 31, 2021

Year ended
march 31, 2020

Year ended
march 31, 2021

Year ended
march 31, 2020

Year ended
march 31, 2021

Year ended
march 31, 2020

Year ended
march 31, 2021

Year ended
march 31, 2020

loans given during 
the year

 121.89  100.00  -    -    -    -    -    -   

loans received back 
during the year

 40.00  10.00  -    -    -    -    -    -   

lease rent received  -    -    -    -    16.56  16.56 - -

remuneration paid 
during the year

 -    -    -    -   - -  15.18  14.96 

D Balances of related parties as at the year end are as follows:        (rs. in lakhs)

particulars subsidiary Companies (alfred herbert 
limited)

as at

march 31, 2021

as at

march 31, 2020

Corporate Guarantee  -  111.15 

 Notes:

 1) The above related party information is as identiied by the management and relied upon by the auditor
 2) related party transactions are excluding reimbursements.
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33. Disclosures for leasing arrangements

 (a) the Company has taken land at hide road from Kolkata port trust and premises at Kyd street, Kolkata on lease.

 (b) Amount recognised during the year                                                                                                        (rs. in lakhs)

particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2021

for the year ended
march 31, 2020

Depreciation on right of use asset  13.40  12.29 

finance costs on lease liabilities  5.19  5.61 

 (c) The movement in lease liabilities during the year is as under :                                                             (rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at
march 31, 2021

as at
march 31, 2020

Opening effect of lease liabilities  57.86  67.74 

add: additions  -    -   

add: finance cost accrued during the year  5.19  5.61 

less: Deletions  -    -   

less: payment of lease liabilities during the year  (14.93)  (14.22) 

less: advance rent adjusted  (1.35) (1.27) 

Balance as at the end of the year  46.77  57.86 

 

 (d) The details regarding contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at year end on an undiscounted basis:
(rs. in lakhs)

particulars As at March 31, 2021 as at march 31, 2020

less than one year 17.01   16.21 

One to ive years 28.37  55.39 

More than ive years 1.34  1.45 

Total 46.74  73.05 
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34. Post Retirement Employee Benefits

 The disclosures required under Indian Accounting Standard 19 on ‘’Employee Beneits’’ are given below:
 a) Defined Contribution Plans

 A deined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Company pays ixed contributions; there is no legal or 
constructive obligation to pay further contributions. the assets of the plan are held separately from those of the Company 
in a fund under the control of trustees.

 Contribution to Deined Contribution Plan, recognized for the year are as under:                                             (rs. in lakhs)

particulars
For the year ended

March 31, 2021

for the year ended

march 31, 2020

employer’s Contribution to provident fund  1.56  1.54 

employer’s Contribution to esi  0.39  0.48 

b) Defined Benefit Plans

 “The employees’ gratuity scheme is a deined beneit plan. The present value of obligation is determined based on 
actuarial valuation using the projected unit Credit method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise 
to additional unit of employee beneit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the inal obligation. 
based on actuarial valuation report of the actuary, disclosures with respect to gratuity liability ascertained based on actuarial 
valuation carried out at the end of the year are as follows:” 

Gratuity

2020-21 2019-20

i)    Change in the fair value of the defined benefit obligation:

Present Value of Deined Beneit Obligations at the beginning of period  16.76  16.02 

interest Cost  0.88  1.15 

Current service Cost  0.98  0.93 

actuarial (gain) / loss on obligations  (0.48)  (0.72)

Beneits Paid  -  (0.62)

liability at the end of the year  18.14  16.76 

ii)    Changes in the Fair Value of Plan Asset 

fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year  16.07  15.75 

expected return on plan assets  0.87  1.14 

Contributions by the Company  0.68  0.27 

actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets  (0.69)  (0.46)

Beneits paid  -  (0.62)

fair value of plan assets at the end of the year  16.93  16.07 

iii)   Actual return on Plan Asset

expected return on plan assets  0.87  1.14 

actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets  (0.69)  (0.46)

actual return on plan assets  0.18  0.67 

iv)   Amount Recognized in Balance Sheet

liability at the end of the year  18.14  16.76 

fair value of plan assets at the end of the year  16.93  16.07 

 (1.21)  (0.69)

v)    Components of Defined Benefit Cost

Current service Cost  0.98  0.93 

interest Cost  0.02  0.01 

expected return on plan assets  -  0.46 

net actuarial (gain) / loss on remeasurement recognised in oCi  0.20  (0.72)

Total Defined Benefit Cost recognised in Profit and Loss and OCI  1.20  0.70 
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vi)   Balance Sheet Reconciliation

opening net liability  0.69  0.27 

expenses as above  1.20  0.69 

employers Contribution  (0.68)  (0.27)

amount recognized in balance sheet  1.21  0.69 

 vii)   Percentage allocation of plan assets in respect of fund managed by insurer/trust is as follows: 

Particulars As at  March 31, 2021 as at  march 31, 2020

G-sec/ Corporate securities 84.99% 91.98%

equity 15.01% 8.02%

  Compensated Absences

  The obligation for compensated absences is recognized in the same manner as gratuity except remeasurement beneit 
which is treated as part of oCi. the actuarial liability of Compensated absences (unfunded)  of accumulated privileged 
and sick leaves of the employees of the Company as at year end is given below:                            (rs. in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

for the year ended 
march 31, 2020

privileged leave – –

sick leave – –

Principal Actuarial assumptions as at the Balance Sheet date

Discount rate 5.00% 5.28%

expected rate of salary increase 6.00% 6.00%

Notes: 

i) i) assumptions relating to future salary increases, attrition, interest rate for discount & overall expected rate of return on 
Assets have been considered based on relevant economic factors such as inlation, market growth & other factors applicable 
to the period over which the obligation is expected to be settled.

 Sensitivity analysis:                                                                                                                                            (rs. in lakhs)

Particulars
Change in 

Assumption
Effect in Gratuity 

Obligation

For the year ended 31st March, 2021

Discount rate +1%  17.61 

-1%  18.76 

salary Growth rate +1%  18.74 

-1%  17.61 

withdrawal rate +50%  18.13 

-50%  18.15 

mortality rate -10%  18.14 

-10%  18.14 

For the year ended 31st March, 2020

Discount rate +1%  16.33 

-1%  17.26 

salary Growth rate +1%  17.25 

-1%  16.33 

withdrawal rate +50%  16.75 

-50%  16.77 

mortality rate -10%  16.76 

-10%  16.76 

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Contd.)
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 “the above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. 
in practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. when calculating the 
sensitivity of the deined beneit obligation to signiicant actuarial assumptions the same method (projected unit credit 
method) has been applied as when calculating the deined beneit obligation recognised within the Balance Sheet.

 Estimate of expected benefit payments (In absolute terms i.e. undiscounted)                                       (rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Gratuity 

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

for the year ended
march 31, 2020

1st year 14.71 14.17

2 to 5 years 0.10 0.07

6 to 10 years 0.90 0.17

more than 10 years 6.98 6.31

particulars As at March 31, 2021 as at march 31, 2020

average number of people employed 9 9

35 Financial Instruments

 The accounting classiication of each category of inancial instrument, their carrying amount and fair value are as follows:-
  (rs. in lakhs) 

Particulars

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Carrying 
Amount

Fair Value Carrying 
Amount

Fair Value

Financial Assets

Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost

Cash and cash equivalents  3.96  3.96  555.06  555.06 

other bank balances  22.86  22.86  21.65  21.65 

loans  -    -    -    -   

investment in bonds  549.97  689.60  549.97  675.61 

other financial assets  50.26  50.26  48.02  48.02 

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

investments in mutual funds  2,026.40  2,026.40  1,911.26  1,911.26 

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Other 
Comprehensive Income

investment in other entities (Quoted)  3,448.20  3,448.20  1,718.98  1,718.98 

investment in other entities (unquoted)  10.31  10.31  2.98  2.98 

Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities measured at Amortised Cost

lease liabilities  46.77  46.77  57.86  57.86 

other financial liabilities  65.58  65.58  50.69  50.69 

The fair values of the inancial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
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 The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

 The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans, lease liabilities, other inancial assets and other 
inancial liabilities and assets approximate their carrying amount largely due to the short-term nature of these instruments. 
The management considers that the carrying amounts of inancial assets and inancial liabilities recognised at nominal cost/
amortised cost in the inancial statements approximate their fair values.

 investments traded in active market are determined by reference to the quotes from the stock exchanges as at the reporting 
date. Investment in unquoted equity shares have been valued based on the latest audited inancial statements. Investments 
in mutual funds have been valued based on their respective net asset value as on the reporting date.

 Fair value hierarchy

 the following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as at 
balance sheet date:                                                                                                                                         (rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31

Fair value measurements at reporting date using

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets

Investment in Mutual Funds  2,026.40  -    2,026.40  -   

 (1,911.26)  -    (1,911.26)  -   

Investment in Equity Instruments 
(other than investment in 
subsidiaries)

 3,458.51  3,448.20  -  10.31 

 (1,721.96)  (1,718.98)  -  2.98 

 (*) Figures in round brackets ( ) indicate igures as at March 31, 2020. 

 During the year ended march 31, 2021 and march 31, 2020, there were no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3. 

 The Inputs used in fair valuation measurement are as follows:

 - fair valuation of financial assets and liabilities is amortised based on the effective interest rate.    
- financial instruments are valued based on quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets or inputs that are 
directly or indirectly observable in the marketplace. in respect of unquoted equity shares, the inputs used was the audited 
balance sheet for the year then available.     

 Financial Risk Factors

 The Company’s activities are exposed to variety of inancial risks. The key inancial risks includes market risk, credit risk and 
liquidity risk. The Company’s focus is to foresee the unpredictability of inancial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse 
effects on its inancial performance. The Board of Directors reviews and approves policies for managing these risks. The risks 
are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and accordingly inancial risks are identiied, measured and managed in 
accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives.

 Market Risk

 Market risk is the risk or uncertainty arising from possible market luctuations resulting in variation in the fair value of future cash 
lows of a inancial instrument. The major components of Market risks are currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. 
financial instruments affected by market risk includes investments, other receivables and payables.

 Foreign Currency Risk

 Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash lows of an exposure will luctuate because of changes in foreign 
exchange rates. the Company doesn’t have exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates and hence is not subjected 
to such risk.      

 Interest rate risk

 the company doesn’t have exposure in market risk relating to change in interest rate as it doesn’t have any borrowed funds whether 
in ixed rate or loating rate. 

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Contd.)
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 Other price risk

 “The Company is exposed to price risk arising from investments in Equity Shares held by the company and is classiied in the balance sheet 
as fair value through other Comprehensive income. the Company is also exposed to price risk arising from investments in mutual funds 
and Bonds held by the company and is classiied in the balance sheet as fair value through proit or loss and amortised cost respectively.  
To manage its price risk arising from investments, the Company diversiies its portfolio.”

 Credit Risk

 Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a inancial instrument or customer contract, leading to a 
inancial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily loans or interest accrued balances).  The 
management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. the Company periodically 
assesses the inancial reliability of its borrowers, taking into account the inancial condition and current economic trends.

 The carrying amount of respective inancial assets recognised in the inancial statements, (net of impairment losses) represents the 
Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk.

 the Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of doubtful loans 
and advances. receivables from its borrowers are reviewed/evaluated periodically by the management and appropriate provisions 
are made to the extent recovery there against has been considered to be remote. 

 Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

 Cash and cash equivalents, investment and deposits with banks are neither past due nor impaired. Cash and cash equivalents with 
banks are held with reputed and credit worthy banking institutions.

 Liquidity Risk

 Liquidity risk is deined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a reasonable price. 
the Company’s objective is to maintain optimum level of liquidity to meet it’s cash and collateral requirements at all times.

 Maturity Analysis of Financial Liabilities

As at March 31, 2021                                                                                                                                   (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars Carrying amount on Demand less than 6 months 6 to 12 months > 1 year total 

lease liabilities  46.77  -    6.29  5.32  35.16  46.77 

other financial liabilities  65.58  -    65.58  -    -    65.58 

As at March 31, 2020                                                                                                                                     (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars Carrying amount on Demand less than 6 months 6 to 12 months > 1 year total 

lease liabilities  57.86  -    6.72  9.49  41.65  57.86 

other financial liabilities  50.69  -    50.69  -    -    50.69 

 The company has inancial assets which will be realised in ordinary course of business. The Company ensures that it has 
suficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses.

 The company relies on operating cash lows to meet its need for funds.
 Capital Management

 the primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a healthy capital ratio in order to 
support its business and maximise shareholder value. the Company’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard their 
ability to continue as a going concern so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and beneits for other 
stake holders. the Company is focused on keeping strong total equity base to ensure independence, security, as well as a 
high inancial lexibility for potential future borrowings, if required without where the risk proile of the Company.

 since at present there is no borrowings obtained by the company so Capital Gearing ratio is not disclosed hereunder. 
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at March 31, 2021 (Contd.)

35A Maturity Analysis of Asset and Liabilities

 the table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or 

settled.                                                                                                                                                                  (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars  As at March 31, 2021  as at march 31, 2020

Within 12 
months

After 12 
months

Total within 12 
months

after 12 
months

total

ASSETS

Financial Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents  3.96  -  3.96  555.06  -  555.06 

other bank balances  -  22.86  22.86  -  21.65  21.65 

loans  -  -  -  -  -  - 

investment  2,026.40  4,078.48  6,104.88  1,911.26  2,431.93  4,343.19 

other financial assets  8.52  41.74  50.26  6.28  41.74  48.02 

(a)  2,038.88  4,143.08  6,181.96  2,472.60  2,495.32  4,967.92 

Non Financial Assets 

Current tax assets (net)  -  42.59  42.59  -  46.03  46.03 

investment property  -  284.26  284.26  -  284.26  284.26 

property, plant and equipment  -  135.56  135.56  -  152.46  152.46 

Capital work in progress  -  2,438.01  2,438.01  -  2,031.18  2,031.18 

Other non inancial assets  -  38.82  38.82  -  59.23  59.23 

(b)  -  2,939.24  2,939.24  -  2,573.17  2,573.17 

Total Assets (a+b)  2,038.88  7,082.32  9,121.20  2,472.60  5,068.49  7,541.08 

LIABILITIES

Financial Liabilities

lease liabilities  12.96  33.81  46.77  11.02  46.84  57.86 

Other inancial liabilities  5.45  60.13  65.58  5.28  45.41  50.69 

(a)  18.41  93.94  112.35  16.30  92.25  108.54 

Non Financial Liabilities

provisions  1.20  -  1.20  0.69  -  0.69 

Deferred tax liabilities (net)  -  237.53  237.53  -  101.13  101.13 

Other non inancial liabilities  8.63  -  8.63  10.03  -  10.03 

(b)  9.83  237.53  247.36  10.71  101.13  111.84 

Total Liabilities (a+b)  28.24  331.47  359.71  27.01  193.38  220.39 

35B the following disclosure is required pursuant to rbi circular dated march 13, 2020 - Circular no. rbi/2019-20/170 Dor 

(nbfC).CC.pD.no.109/22.10.106/2019-20      

Asset classiication as per RBI Norms Asset Classiication as 
per ind as 109

Gross 

Carrying 

amount 

as per ind 

as

loss 

allowances 

(provisions) as 

required under 

ind as 109

net 

Carrying 

amount

provision 

required as 

per iraCp 

norms

Difference 

between 

ind as 109 

provisions 

and iraCp 

norms

1 2 3 4 5=3-4 6 7=4-6

loans - non performing assets  Doubtful- stage 3  541.89  541.89  -  541.89  - 

Total  541.89  541.89  -   541.89  -  
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36 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)

 A) Contingent Liabilities                                                                                                                                  (rs. in lakhs)

sl. 
no.

particulars As at
March 31,2021

as at
march 31,2020

a Corporate Gurantee  -    111.15 

b bank Gurantee for obtaining waybill from wbCtD  13.40  13.40 

B) Commitments:                                                                                                                                       (rs. in lakhs)

sl.
 no.

particulars As at
March 31, 2021

as at
march 31, 2020

a estimated amount of contract (net of advance) remaining to be executed on 
capital account

 126.92  347.97 

b uncalled liability on shares partly paid 81.70 -

37. Disclosures as required by Indian Accounting Standard(Ind AS) 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 

Assets”

 A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be conirmed only by the 
occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity. During 

the normal course of business, unresolved claims remains outstanding. The inlow of economic beneits, in respect of such 
claims cannot be measured due to uncertainties that surround the related events and circumstances.

38. Segment Reporting

 The Company operates mainly in one business segment viz. Realty, Investments and Other non-banking inancial activities  
and all other activities revolve around the main activity and as such there are no other reportable segments as identiied by 
the Chief operating Decision maker of the company as required under ind as 108 “segment reporting”.

39. Earnings per Share                                                                                                     (rs. in lakhs, except otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2021

for the year ended
march 31, 2020

(a)  Net profit for basic and diluted earnings per share as per 
Statement of Profit and Loss

 (34.58)  85.56 

(b)  weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of basic 
and diluted earnings per share (face value rs. 10/- per share)

 7,71,429  7,71,429 

c)   Earnings per share (EPS) of Equity Share of Rs. 10 each:

i)     basic (rs.)  (4.48)  11.09 

ii)    Diluted (rs.)  (4.48)  11.09 

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at March 31, 2021 (Contd.)



64

ALfREd HERBERT (iNdiA) LTd.

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at March 31, 2021 (Contd.)

40. the outbreak of CoviD - 19 and resultant lockdowns declared by Central and/or state Governments of india have 

impacted business and earnings prospects, in case of alfred herbert limited (ahl), the wholly owned subsidiary involved 

in the manufacturing of machinery for the rubber and tyre industries. operations have been severely affected due to 

loss of production coupled with insuficient orders making it unviable to operate the plant eficiently with the required 
economies of scale on a sustainable basis. Production at the said subsidiary remained suspended signiicantly during 
the year and AHL continued to incur signiicant losses. As a matter of prudence, the company’s investment in AHL has 
therefore been fully provided for on account of potential impairment in the value of such investment. the company has 

cumulatively infused Rs 541.89 lakhs to provide inancial support by way of loan. This includes repayment of dues of the 
bank towards working capital facilities provided to the said subsidiary. in the given situation and absence of required 

volumes etc. there is signiicant uncertainty vis-a-vis sustained viability of the said subsidiary on an independent basis. 
Pending inal decision and review of the alternatives for continuing operations including through third 
party sources, accounts of ahl have continued to be prepared on a going concern basis till the year end. 

barring the above, investments and other related operations are not affected materially. based on indicators available from 

internal and external sources of current and future economic conditions, the Company expects to recover the carrying 

amount of inancial and non-inancial assets barring any unforeseen circumstances. The Company will continue to monitor 
any material changes to the future economic conditions and effective  steps will be taken on crystallisation thereof.

41. impairment of financial instruments includes provision of rs 90.00 lakhs made in respect of the value of investment in equity 

share capital of ahl, the wholly owned subsidiary due to the reason given in note 40 has been shown as exceptional item in the 

statement of proit and loss. Moreover, inancial support of Rs 541.89 lakhs (including Rs 121.89 lakhs given during the year) 
provided to the said subsidiary by way of loan for meeting various liabilities has also been considered doubtful and fully provided for.  

the above provision, have been made in view of prudential guidelines of the reserve bank of india in this respect, considering 

the current value of the assets and amounts realisable thereagainst. the prospects of recovery and revival of the subsidiary 

are being examined and required adjustment in this respect will be carried out as and when determined.

42. In respect of the year ended March 31, 2021, the Board of Directors has proposed a inal dividend of 27.50% (Rs. 2.75) per 
share to be paid on fully paid equity shares. the said dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the annual General 

Meeting and has not been included as a liability in these inancial statements. The proposed equity dividend is payable to all 
holders of fully paid equity shares.

43. Previous year’s igures have been re-grouped/re-arranged wherever necessary to conform to current year’s classiication.

44. These standalone inancial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on June 30, 2021 for 
issue to the shareholders for their adoption.

as per our report of even date

for alps & Co. For and on behalf of the Board 
Chartered accountants    
firm registration no. : 313132e v. matta r. C. tapuriah 
r s tulsyan Chief Executive Officer Director
Partner pan : aDmpm4399r Din-00395997
membership no. : 051793
 shobhana sethi s. s. Jain
place : Kolkata Company Secretary & Chief Financial Officer Director
Dated: 30th June, 2021  pan : Dlbps7691G Din-00013732
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iNdEPENdENT AUdiTOR’s REPORT

to

the members of

Alfred Herbert (India) Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion 

we have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of alfred herbert (india)limited (hereinafter 

referred to as “the holding Company”) and its subsidiary companies (the holding Company and its subsidiary companies 

together referred to as “ the Group”), which comprise the Consolidated balance sheet as at march 31, 2021, and 

the Consolidated Statement of Proit and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive Income),Consolidated Statement of 
Changes in equity and Consolidated statement of Cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated 

Financial Statements, including a summary of signiicant accounting policies and Other Explanatory Notes for the year 
ended on that date (hereinafter referred to as “Consolidated financial statements”).

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid  

Consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies act 2013 (“the act”) in the manner 

so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the indian accounting standards prescribed under section 

133 of the act read with the Companies (indian accounting standards) rules, 2015, as amended, (“ind as”) and the 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2021, and its proit 
(including Other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash lows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated inancial statement in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), 
as speciied under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in 
the auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated financial statements section of our report. we are 

independent of the group in accordance with the Code of ethics issued by the institute of Chartered accountants of 

india together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated financial statements 

under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of ethics. we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and 

the audit evidence obtained by the other auditor in terms of their report referred to in ‘other matter’ paragraph below 

is suficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated inancial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most signiicance in our audit of 
the consolidated inancial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit 
of the consolidated inancial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. based on the audit procedure performed including assessment of risk of material 

misstatement we have not come across any material Key audit matters that are required to be communicated in 

accordance with the standard.

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

the holding Company’s board of Directors is responsible for the other information. the other information comprises 

the information included in the annual report but does not include the Consolidated financial statements, standalone 

financial statements, and our auditors’ report thereon.

our opinion on the Consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 

form of assurance conclusion thereon.

in connection with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 

and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated financial 

statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 

we are required to report that fact. 

we have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

the holding Company’s board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the act with respect 

to the preparation of these Consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated state of 

affairs (inancial position), Consolidated Proit or Loss (inancial performance including other comprehensive income), 
Consolidated changes in equity and Consolidated cash lows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the Indian accounting Standards speciied under section 133 of the Act.

this responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 

act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 

and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal inancial controls, that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 

the Consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 

due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated inancial statements by 
the Directors of the holding Company, as aforesaid.

in preparing the Consolidated financial statements, the respective boards of Directors of the companies included in 

the group are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 

matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends 

to liquidate the group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

the respective board of Directors of the companies included in the group are also responsible for overseeing the 

inancial reporting process of the group.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated financial statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our 

opinion. reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 

with standard on auditing (sas) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. misstatements can arise from 

fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 

inluence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

as part of an audit in accordance with sas, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

throughout the audit. we also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 

suficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. under section 143(3)(i) of the act, we are also responsible for expressing our 

opinion on whether the group has adequate internal inancial controls system with reference to Consolidated 
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management;

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

signiicant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated 

financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. our conclusions are based on 

the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. however, future events or conditions may cause 

the Group to cease to continue as a going concern; and

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial Statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the Consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, 

makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Consolidated financial 

Statements may be inluenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of 
our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identiied misstatements 
in the Consolidated financial statements.

we communicate with those charged with governance of the holding Company regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and signiicant audit indings, including any signiicant deiciencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 

we also provide those charged with governance of the holding Company with a statement that we have complied 

with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Other Matters 

(a) We did not audit the inancial statements / inancial information of one subsidiary whose inancial statements 
relect total assets of Rs. 188.43 Lakhs as at 31st March, 2021, total revenues of Rs. 516.60 Lakhs and net cash 
lows amounting to (Rs.6.89 Lakhs) for the year ended 31st March, 2021, as considered in the consolidated inancial 
statements. These inancial statements / inancial information have been audited by other auditor whose reports 
has been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated inancial statements, in so far as 
it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiary company and our report in terms of 

sub-section (3) of section 143 of the act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary company, is based solely 

on the reports of the other auditor.

 Our opinion on the consolidated inancial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
below, is not modiied in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the 
reports of the other auditor and the inancial statements / inancial information certiied by the Management. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. as required by section 143(3) of the act, we report that:

 a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated inancial statements;

 b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of aforesaid consolidated 

inancial statements have been kept so far as appears from our examination of those books;

 c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Proit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
income), the Consolidated statement of Changes in equity and the Consolidated statement of Cash flows 

dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account maintain for the purpose of preparation 

of the consolidated inancial statement;

 d) in our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply with the indian accounting standards 

speciied under Section 133 of the Act;

 e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the holding Company as on march 

31, 2021 and taken on record by the board of Directors of the holding Company and the reports of the 

statutory auditor of its subsidiary company, none of the directors of the Group companies is disqualiied as on 
march 31, 2021, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the act;

 f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal inancial controls over inancial reporting and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “annexure a” which is based on the auditor’s 

reports of the Holding company and its subsidiary companies. Our report expresses an unmodiied opinion on 
the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Group’s internal control over inancial reporting; and

 g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the auditors’ report in accordance with rule 11 of the 

Companies (audit and auditors) rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according 

to the explanations given to us:

  i. the Consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated 

inancial position of the Group – Refer Note 45 of the Consolidated Financial Statements;
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  ii.   the Group did not have any long-term contracts, including derivative contracts as at march 31,2021, for 

which there were any material foreseeable losses.

  iii. there has been no delay in transferring amounts required to be transferred to the investor education and 

protection fund by the holding Company. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred 

to the investor education and protection fund by the subsidiaries during the year ended.

2. with respect to the reporting under section 197 (16) of the act to be included in the auditors’ report, in our 

opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration (including sitting fees) 

paid by the holding and its subsidiary Companies to its Directors during the current year is in accordance with the 

provisions of section 197 of the act and is not in excess of the limit laid down therein.

 for a l p s & Co. 
 Chartered accountants
 firm’s iCai regn. no. 313132e

 (r.s.tulsyan)
 partner 

Kolkata m. no. 51793

Dated: 30th day of June, 2021 uDin no.21051793aaaaal8359

ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
report on the internal financial Controls Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies act, 2013 (“the act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidate inancial statements of the Group as of and for the year ended March 31, 2021, we 
have audited the internal inancial controls with reference to the inancial statements of Alfred Herbert (India)Limited(hereinafter 
referred to as the “holding Company”) and its subsidiary companies as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

the respective board of Directors of the holding Company and subsidiary Company incorporated in india are responsible for 

establishing and maintaining internal inancial controls based on the internal controls over inancial reporting criteria established 
by the holding company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance note on audit of 

internal financial Controls over financial reporting (the “Guidance note”) issued by the institute of Chartered accountants of 

India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal inancial controls that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and eficient conduct of its business, including adherence to holding company 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 

accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable inancial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the holding company internal inancial controls over inancial reporting based on 
our audit. we conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance note on audit of internal financial Controls over financial 

reporting (“the Guidance notes”)and the standards on auditing, issued by iCai and deemed to be prescribed under section 

143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal inancial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal 
inancial controls and, both issued by the ICAI.   Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal inancial controls 
over inancial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal inancial controls system 
over inancial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal inancial controls over inancial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of such internal inancial controls over inancial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. the 

procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

Consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditor in terms of their report 

referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is suficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
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Covered Entities internal inancial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A Company’s internal inancial control with reference to Financial Statements is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of inancial reporting and the preparation of Financial Statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal inancial control with reference to Financial 
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 

accurately and fairly relect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of  financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations 

of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection 

of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the  financial 

statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal inancial controls with reference to Financial Statements, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 

detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal inancial controls with reference to Financial Statements to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal inancial control with reference to Financial Statements may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

in our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Group has, in all material 

respects, an adequate internal inancial controls with reference to Financial Statements and such internal inancial controls with 
reference to Financial Statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal inancial controls with 
reference to financial statements criteria established by the holding company considering the essential components of internal 

control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Control with reference to inancial statement issued by the 
institute of Chartered accountants of india.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal inancial 
controls with reference to Consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates to one (1) subsidiary Company, is based on the 

corresponding audit report of the other auditor, as applicable, of such company. 

Our opinion is not qualiied in respect of this matter.

 for a l p s & Co. 
 Chartered accountants
 firm’s iCai regn. no. 313132e

 (r.s.tulsyan)
 partner 

Kolkata m. no. 51793

Dated: 30th day of June, 2021 uDin no.21051793aaaaal8359
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at 31st march, 2021                                                                                                                                 (rs. in lakhs)

particulars refer note 
no.

 As at March 31, 
2021 

 as at march 
31, 2020 

ASSETS
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash equivalents 5  8.23  567.62 
other bank balances 6  129.60  42.65 
receivables
(i) trade receivables 7  19.35  37.50 
investments 8  7,049.82  4,961.45 
other financial assets 9  55.95  57.68 
Total Financial Assets  7,262.95  5,666.89 
Non Financial Assets
inventories 10  103.30  487.35 
Current tax assets (net) 11  47.63  68.32 
investment property 12  284.26  284.26 
property, plant and equipment 13  142.66  231.83 
Capital work in progress  2,438.01  2,031.18 
intangible assets 14  -  - 
other non financial assets 15  79.93  112.58 
Total Non Financial Assets  3,095.79  3,215.52 
Total Assets  10,358.74  8,882.41 
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
Payables
(I) Trade Payables 16
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  -  35.28 
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises 

 67.11  275.80 

borrowings (other than Debt securities) 17  -  90.14 
lease liabilities 18  46.77  57.86 
other financial liabilities 19  79.96  50.69 
Total Financial Liabilities  193.84  509.76 
Non Financial Liabilities
provisions 20  1.20  9.13 
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 21  430.73  248.59 
other non financial liabilities 22  202.43  315.88 
Total Non Financial Liabilities  634.36  573.60 
Equity
equity share Capital 23  77.14  77.14 
other equity 24  9,453.40  7,721.91 
Total Equity attributable to the owners of the parent  9,530.54  7,799.05 
non Controlling interest  -  - 
Total Liabilities  828.20  1,083.36 
Total Liabilities and Equity  10,358.74  8,882.41 
accompanying notes on Consolidated financial statements 1 - 52
these notes form an integral part of the Consolidated financial statements
as per our report of even date

for alps & Co. For and on behalf of the Board 
Chartered accountants    
firm registration no. : 313132e v. matta r. C. tapuriah 
r s tulsyan Chief Executive Officer Director
Partner pan : aDmpm4399r Din-00395997
membership no. : 051793
 shobhana sethi s. s. Jain
place : Kolkata Company Secretary & Chief Financial Officer Director
Dated: 30th June, 2021  pan : Dlbps7691G Din-00013732
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Consolidated Statement of Proit and Loss
for the year ended 31st March, 2021                                                                                                     (rs. in lakhs)

sl. 
no.

particulars
refer note 

no.
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2021 
 for the year ended 

march 31, 2020 
Revenue from Operations

(i) interest income 25  53.19  60.22 
(ii) Dividend income 26  24.80  113.65 
(iii) net Gain on fair value Changes 27  174.34  127.79 
(iv) sale of products 28  446.74  917.53 
(v) sale of services 29  6.20  4.89 
(vi) other operating revenue 30  12.43  7.06 
(I) Total Revenue from Operations  717.70  1,231.14 
(II) Other Income 31  91.97  41.08 
(III) Total Income (I + II)  809.67  1,272.23 

Expenses
(i) finance Costs 32  17.50  16.83 
(ii) Cost of materials Consumed 33  126.05  665.91 
(iii) Changes in inventories of finished Goods and work in progress 34  298.61  (56.18)
(iv) Employee Beneits Expense 35  206.19  255.20 
(v) Depreciation, amortization and impairment 36  19.85  25.30 
(vi) other expenses 37  147.07  244.15 
(IV) Total Expenses  815.27  1,151.21 
(V) Profit before tax (III - IV)  (5.60)  121.02 
(VI) Tax Expense 38

(i) Current tax  12.25  - 
(ii) Deferred tax - charge/(credit)  7.41  29.42 
(iii) income tax for earlier years  (3.12)  0.05 

 16.54  29.46 
(VII) Profit for the period (V - VI)  (22.14)  91.56 
(VIII) Other Comprehensive Income

(i) Items that will not be reclassiied to proit or loss 39  1,973.55  (1,009.80)
(ii) income tax relating to above 38.3
- Current tax  18.20  - 
- Deferred tax  174.73  (684.39)
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the period (i - ii)  1,780.62  (325.41)

(IX) Total Comprehensive Income for the period (VII + VIII)  1,758.47  (233.86)
(X) Profit attributable to 

(i) owners of alfred herbert (india) limited  (22.14)  91.56 
(ii) non controlling interest  - 

(XI) Other comprehensive income attributable to 
(i) owners of alfred herbert (india) limited  1,780.62  (325.41)
(ii) non controlling interest  - 

(XII) Total comprehensive income attributable to 
(i) owners of alfred herbert (india) limited  1,758.47  (233.86)
(ii) non controlling interest  - 

(XIII) Earnings per equity share (Face Value of Rs. 10 each)
  - basic (rs.) 40 (2.87)  11.87 
  - Diluted (rs.) (2.87)  11.87 

accompanying notes on Consolidated financial statements 1 - 52
these notes form an integral part of the Consolidated financial statements
as per our report of even date

for alps & Co. For and on behalf of the Board 
Chartered accountants    
firm registration no. : 313132e v. matta r. C. tapuriah 
r s tulsyan Chief Executive Officer Director
Partner pan : aDmpm4399r Din-00395997
membership no. : 051793
 shobhana sethi s. s. Jain
place : Kolkata Company Secretary & Chief Financial Officer Director
Dated: 30th June, 2021  pan : Dlbps7691G Din-00013732
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(i) Equity Share Capital
Particulars (Rs. in Lakhs)
As at April 1, 2019   77.14
movement during the year  -
As at March 31, 2020   77.14
movement during the year  -
As at March 31, 2021   77.14

(ii) Other Equity
As at March 31, 2021                                                                                                    (rs. in lakhs)

particulars
reserves and surplus other Comprehensive income

totalCapital 

reserve

Capital revalu-

ation reserve

statutory reserve (in terms of section 

45iC of reserve bank of india act, 1934) 

General 

reserve

retained

earnings

remeasurement of 

Deined Beneit Plans
equity instrument through 

other Comprehensive income
As at March 31, 2020  0.60  50.37  864.47  3,552.89  1,452.52  (0.00)  1,801.06  7,721.91 
Proit for the year  -    -    -    -    (22.14)  -    -    (22.14) 
other Comprehensive income for the year  -    -    -    -    -    (0.20)  1,780.81  1,780.61 
transferred from retained earnings to statutory reserve  -    -    11.51  -    (11.51)  -    -    -   
transferred from retained earnings to General reserve  -    -    -    100.00  (100.00)  -    -    -   
transfer to retained earnings on disposal of equity instruments  -    -    -    -    276.01  -    (276.01)  -   
transfer to retained earnings from other Comprehensive income  -    -    -    -    (0.20)  0.20  -    -   
Dividend paid including Dividend Distribution tax  -    -    -    -    (27.00)  -    -    (27.00)
As at March 31, 2021  0.60  50.37  875.97  3,652.89  1,567.68  (0.00)  3,305.89  9,453.40 

As at March 31, 2020                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              (rs. in lakhs) 
As at April 1, 2019  0.60  50.37  844.81  3,312.89  642.57  (0.00)  3,127.77  7,979.01 
Proit for the year  -    -    -    -    91.56  -    -    91.56 
other Comprehensive income for the year  -    -    -    -    -    (5.26)  (320.15)  (325.41)
transferred from retained earnings to statutory reserve  -    -    19.66  -    (19.66)  -    -    -   
transferred from retained earnings to General reserve  -    -    -    240.00  (240.00)  -    -    -   
transfer to retained earnings on disposal of equity instruments  -    -    -    -    1,006.56  -    (1,006.56)  -   
transfer to retained earnings from other Comprehensive income  -    -    -    -    (5.26)  5.26  -    -   
Dividend paid including Dividend Distribution tax  -    -    -    -    (23.25)  -    -    (23.25)
As at March 31, 2020  0.60  50.37  864.47  3,552.89  1,452.52  (0.00)  1,801.06  7,721.91 

refer note no. 24 for nature and purpose of reserves. 

accompanying notes on Consolidated financial statements                                          1 - 52       
these notes form an integral part of the Consolidated financial statements
as per our report of even date
for alps & Co. For and on behalf of the Board 
Chartered accountants
firm registration no. : 313132e v. matta r. C. tapuriah 
r s tulsyan Chief Executive Officer Director
Partner pan : aDmpm4399r Din-00395997
membership no. : 051793
 shobhana sethi s. s. Jain
place : Kolkata Company Secretary & Chief Financial Officer Director
Dated: 30th June, 2021  pan : Dlbps7691G Din-00013732

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31st March, 2021
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended March 31, 2021                                                                                                   (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
 Year ended

March 31, 2021 
 Year ended

march 31, 2020 
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Net Profit before Tax  (5.60)  121.02 
Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortisation  19.85  25.30 
finance Costs  17.50  16.83 
rental income as per eir method  (0.73)  (0.73)
Proit on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment  (29.31)  - 
net Gain on fair value Changes  (174.34)  (127.79)

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes  (172.63)  34.63 
Adjustments for :

Decrease/(increase) in loans and advances  -  (102.17) 
Decrease/(increase) in inventories  384.06  - 
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables  52.47  51.89 
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables  (328.06)  74.22 
(Decrease)/increase in provisions  (8.13)  (0.93)

Cash Generated from Operations  (72.29)  57.64 
taxes (paid)/refund  (6.64)  5.19 

Net Cash generated from Operating Activities  (78.94)  62.83 
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities

additions to property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, investment property and Capital 
work in progress

 (308.20)  (515.65)

(purchase)/sale of investments (net)  59.72  1,047.11 
additions to other bank balances  (86.95)  (33.21)
Net Cash Generated from/(Utilised in) Investing Activities  (335.43)  498.25 

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
(repayment of)/ proceeds from borrowings  (90.14)  (26.43)
repayment of lease liabiilities  (16.87)  (14.22)
interest paid  (11.02)  (10.64)
Dividend paid  (27.00)  (19.29)
Corporate Dividend tax paid  -  (3.96)
Net Cash Utilised in Financing Activities  (145.03)  (74.54)
Net increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents  (559.39)  486.55 
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Opening Balance)  567.62  81.08 
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Closing Balance)  8.23  567.62 

Note :
1 The above Cash low statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in the Ind AS - 7 - Statement of Cash Flows.
2 Cash and Cash equivalents as at the balance sheet date consists of:                                                                                                (rs. in lakhs)

particulars  As at
March 31, 2021 

 as at
march 31, 2020 

Cash on hand 0.04  0.21 
balances with banks in current accounts  8.19  74.41 
Balances with banks in ixed deposits  -  493.00 
Total  8.23  567.62 

3 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from Financing Activities:                                                                                      (rs. in lakhs)
particulars  Non Cash Flows  As at March 31, 2021  as at march 31, 2020  Cash Flows 
Cash credit  -  - 90.14 (90.14)
Total  -  - 90.14 (90.14)

accompanying notes on Consolidated financial statements  1 - 52  
these notes are an integral part of the Consolidated financial statements
as per our report of even date
for alps & Co. For and on behalf of the Board 
Chartered accountants    
firm registration no. : 313132e v. matta r. C. tapuriah 
r s tulsyan Chief Executive Officer Director
Partner pan : aDmpm4399r Din-00395997
membership no. : 051793
 shobhana sethi s. s. Jain
place : Kolkata Company Secretary & Chief Financial Officer Director
Dated: 30th June, 2021  pan : Dlbps7691G Din-00013732
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Corporate Information

 The Alfred Herbert (India) Limited is a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) having the registered ofice at Herbert House 
13/3, Strand Road, Kolkata-700 001 , engaged in non-banking inancial activities inancial service activities. It has been 
registered with the reserve bank of india (rbi) as a non-banking finance Company (nbfC) and is therefore governed by 
directions and laws issued for nbfC by rbi.

 The consolidated inancial statements relate to Alfred Herbert (India) Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding 
Company” and its subsidiaries (collectively hereinafter referred to as “Group”) as detailed below: 

 Investment in subsidiaries

Name of the subsidiary Principal 
activity

Place of incorporation 
and Principal Place of 

Business

Proportion of ownership interest/voting 
rights held by the Holding Company

As at

March 31, 2021

As at

March 31, 2020

alfred herbert limited manufacturing india 100% 100%

herbert holdings limited investment india 100% 100%

2 Statement of Compliance with Ind AS and Recent Pronouncements

 2.1 These consolidated inancial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) 
prescribed under section 133 of the Companies act, 2013 (“act”) read with rule 3 of the Companies (indian accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time). Ind ASs issued and notiied by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) till the inancial statements approved 
for issue by the Board of Directors have been considered in preparing these consolidated inancial statements. 
accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued indian accounting standard is 
initially adopted or a revision to an existing indian accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy 
hitherto in use.

 2.2 Recent Pronouncements

  Proposed amendments to Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

  on June 18, 2021, ministry of Corporate affairs (“mCa”) has issued Companies (indian accounting standards) 
amendment rules, 2021 notifying amendments to certain existing ind as. these amendments have been made 
effective from the date of publication in the Oficial Gazette i.e. on 18th June, 2021. Certain such Ind AS which are 
relevant to companies operations includes ind as 1 ‘presentation of financial statements’, ind as 8 ‘accounting 
policies, Changes in estimates and errors’, ind as 12 ‘income taxes’, ind as 16 ‘property, plant and equipments’, 
ind as 27 ‘separate financial statements’, ind as 34 ‘interim financial reporting’, ind as 37 ‘provisions, Contingent 
liabilities and Contingent assets’, ind as 38 ‘intangible assets’, ind as 107 ‘financial instruments: Disclosures’, 
ind as 109 ‘financial instruments’, ind as 115 ‘revenue from Contracts with Customers’, ind as 116 ‘leases’.  
even though the company will evaluate the impact of the above, none of these amendments as such are vital in 
nature and as are not likely to have any material impact on the inancial statements of the company. There are other 
amendments in various others ind as which have not been listed hereinabove since these are not relevant to the 
company.

3 Significant Accounting Policies 

 3.1 Basis of Preparation

  the Consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis 
excepting certain inancial instruments which are measured in terms of relevant Ind AS at fair value/ amortized costs 
at the end of each reporting period. 

  historical cost convention is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and 
services.

  the Consolidated financial statements are presented in indian rupees and all values are rounded off to the nearest 
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lakhs upto two decimal places, except otherwise stated.

 3.2 Fair Value Measurement

  fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions.

  the Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels depending on the ability 
to observe inputs employed for such measurement:

  Level 1: inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable either directly or indirectly for 
the asset or liability. 

   Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability which are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

  the Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. this includes a 
inance team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all signiicant fair value measurements who regularly 
review signiicant unobservable inputs, valuation adjustments and fair value hierarchy under which the valuation 
should be classiied.

 3.3 Principles of Consolidation

  The consolidated inancial statements incorporate the inancial statements of the Holding Company and entities 
controlled by the holding Company i.e., its subsidiaries.

  Control is achieved when the holding Company is exposed to, or has rights to the variable returns of the entity and 
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

  Subsidiary Companies

  The Group combines the inancial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies line-by-line 
adding together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. the intra group balances and intra 
group transactions between the entities within the Group are fully eliminated.

  non Controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the Consolidated statement 
of Proit and Loss, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Consolidated Balance Sheet respectively.

  the difference between the costs of investment in the subsidiaries, over the net assets at the time of acquisition of 
shares in the subsidiaries is recognised in the consolidated inancial statements as Goodwill or Capital reserve as the 
case may be.

 3.4 Property Plant and Equipment

  property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition, construction and subsequent improvements thereto 
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. for this purpose cost include deemed cost on the date 
of transition and comprises purchase price of assets or its construction cost including duties and taxes, inward 
freight and other expenses incidental to acquisition or installation and adjustment for exchange differences wherever 
applicable and any cost directly attributable to bring the asset into the location and condition necessary for it to be 
capable of operating in the manner intended for its use.

  parts of an item of property, plant and equipment having different useful lives and material value and subsequent 
expenditure on property, plant and equipment arising on account of capital improvement or other factors are 
accounted for as separate components.

  the cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the 
item if it is probable that the future economic beneits embodied within the part will low to the Group and its cost 
can be measured reliably. the costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in 
the income statement when incurred.

 3.5 Investment Property

  investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation, or both. investment properties 
are measured initially at their cost of acquisition. the cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost, if capitalisation 
criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. 
subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Contd.)
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when it is probable that the future economic beneits associated with the item will low to the Group. All other repair 
and maintenance costs are recognised in the Statement of Proit and Loss as incurred.

 3.6 Intangible Assets

  intangible assets are stated at cost comprising of purchase price inclusive of duties and taxes less accumulated 
amount of amortization and impairment losses. Such assets, are amortised over a period of ive years and assessed 
for impairment whenever there is an indication of the same.

  amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each reporting 
date. 

 3.7 Derecognition of Tangible Assets, Investment Property and Intangible Assets

  an item of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets is de-recognised upon disposal 
or when no future economic beneits are expected to arise from its use or disposal. Gain or loss arising on the 
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets is 
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in 
the Statement of Proit and Loss. 

 3.8 Impairment of Tangible Assets, Investment Property and Intangible Assets

  tangible assets, investment property and intangible assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date for impairment. in 
case events and circumstances indicate any impairment, recoverable amount of assets is determined. an impairment 
loss is recognized in the statement of proit and loss, whenever the carrying amount of assets either belonging to 
Cash Generating unit (CGu) or otherwise exceeds recoverable amount. the recoverable amount is the higher of 
asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash lows 
from the use of the assets are discounted to their present value at appropriate rate. 

  impairment losses recognized earlier may no longer exist or may have come down. based on such assessment at each 
reporting period the impairment loss is reversed and recognized in the Statement of Proit and Loss. In such cases 
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the lower of its recoverable amount and the carrying amount that 
have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

 3.9 Capital work in progress and Capital Advances

  Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the balance sheet date, is shown as Capital work in progress. 
advances given towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date are 
disclosed in other non financial assets.

 3.10 Inventories

  inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost of the inventories is generally ascertained on 
weighted average basis. materials and other supplies held for use in the production of inventories are not written 
down below cost if the inished product in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. 
Cost for the purpose of valuation of work-in-progress and stock-in-trade includes materials, labour and appropriate 
portion of production overheads. 

 3.11 Foreign Currency Transactions

  transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. 
foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the year end. the loss or gain 
thereon and also on the exchange differences on settlement of the foreign currency transaction during the year 
are recognized in the Statement of Proit & Loss, except in the cases where any ixed asset acquired from a country 
outside India, in such case, these are adjusted to the cost of respective ixed assets. 

 3.12 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

  Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (inancial instruments) are recognised when the Group becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the instruments.

  Financial assets and inancial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of inancial assets and inancial Liabilities (other than inancial assets and 
inancial liabilities at fair value through proit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the inancial 
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assets or inancial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition of inancial assets or inancial liabilities at fair value through proit or loss are recognised immediately in 
the Statement of Proit and Loss.

  The classiication of inancial instruments whether to be measured at Amortized Cost, at Fair Value through Proit 
and loss (fvtpl) or at fair value through other Comprehensive income (fvtoCi) depends on the objective and 
contractual terms to which they relate. Classiication of inancial instruments are determined on initial recognition.

  (i) Cash and cash equivalents

   All highly liquid inancial instruments, which are readily convertible into determinable amounts of cash and 
which are subject to an insigniicant risk of change in value and are having original maturities of three months 
or less from the date of purchase, are considered as cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents includes 
balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

  (ii) financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

   financial assets held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual 
cash lows and the contractual terms of the inancial asset give rise on speciied dates to cash lows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding are measured at amortized cost.

  the above financial assets and financial liabilities subsequent to initial recognition are measured at amortized cost 
using effective interest rate (eir) method.

  the effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts (including all fees and 
points paid or received, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the 
Financial Asset or Financial Liability to the gross carrying amount of the inancial asset or to the amortised cost 
of inancial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

  (iii) financial asset at fair value through other Comprehensive income (fvtoCi)

   Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these inancial assets are 
held within a business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash lows and selling inancial 
assets and the contractual terms of the inancial asset give rise on speciied dates to cash lows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. subsequent to initial recognition, they 
are measured at fair value and changes therein are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

  (iv) For the purpose of para (ii) and (iii) above, principal is the fair value of the inancial asset at initial recognition 
and interest consists of consideration for the time value of money and associated credit risk.

  (v) Financial Assets or Liabilities at Fair value through proit or loss

   financial instruments which does not meet the criteria of amortised cost or fair value through other 
comprehensive income are classiied as Fair Value through Proit or loss. These are recognised at fair value and 
changes therein are recognized in the statement of proit and loss.

  (vi) Impairment of inancial assets

   A inancial asset is assessed for impairment at each balance sheet date. A inancial asset is considered to be 
impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated 
future cash lows of that asset.

   The Group measures the loss allowance for a inancial asset at an amount equal to the lifetime expected 
credit losses if the credit risk on that inancial instrument has increased signiicantly since initial recognition. If 
the credit risk on a inancial instrument has not increased signiicantly since initial recognition, the company 
measures the loss allowance for that inancial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit 
losses.

   however, for trade receivables or contract assets that result in relation to revenue from contracts with customers, 
the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

  (vii) Derecognition of inancial instruments 

   The Group derecognizes a inancial asset or a group of inancial assets when the contractual rights to the cash 
lows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the inancial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the asset to another party. 
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   On derecognition of a inancial asset (except for equity instruments designated as FVTOCI), the difference 
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable are recognized 

in statement of proit and loss.

   on derecognition of assets measured at fvtoCi the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other 

comprehensive income is reclassiied from equity to proit or loss as a reclassiication adjustment.

   Financial liabilities are derecognized if the Group’s obligations speciied in the contract expire or are discharged 
or cancelled. The difference between the carrying amount of the inancial liability derecognized and the 
consideration paid and payable is recognized in Statement of Proit and Loss. 

 3.13 Equity Share Capital

  an equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the company after deducting all 

of its liabilities. par value of the equity shares is recorded as share capital and the amount received in excess of par 

value is classiied as Securities Premium.

  Costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax 

effects. 

 3.14 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

  provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a legal or 

constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outlow of resources and 
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. provisions are not recognised for future operating 

losses. the amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 

obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 

obligation.

  Contingent liabilities are not recognized and are disclosed by way of notes to the consolidated inancial statements 
when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be conirmed only by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group 

or when there is a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outlow of 
resources will be required to settle the same or a reliable estimate of the amount in this respect cannot be made.

 3.15 Employee Benefits

  Employee beneits are accrued in the year in which services are rendered by the employees. Short term employee 
beneits are recognized as an expense in the statement of proit and loss for the year in which the related service is 
rendered.

  Contribution to deined contribution plans such as Provident Fund etc, are recognised as and when incurred.

  (i) Gratuity (Defined Benefit Plan) : 

   Holding Company : the holding Company has a Gratuity fund administered by the trustees, which is 

independent of the Holding Company’s inance. The liability in respect of Gratuity has been determined by 
actuarial valuation following projected unit Credit method.

   Subsidiary Company (Alfred Herbert Limited) : the liability in respect of Gratuity has been determined by 

actuarial valuation.

  (ii) Leave Encashment :

   Holding Company: according to the prevailing practice of the holding Company, the employees are allowed 

to enjoy the leave within the year. no encashment of leave is allowed.

   Subsidiary Company (Alfred Herbert Limited): the liability in respect of leave encashment is accounted for 

on the basis of actuarial valuation.

  iii) Provident Fund (Defined Contribution Scheme) : accounted for on accrual basis based on the monthly 

contribution made to the appropriate authorities.
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 3.16 Revenue Recognition

  Recognition of Dividend and Interest Income

  Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive the payment is established, it is probable that the 
economic beneits associated with the dividend will low to the entity and the amount of dividend can be measured 
reliably. this is generally when the shareholders or board of Directors approve the dividend. under ind as 109, 
interest income is recorded using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method for all inancial instruments measured at 
amortised cost. the eir is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of 
the inancial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the inancial asset. 
the eir (and therefore the amortised cost of the asset) is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium 
on acquisition, fees and costs that are an integral part of the eir.

  Sale of products and Sale of services

  Revenue is measured based on the considerations speciied in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts 
collected on behalf of third parties. the revenue from sales is recognised when control over a product or service 
has been transferred and/or products/services are delivered/provided to the customers. the delivery occurs when 
the product has been shipped or delivered to the speciic location as the case may be and the customer has either 
accepted the products in accordance with contract or the Group has suficient evidence that all the criteria for 
acceptance has been satisied. Returns, discounts and rebates collected, if any, are deducted from sales.

 3.17 Borrowing Costs

  borrowing cost comprises of interest paid and other costs in connection with the borrowing of the funds. all 
borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of Proit and Loss using the effective interest method except to the 
extent attributable to qualifying property, plant and equipment which are capitalised to the cost of related assets. a 
qualifying ppe is an asset, that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale.

 3.18 Leases

  as a lessee

  A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identiied asset for a 
period of time in exchange for consideration. 
the Group’s lease asset class primarily consist of leases for land. at the inception of the contract, group assess 
whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right 
to control the use of an identiied asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identiied asset, the group assesses whether:

  (i) the contract involves the use of an identiied asset

  (ii) group has substantially all of the economic beneits from the use of the asset through the period of the lease 
and

  (iii) group has the right to direct the use of the asset.

  at the date of commencement of the lease, group recognizes a right-of-use asset (“”rou””) and a 
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 
twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low-value leases. for these short-term or low-value leases, the 
group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 
the right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted 
for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct cost less any 
lease incentives. they are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 
Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. 
rou assets and lease liabilities include these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised. 
the lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. the 
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the 
incremental borrowing rates. lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right 
of use asset if the group changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option. 
on the balance sheet, rou assets have been included in property, plant and equipment and lease liabilities have 
been included in borrowings and other inancial liabilities.
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 3.19 Taxes on Income

  income tax expense representing the sum of current tax expense and the net charge of the deferred taxes is 
recognized in the income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or other 
comprehensive income.

  Current tax is provided on the taxable income and recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered 
from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end 
of the reporting period. 

  Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable proit. 
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally 
recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable proits will be 
available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. 

  Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which 
the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

  the carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that suficient taxable proits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax 
asset to be utilized.

 3.20 Earnings Per Share

  Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net proit attributable to the equity shareholders of the 
holding Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings 
per share is computed by dividing the net proit attributable to the equity shareholders of the Holding Company 
by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the 
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential 
equity shares 

4 Critical accounting judgments, assumptions and key sources of estimation and uncertainty 

 The preparation of the consolidated inancial statements in conformity with the measurement principle of Ind AS requires 
management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. these estimates, judgments and assumptions affect 
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the inancial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during 
the period. accounting estimates could change from period to period. actual results could differ from those estimates. 
appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the 
estimates. Differences between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the year in which the results are known 
/ materialized and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the inancial statements.

 Application of accounting policies that require signiicant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments and the 
use of assumptions in the inancial statements have been disclosed below. The key assumptions concerning the future and 
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a signiicant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next inancial year are discussed below:

 4.1 Depreciation/amortisation and impairment on property, plant and equipment, investment property and 
intangible assets

  property, plant and equipment is depreciated on straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives in accordance 
with schedule ii of the Companies act, 2013, taking into account the estimated residual value, wherever applicable. 
Intangible assets are amortised over a period of ive years.

  the Group reviews its carrying value of its tangible assets, investment property and intangible assets whenever there 
is objective evidence that the assets are impaired. in such situation asset’s recoverable amount is estimated which 
is higher of asset’s or cash generating units (CGu) fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. in assessing 
value in use the estimated future cash lows are discounted using pre-tax discount rate which relect the current 
assessment of time value of money. in determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market realisations are 
considered or otherwise in absence of such transactions appropriate valuations are adopted. the Group reviews the 



82

ALfREd HERBERT (iNdiA) LTd.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2021 (Contd.)

estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in order to determine the amount of depreciation/amortisation and 
amount of impairment expense to be recorded during any reporting period. this reassessment may result in change 
estimated in future periods.

 4.2 Current Tax and Deferred Tax

  Signiicant judgment is required in determination of taxability of certain income and deductibility of certain expenses 
during the estimation of the provision for income taxes. Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused losses (carry 
forward of prior years’ losses) and unused tax credit to the extent that it is probable that taxable proit would be 
available against which the losses could be utilised. Signiicant management judgment is required to determine the 
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable 
proits together with future tax planning strategies.

 4.3 Defined Benefit Obligations (DBO)

  Critical estimate of DBO involves a number of critical underlying assumptions such as standard rates of inlation, 
mortality, discount rate, anticipation of future salary increases, etc as estimated by independent actuary appointed 
for this purpose by the Management. Variation in these assumptions may signiicantly impact the DBO amount and 
the annual deined beneit expenses. 

 4.4 Provisions and Contingencies

  Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outlow 
of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outlow can be reliably estimated. The 
timing of recognition and quantiication of the liability requires the application of judgement to existing facts and 
circumstances, which can be subject to change. 

  Management judgment is required for estimating the possible outlow of resources, if any, in respect of contingencies/
claim/litigations/ against the Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

  the carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities and estimation for contingencies are reviewed regularly and revised 
to take account of changing facts and circumstances.
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5. Cash and Cash Equivalents                                                                                                                                            (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer 

note no.
As at

March 31, 2021
as at

march 31, 2020

Cash on hand  0.04  0.21 

Balances with banks :

in Current accounts  8.19  74.41 

in Deposit accounts  -    493.00 

Total  8.23  567.62 

6. Other Bank Balances                                                                                                                                                           (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer 

note no.
As at

March 31, 2021
as at

march 31, 2020

balances with banks in unpaid Dividend account  5.45  5.28 

fixed Deposits with bank  124.15  16.37 

margin Deposits with bank 6.1  -    21.00 

Total  129.60  42.65 

6.1 margin deposits has been done with bank against bank Guarantee. 

7. TRADE RECEIVABLES                                                                                                                                                       (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer 

note no.
As at

March 31, 2021
as at

march 31, 2020

Unsecured, considered good  19.35  37.50 

unsecured, considered doubtful  21.36  17.26 

less: provision for doubtful debts  (21.36)  (17.26)

Total  19.35  37.50 

      

7.1 Movement of Provision for Doubtful Debts                                                                                                                  (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars As at
March 31, 2021

as at
march 31, 2020

Balance as at the beginning of the year  17.26  17.26 

recognised during the year  4.10  -   

written back during the year  -    - 

Balance as at the end of the year  21.36  17.26 
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8. Investments                                                                                                                                         (rs. in lakhs) 

Particulars

refer 
note 
no.

nominal 
value/ 

face value

As at March 31, 2021 as at march 31, 2020

Number/Units Amount number/ 
units

amount

Investment in Mutual Funds - Unquoted

Measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

iDfC banking Debt fund - Growth 10  5,61,270.25  107.96  8,30,269.71  147.32 

iDfC low Duration fund - weekly Div. reinvestment 10  -    -    2,02,905.20  57.96 

iDfC banking & psu Debt fund - Growth 10  58,24,613.94  1,120.35  76,29,912.21  1,353.78 

uti treasury advantage fund - regular plan - Growth option 1000  13,364.33  349.56  13,364.33  328.60 

hDfC low Duration fund - Growth 10  -    -    5,43,967.55  228.88 

hDfC banking & psu Debt fund - regular plan - Growth 10  7,07,009.00  126.11  -    -   

iCiCi prudential banking & psu Debt fund - regular plan - Growth 10  17,22,786.72  430.38  -    -   

Investment in Bonds - Quoted

Measured at Amortised cost

8.30% NHAI Tax Free Bonds 1000  3,743  38.37  3,743  38.37 

8.50% NHAI Tax Free Bonds 1000  30,000  300.00  30,000  300.00 

8.75% nhai tax free bonds 1000  21,200  211.60  21,200  211.60 

Investments in Equity Instruments (fully paid up)

Measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

Quoted

Graphite india limited 2  -    -    5,900  7.50 

Grasim industries limited 2  157  2.28  157  0.75 

aditya birla fashion and retail limited (abfrl) 10  -    -    546  0.84 

aditya birla Capital limited 10  -    -    219  0.09 

Mangalore Reinery and Petrochemicals Limited 10  -    -    400  0.09 

hDfC bank limited 2  5,000  74.68  5,000  43.10 

hindalco industries limited 1  45,750  149.53  45,750  43.76 

reliance industries limited 10  1,14,000  2,283.65  1,34,000  1,490.68 

i D f C 10  -    -    50,000  7.43 

i D f C first bank limited (bonus issue) 10  -    -    50,000  10.55 

i t C limited 1  90,000  196.65  90,000  154.80 

vedanta limited. 1  6,012  13.75  6,012  3.89 

(formerly known as sesa sterlite limited)

birla Corporation limited 10  50,000  475.23  -    -   
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Particulars

refer 
note 
no.

nominal 
value/ 

face value

As at March 31, 2021 as at march 31, 2020

Number/Units Amount number/ 
units

amount

iCiCi bank limited 2  25,000  145.31  -    -   

nestle india limited 10  540  92.71  -    -   

Investments in Equity Instruments (partly paid up)

Quoted

reliance industries limited 10  8,666  94.54  -    -   

Investments in Equity Instruments (fully paid up)

Unquoted

Measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

woodlands multispeciality hospital limited 10  1,780  10.31  1,780  2.98 

lodha Capital markets limited 10  2,43,000  826.85  2,43,000  528.48 

Kirloskar Computer services limited 10  10,000  1.00  10,000  1.00 

less - provision for diminution in value of share  (1.00)  (1.00)

Total  7,049.82  4,961.45 

8.1 Investments within India  7,049.82  4,961.45

9. Other Financial Assets                                                                                                                                 (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer 

note no.

As at

March 31, 2021

as at

march 31, 2020

At Amortised Cost

interest accrued on financial assets measured at amortised cost  3.61  6.06 

security Deposits  50.52  50.52 

others  1.82  1.10 

Total  55.95  57.68 

     

10. INVENTORIES
 (Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)                                                                                     (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer 

note no.

As at

March 31, 2021

as at

march 31, 2020

raw materials  73.00  150.02 

work-in-progress  26.42  324.75 

finished Goods  -    8.70 

loose tools  3.88  3.88 

Total  103.30  487.35 
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11. CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)                                                                                                                        (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer 

note no.

As at

March 31, 2021

as at

march 31, 2020

advance tax including tax deducted at source (net of provision for tax) 11.1  47.63  68.32 

Total  47.63  68.32 

11.1 advance tax is net of provision for tax of rs. 60.63 lakhs (march 31, 2020 - rs. 30.18 lakhs)   

12. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

 As at March 31, 2021                                                                                                   (rs. in lakhs) 

Particulars Land Building - Freehold Total

GROSS BLOCK

As at April 1, 2020  21.75  262.51  284.26 

additions  -    -    -   

Disposal/adjustments  -    -    -   

As at March 31, 2021  21.75  262.51  284.26 

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

As at April 1, 2020  -    -    -   

Charge during the year  -    -    -   

Disposal/adjustments  -    -    -   

As at March 31, 2021  -    -    -   

Net Block as at March 31, 2021  21.75  262.51  284.26

    

 As at March 31, 2020                                                                                                                                     (rs. in lakhs) 

Particulars Land Building - Freehold Total

GROSS BLOCK

As at April 1, 2019  21.75  262.51  284.26

additions  -    -    -   

 Disposal/adjustments  -    -    -   

As at March 31, 2020  21.75  262.51  284.26

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

As at April 1, 2019  -    -    -   

Charge during the year  -    -    -   

Disposal/adjustments  -    -    -   

As at March 31, 2020  -    -    -   

Net Block as at March 31, 2020  21.75  262.51  284.26
    

    



87

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2021 (Contd.)

12.1 Disclosure pursuant to ind as 40 “investment property” :

 a) Amount recognised in Statement of Proit and Loss for Investment Property :                                       (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021
for the year ended 

march 31, 2020

rental income derived from investment property  40.01  38.57 

Direct operating expenses arising from investment property that 
generated rental income

 4.06  4.02 

 

 b) fair value of investment property - rs. 6,868.66 lakhs (march 31, 2020 - rs. 6,355.40 lakhs)

 c) the fair values of investment properties have been determined on the basis of circle rate prevailing in the area in 
which the properties are located and/or the valuation report received from an independent valuer.   
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

 As at March 31, 2021                                                                                                                                    (rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Land Building Plant and 
Equipment

Furniture 
and Fixtures

 Office 
Equipment 

Computers Right 
of Use 
- Lease 
Assets

Total

GROSS BLOCK

As at April 1, 2020  14.49  77.24  111.89  1.07  0.57  0.62  67.74  273.62 

additions  -    -    0.72  -    -    -    -    0.72 

Disposal/adjustments  -    -   88.69  -    -    -    -    88.69 

As at March 31, 2021  14.49  77.24 23.92  1.07  0.57  0.62  67.74 185.65

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

As at April 1, 2020  -    5.85  22.30  0.50  0.33  0.52  12.29  41.79 

Charge during the year  -    2.93 3.28  0.24 -  -    13.40  19.85 

Disposal/adjustments  -    -   18.65   -    -    -    -   18.65   

As at March 31, 2021  -    8.78  6.93  0.74  0.33  0.52  25.69  42.99 

Net Block as at March 31, 2021  14.49  68.46  16.99  0.33  0.24  0.10  42.05  142.66 

 As at March 31, 2020                                                                                                                                (rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Land Building Plant and 
Equipment

Furniture 
and Fixtures

 Office 
Equipment 

Computers 

Right 
of Use 
- Lease 
Assets

Total

GROSS BLOCK

As at April 1, 2019  14.49  77.24  111.89  1.07  0.38  0.62  -    205.69 

additions  -    -    -    -    0.19  -    67.74  67.93 

Disposal/adjustments  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

As at March 31, 2020  14.49  77.24  111.89  1.07  0.57  0.62  67.74  273.62 

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

 As at April 1, 2019  -    2.92  13.16  0.07  0.15  0.38  -    16.68 

 Charge during the year  -    2.93  9.14  0.43  0.18  0.14  12.29  25.11 

 Disposal/adjustments  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

 As at March 31, 2020  -    5.85  22.30  0.50  0.33  0.52  12.29  41.79 

 Net Block as at March 31, 2020  14.49  71.39  89.59  0.57  0.24  0.10  55.45  231.83 

13.1 land amounting rs.14.49 lakhs pertains to holding Company’s land at bangalore. in response to the holding Company’s. 
writ petition against the order of the assistant Commissioner of forest, Karnataka for vacating the holding Company’s 
property in Whiteield acquired from Karnataka Industrial Area Development Board (KIADB), the single bench of Hon’ble 
high Court at Karnataka upheld the holding Company’s contention and held that the land did not belong to the forest 
department. The review petition iled by the forest department against the said judgement has been dismissed and the 
action initiated by the oficials of the forest department having been held to be bad in law. This order is appealable before 
the hon’ble supreme Court of india.        
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14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

 As at March 31, 2021                                                                                                                           (rs. in lakhs) 

Particulars Computer software
Gross Block
As at April 1, 2020 1.37
additions -
Disposals/ adjustments -
As at March 31, 2021 1.37
Accumulated Amortisation
As at April 1, 2020  1.37 
Charge during the year  -   
Disposal / adjustments  -   
As at March 31, 2021  1.37 
Net Block as at March 31, 2021  -   

 as at march 31, 2020                                                                                                                                       (rs. in lakhs) 

Particulars Computer Software

Gross Block

As at April 1, 2019 1.37

additions -

Disposals/ adjustments -

As at March 31, 2020 1.37

Accumulated Amortisation

As at April 1, 2019  1.18 

Charge during the year  0.19 

Disposal / adjustments  -   

As at March 31, 2020  1.37 

Net Block as at March 31, 2020  -   

15. OTHER NON FINANCIAL ASSETS                                                                                                                 (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars refer 
note no.

As at
March 31, 2021

as at
march 31, 2020

Capital advances  20.64  48.46 

advance to suppliers  60.33  36.04 

less : provision for doubtful advances 15.1  (29.87)  (31.36)

 30.46  4.68 

interest income on it refund  0.06 

balances with Government authorities  28.74  59.15 

prepaid expenses  -    0.06 

other advances  0.03  0.23 

surplus balance of gratuity fund  -   

Total  79.93  112.58 

15.1 Movement in Provision for Doubtful Advances                                                                                         (rs. in lakhs) 

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2021
as at

march 31, 2020

Balance as at the beginning of the year 31.36 31.36

recognised during the year  -   

written back during the year  (1.49)  -   

Balance as at the end of the year  29.87  31.36 
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16. TRADE PAYABLES                                                                                                                                        (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer 

note no.
As at

March 31, 2021
as at

march 31, 2020

at amortised Cost

for goods and services

     - Dues of micro and small enterprises  16.1  -    35.28 

     - others  67.11  275.80 

Total  67.11  311.08 

16.1 Disclosure of trade payables  as required under section 22 of micro, small and medium enterprises Development (msmeD) 
Act, 2006, based on the conirmation and information available with the company regarding the status of suppliers.

(rs. in lakhs) 

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2021
as at

march 31, 2020

a)  interest amount remaining unpaid but not due as at year end - 2.19

b) interest paid by the Company in terms of section 16 of micro, small and medium 
enterprises Development act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made 
to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year

- -

c)  interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have 
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the 
interest speciied under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 
2006

-

d) interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at year end -

e)  further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until 
such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise

-

17 BORROWINGS (Other than Debt Securities)                                                                                                  (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer 

note no.
As at

March 31, 2021
as at

march 31, 2020

At Amortised Cost

Secured

term loan from bank 17.2 - -

Loan repayable on demand

Cash Credit 17.3 -  90.14

Total -  90.14

17.1 borrowings within india -  90.14

18. LEASE LIABILITIES                                                                                                                                            (rs. in lakhs)

Particulars
refer 

note no.
As at

March 31, 2021
as at

march 31, 2020

At Amortised Cost

lease liabilities  46.77  57.86 

Total  46.77  57.86 
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19. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES                                                                                                                         (rs. in lakhs) 

Particulars
refer 

note no.
As at

March 31, 2021
as at

march 31, 2020

At Amortised Cost

payable to employees  14.38  -   

security deposits  6.99  6.36 

unpaid dividend  5.45  5.28 

retention money  50.48  34.67 

others  2.66  4.38 

Total  79.96  50.69 

20. PROVISIONS                                                                                                                                                    (rs. in lakhs) 

Particulars
refer 

note no.
As at

March 31, 2021
as at

march 31, 2020

Provision for Employee Beneits  1.20  9.13 

Total  1.20  9.13 

21. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)                                                                                                                 (rs. in lakhs)

Particulars
refer 

note no.
As at

March 31, 2021
as at

march 31, 2020

Deferred tax liabilities  431.44  248.59 

less : Deferred tax assets  (0.71)  0.00 

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)  430.73  248.59 

21.1 Components of Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets) are as follows :

 As at March 31, 2021                                                                                                                                       (rs. in lakhs) 

Particulars

As at

April 1, 2020

Charge/
(Credit) in 
Profit  and 

Loss

Charge/(Credit) 
in Other 

Comprehensive 
Income

As at

March 31, 2021

Deferred Tax Liabilities

timing Difference between written Down value of fixed assets 
as per books of accounts and income tax act, 1961

 37.94  0.73  38.67 

Difference in carrying value and tax base of investments and 
effect of revaluation of asset

 209.15  8.49  174.79  392.43 

Remeasurement of Deined Beneit Plans  1.50  (1.11)  (0.05)  0.34 

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities  248.59  8.13  174.74  431.44 

Deferred Tax Assets

expenses allowed on payment basis u/s 43b of
income tax act, 1961

 0.00  (0.71)  -    0.71 

Total Deferred Tax Assets  0.00  (0.71)  -    0.71 

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)  248.59  7.40  174.74  430.73 
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21.1 Components of Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets) are as follows (Contd.)

 As at March 31, 2020                                                                                                                                     (rs. in lakhs) 

Particulars
As at

April 1, 2019

Charge/
(Credit) in 
Profit  and 

Loss

Charge/(Credit) 
in Other 

Comprehensive 
Income

As at March 31, 
2020 

Deferred Tax Liabilities

timing Difference between written Down value of fixed assets 
as per books of accounts and income tax act, 1961

 37.52  0.42  -    37.94 

Difference in carrying value and tax base of investments and 
effect of revaluation of asset

 863.11  28.59  (682.55)  209.15 

Remeasurement of Deined Beneit Plans  3.34  -    (1.84)  1.50 

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities  903.97  29.01  (684.39)  248.59 

Deferred Tax Assets

expenses allowed on payment basis u/s 43b of
income tax act, 1961

 0.41  0.41  -    0.00 

Total Deferred Tax Assets  0.41  0.41  -    0.00 

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)  903.56  29.42  (684.39)  248.59

22. OTHER NON FINANCIAL LIABILITIES                                                                                                              (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer 

note no.
As at

March 31, 2021
as at

march 31, 2020

income received in advance  4.69  5.42 

statutory Dues  25.95  5.48 

advance from customers  168.38  301.59 

others  3.41  3.39 

TOTAL  202.43  315.88 

23. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL                                                                                                                                    (rs. in lakhs)

particulars
refer 

note no.
As at

March 31, 2021
as at

march 31, 2020

Authorised Shares

equity shares of rs. 10/- each

50,00,000 (march 31, 2020 - 50,00,000) equity shares 500.00 500.00

500.00 500.00

Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid Up Shares

equity shares of rs. 10/- each

771,429 (march 31, 2020 - 771,429) equity shares 77.14 77.14

77.14 77.14

23.1 there has been no change / movement in the number of outstanding shares as at the beginning and at the end of 
reporting period.

23.2 the Group has only one class of equity shares having a par value of rs. 10/- per share. each holder of equity is entitled to 
one vote per share. the Group may declare and pay dividends. the dividend, if any proposed by the board of Directors 
of the Group is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing annual General meeting. in the event of 
liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Group, after 
distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity shares held by equity shareholders.
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23.3 Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding:

particulars
As at

March 31, 2021
as at

march 31, 2020

number of shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year 771,429 771,429

movement during the year - -

number of shares outstanding as at the end of the year 771,429 771,429

23.4 Details in respect of shares in the Group held up by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Name of the Shareholders
Number of 
Shares Held

Number of 
Shares Held

Number of 
Shares Held

Anamika Lodha

- number of shares held 220,576 220,576 220,576 

- percentage of shares held 28.59% 28.59% 28.59%

Simika Lodha

- number of shares held 220,576 220,576 220,576 

- percentage of shares held 28.59% 28.59% 28.59%

24. OTHER EQUITY                                                                                                                                                     (rs. in lakhs)

particulars
refer 

note no.
As at

March 31, 2021
as at

march 31, 2020

Capital reserve 24.2 0.60 0.60

Capital revaluation reserve 24.3 50.37 50.37

statutory reserve (in terms of section 45iC of reserve bank of india 
act, 1934)

24.4  875.97  864.47 

General reserve 24.5  3,652.89  3,552.89 

retained earnings 24.6  1,567.68  1,452.52 

other Comprehensive income 24.7  3,305.89  1,801.06 

Total  9,453.40  7,721.91 

24.1 Refer Statement of Changes in Equity for movement in balances of reserves

24.2 Capital Reserve

 Capital reserve is a reserve which is not free for distribution. the balance in this reserve represents the amount of share 
forfeited by the Group.

24.3 Capital Revaluation Reserve

 this represents revaluation of land at Kolkata and bangalore and building at bangalore.

24.4 Statutory Reserve

 statutory reserve represents the reserve created pursuant to the reserve bank of india act, 1934 (the “rbi act”) and 
related regulations applicable to those companies. under the rbi act, a non banking financial Company is required to 
transfer an amount not less than 20% of its net proit to a reserve fund before declaring any dividend. Appropriation from 
this reserve fund is permitted only for the purposes speciied by the RBI.    

24.5 General Reserve

 The general reserve is created from time to time by appropriating proits from Retained Earnings. The general reserve is 
created by a transfer from one component of equity to another. Accordingly, it is not reclassiied to the statement of proit 
and loss.

24.6 Retained Earnings

 Retained earnings generally represents the undistributed proits/ amount of accumulated earnings of the Group and 
includes remeasurement gains/losses on deined beneit obligations.

24.7 Other Comprehensive Income

 the Group has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of investments in other Comprehensive income. this reserve 
represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on the revaluation of equity instruments measured at fair value. the 
Group transfers amounts from this reserve to retained earnings when the relevant equity instruments are disposed.
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25. INTEREST INCOME                                                                                                                                            (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer 

note no.
For the year ended

March 31, 2021
for the year ended

march 31, 2020

on financial assets measured at amortised cost

- interest income on bonds  48.50  46.75 

- other interest income  4.69  13.47 

Total  53.19  60.22 

26. DIVIDEND INCOME                                                                                                                                           (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer 

note no.
For the year ended

March 31, 2021
for the year ended

march 31, 2020

Dividend income on investments  24.80  113.65 

Total  24.80  113.65 

27. NET GAIN ON FAIR VALUE CHANGES                                                                                                                (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer 

note no.
For the year ended

March 31, 2021
for the year ended

march 31, 2020

net gain on fair valuation of investments measured at fair value 
through proit and loss

 27.1  174.34  127.79 

Total  174.34  127.79 

27.1 Details of net gain on fair valuation of investments measured at fair value through profit and loss          (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
For the year ended

March 31, 2021
for the year ended

march 31, 2020

realised  45.65  3.16 

unrealised  128.70  124.63 

Total  174.35  127.79 

28. SALE OF PRODUCTS                                                                                                                                    (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer 

note no.
For the year ended

March 31, 2021
for the year ended

march 31, 2020

sale of products 28.1  446.74  917.53 

total  446.74  917.53 

28.1 Geographical Information                                                                                                                                (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
For the year ended

March 31, 2021
for the year ended

march 31, 2020

Revenue by Geographical Market

Sale of Products

- Domestic  446.74  738.03 

- export  -    179.50 

Total  446.74  917.53 

29. SALE OF SERVICES                                                                                                                                            (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer 

note no.
For the year ended

March 31, 2021
for the year ended

march 31, 2020

sale of services  6.20  4.89 

Total  6.20  4.89 
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30. OTHER OPERATING REVENUE                                                                                                                      (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer 

note no.
For the year ended

March 31, 2021
for the year ended

march 31, 2020

other operating revenue 30.1  12.43  7.06 

Total  12.43  7.06 

30.1 Details of Other Operating Revenue :                                                                                                                (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
For the year ended

March 31, 2021
for the year ended

march 31, 2020

sale of scrap  12.43  5.91 

revenue from sub contracting  -    1.15 

Total  12.43  7.06 

 
31. OTHER INCOME                                                                                                                                                (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer 

note no.
For the year ended

March 31, 2021
for the year ended

march 31, 2020

rental income  40.74  38.57 

liabilities no longer required written back 31.1  12.10  -   

net gain on foreign currency transactions  -    2.23 

Proit on sale of PPE  29.31  -   

interest income on income tax refund  9.81  -   

miscellaneous income  -    0.28 

Total  91.97  41.08 

32. FINANCE COSTS                                                                                                                                               (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer 

note no.
For the year ended

March 31, 2021
for the year ended

march 31, 2020

interest expenses

- security deposits  0.63  0.58 

- lease liabilities 32.1  5.19  5.61 

- borrowings  11.02  10.64 

- others  0.66  -   

Total  17.50  16.83 
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33. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED                                                                                                                     (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer 

note no.
For the year ended

March 31, 2021
for the year ended

march 31, 2020

Cost of materials Consumed  126.05  665.91 

Total  126.05  665.91 

34. CHANGES IN THE INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND WORK IN PROGRESS                                             (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer 

note no.
For the year ended

March 31, 2021
for the year ended

march 31, 2020

Opening Stock

     finished Goods  0.28  0.28 

     work in progress  324.75  268.57 

 325.03  268.85 

Closing Stock

     finished Goods  -    0.28 

     work in progress  26.42  324.75 

 26.42  325.03 

(Increase)/Decrease in inventories of finished goods and 
work in progress

 298.61  (56.18)

35. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE                                                                                                                        (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer 

note no.
For the year ended

March 31, 2021
for the year ended

march 31, 2020

salaries and wages  178.76  213.62 

Contribution to provident fund and other funds  17.51  17.62 

staff welfare expense  9.92  23.96 

Total  206.19  255.20 

36. DEPRECIATION, AMORTIZATION AND IMPAIRMENT                                                                                           (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer 

note no.
For the year ended

March 31, 2021
for the year ended

march 31, 2020

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 13  19.85  25.11 

amortisation on intangible asset 14  -    0.19 

total  19.85  25.30 
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37. OTHER EXPENSES                                                                                                                                         (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer 

note no.
For the year ended

March 31, 2021
for the year ended

march 31, 2020

power and fuel  16.06  22.39 

Consumable stores  1.72  6.72 

freight outward  3.88  22.10 

testing Charges  1.00  0.67 

repairs  -   

    - building  0.69  0.70 

    - plant & machinery  1.28  23.69 

    - others  4.26  2.51 

rent  0.10  1.30 

warranty expenses  -    3.90 

rates and taxes  6.37  6.83 

insurance  0.43  1.13 

electricity  2.17  4.56 

flat maintainance  2.32  2.31 

postage & telephone  2.45  4.74 

printing & stationary  0.18  1.95 

Commission  1.77 -

balances written off (net)  3.49 -

Data processing expenses  0.03  0.59 

legal & secretarial expenses  13.13  10.06 

net loss on foreign Currency transactions  0.40  -   

professional fees  -    0.38 

motor Car expenses  4.37  9.48 

Consultancy Charges  42.47  55.63 

Directors’ sitting fees  3.10  2.90 

security service  19.96  17.83 

traveling and Conveyance  2.32  11.65 

auditors remuneration  -   -

     audit fees  2.54  1.30 

     limited review  0.50  0.50 

     tax audit fees  0.30  0.30 

     Certiicate, Other Services  0.19  0.75 

internal audit fees  0.23  0.15 

miscellaneous expenditure  9.34  27.13 

Total  147.07  244.15 



98

ALfREd HERBERT (iNdiA) LTd.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Contd.)

38. TAX EXPENSE - CURRENT TAX                                                                                                                           (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer 

note no.
For the year ended

March 31, 2021
for the year ended

march 31, 2020

provision for Current tax  12.25  -   

Total  12.25  -   

38.1 Components of  Tax Expense:
 the components of income tax expense during the year ended march 31, 2021 and march 31, 2020 are:         (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer 

note no.
For the year ended

March 31, 2021
for the year ended

march 31, 2020

Current tax

in respect of the current year  12.25  -   

total Current tax expense recognised in the current year  12.25  -   

Deferred tax

in respect of the current year  7.41  29.42 

total Deferred tax expense recognised in the current year  7.41  29.42 

income tax for earlier years

in respect of earlier years  (3.12)  0.05 

total tax expense recognised in the current year in respect of 
earlier years

 (3.12)  0.05 

total tax expense recognised in the current year  16.54  29.46 

38.2 Reconciliation of Income tax expense for the year with accounting profit is as follows:
 Taxable Income differs from ‘proit before tax’ as reported in the statement of proit and loss because of items of income 

or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. Details in this 
respect are as follows:                                                                                                                                     (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer 

note no.
For the year ended

March 31, 2021
for the year ended

march 31, 2020

Profit before tax (5.60) 121.02

income tax expense calculated at rate applicable - 32.02

less : effect of income exempt from taxation/ deductible for 
computing taxable proit

         non deductible tax expenses - 5.63

         Capital Gain on sale of investments 25.19 -

         tax exempt income - (40.38)

         business loss (17.64) -

         fair valuation of investments (14.09) (31.84)

         income tax for earlier year (3.12) -

         effect of other adjustments (1.99) 64.03

Total Tax expense recognised in Statement of profit and loss 16.54 29.46
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38.3 Income tax recognised in Other Comprehensive Income                                                                          (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer 

note no.
For the year ended

March 31, 2021
for the year ended

march 31, 2020

Deferred tax

Arising on income and expenses recognised in other 
comprehensive income:

net gain on fair value of investments measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income

 174.79  (682.55)

Remeasurement of deined beneit plans (0.05)   (1.84)

Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive income 174.73  (684.39)

Bifurcation of the income tax recognised in other 
comprehensive income into:

Items that will not be reclassiied to proit or loss  174.73  (684.39)

Items that may be reclassiied to proit or loss - -

39. Components of Other Comprehensive Income                                                                                                 (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
refer 

note no.
For the year ended

March 31, 2021
for the year ended

march 31, 2020

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

net gain on fair value of investments measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income

 1,973.75  (1,002.69)

Remeasurement of deined beneit plans  (0.20)  (7.11)

Total  1,973.55  (1,009.80)

40. EARNINGS PER SHARE                                                                                  (amount in rs. lakhs, except otherwise stated) 

particulars
refer 

note no.
For the year ended

March 31, 2021
for the year ended

march 31, 2020

(a) Net proit for basic and diluted earnings per share as per 
Statement of Proit and Loss

 (22.14)  91.56 

Net profit for basic and diluted earnings per share  (22.14)  91.56 

(b) weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of 
basic and diluted earnings per share (face value rs. 10/- per 
share)

  7,71,429  7,71,429 

Number of equity shares considered in calculating basic 
and diluted EPS              

  7,71,429  7,71,429 

c)  earnings per share (eps) of equity share of rs. 10 each:

     i)  basic (rs.)  (2.87)  11.87 

     ii) Diluted (rs.)  (2.87)  11.87 
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41.  Related Party Disclosures

 Related parties have been identiied in terms of Ind AS  24 “Related Party Disclosures” as listed below :

 List of Related Parties where control exists

 A Name of the Related Parties Relationship

  la Crème De la Crème services llp llp where certain Directors are partners

 B Key Management Personnel Relationship

  Ms Shobhana Sethi Company Secretary & Chief Financial Oficer

  Mr Vikram Matta Chief Executive Oficer

 C Transactions with related parties are as follows:                                                                                   (rs. in lakhs)

Particulars 

 LLP where certain Directors are Partners Key Managerial Personnel

For the year ended 

March 31, 2021

 for the year ended 

march 31, 2020 

 For the year ended 

March 31, 2021

for the year ended 

march 31, 2020

lease rent received 16.56 16.56 - -

remuneration paid - -  15.18  14.96 

Notes:

 1)  The above related party information is as identiied by the management and relied upon by the auditor.
 2)  there is no outstanding balances of  related parties as at the end of reporting period.

 3)  related party transactions are excluding reimbursements.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Contd.)
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42. Disclosures for leasing arrangements

(a) the Company has taken land at hide road from Kolkata port trust and premises at Kyd street, Kolkata on lease. 
(b) Amount recognised during the year

(rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
For the year ended

March 31, 2021
for the year ended

march 31, 2020

Depreciation on right of use asset  13.40  12.29 

finance costs on lease liabilities  5.19  5.61 

(c) The movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31 is as under :                                     (rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
As at

March 31, 2021
as at

march 31, 2020

Opening effect of lease liabilities  57.86  67.74 

add: additions  -   

add: finance costs accrued during the year  5.19  5.61 

less: Deletions  -    -   

less: payment of lease liabilities during the year  (14.93)  (14.22)

less: advance rent adjusted  (1.35)  (1.27)

Balance as at the end of the year  46.77  57.86 

(d) The details regarding contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31 on an undiscounted basis: 
(rs. in lakhs) 

particulars
As at

March 31, 2021
as at

march 31, 2020

less than one year  17.01  16.21 

One to ive years  28.37  55.39 

More than ive years  1.34  1.45 

Total  46.72  73.05 

43. Post Retirement Employee Benefits 

 The disclosures required under Indian Accounting Standard 19 on ‘’Employee Beneits’’ are given below:
 a) Defined Contribution Plans

  A deined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays ixed contributions; there is no legal or 
constructive obligation to pay further contributions. the assets of the plan are held separately from those of the Group 
in a fund under the control of trustees.

 Contribution to Deined Contribution Plan, recognized for the year are as under :                                         (Rs. in Lakhs) 

particulars for the year ended 
march 31, 2021

for the year ended 
march 31, 2020

employer’s Contribution to provident fund 4.66  7.63 

employer’s Contribution to esi 0.55  0.99 

b) Defined Benefit Plans

 The employees’ gratuity and leave encashment scheme is a deined beneit plan. The present value of obligation 
is determined based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit Credit method, which recognizes each 
period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee beneit entitlement and measures each unit 
separately to build up the inal obligation. 

 During the current year one of the Company’s subsidiary has computed the Gratuity and leave liability on full 
Value Basis to obtain the deined beneit obligation of gratuity and leave .Accordingly Actuarial Comparatives 
are not available for the current year. Closing Balances for the year ended 31st March, 2021 relects the 
balances pertaining to the holding company only.
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 based on actuarial valuation report of the actuary, disclosures with respect to gratuity and leave encashment 
liability ascertained based on actuarial valuation carried out at the end of the year are as follows:

(rs. in lakhs) 

Gratuity

2020-21 2019-20

i)  Change in the fair value of the defined benefit obligation:

Present Value of Deined Beneit Obligations at the beginning of period  95.27  97.32 

interest Cost 0.88  6.38 

Current service Cost 0.98  4.51 

actuarial (gain) / loss  on obligations (0.48)  6.81 

adjustments (32.72) -

Beneits Paid (45.79)  (19.75)

Liability at the end of the year  18.14  95.27 

ii)  Changes in the Fair Value of Plan Asset

Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year  88.37  101.45 

expected return on plan assets 0.87  6.69 

Contributions by the Company 0.68  0.27 

actuarial gain / (loss)  on plan assets (0.69)  (0.29)

adjustment (26.50 -

Beneits paid (45.79)  (19.75)

Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the year  16.94  88.37 

iii) Actual return on Plan  Asset

expected return on plan  assets 0.87  6.69 

actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets (0.69)  (0.29)

Actual Return on Plan Assets 0.18  6.40 

iv) Amount Recognized in Balance Sheet

liability at the end of the year 18.14  95.27 

fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 16.94  88.37 

 (1.20)  (6.90)

v) Components of Defined Benefit Cost

Current service Cost 0.98  4.51 

interest Cost 0.02  (0.31)

expected return on plan assets -  8.00 

net actuarial (gain) / loss on remeasurement recognised in oCi (0.20)  (0.89)

Total Defined Benefit Cost recognised in Profit and Loss and OCI 1.20  11.31 

vi) Balance Sheet Reconciliation

Opening Net Liability  6.90  (4.13)

expenses as above 1.20  11.31 

adjustments (6.22) -

employers Contribution (0.68)    (0.27)

Amount Recognized in Balance Sheet  1.20  6.90 

 vii) Percentage allocation of plan assets in respect of fund managed by insurer/trust is as follows: 

particulars As at  
March 31, 2021

as at  
march 31, 2020

G-sec/ Corporate securities 48.52% 49.21%

equity 6.71% 4.18%

fixed Deposit and other assets 44.77% 46.61%
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 Compensated Absences 

 The obligation for compensated absences is recognized in the same manner as gratuity except remeasurement beneit 
which is treated as part of oCi. the actuarial liability of Compensated absences (unfunded)  of accumulated privileged 
and sick leaves of the employees of the Company as at march 31 is given below:                                           (rs. in lakhs)

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021
for the year ended 

march 31, 2020

privileged leave 2.23

sick leave -

Principal Actuarial assumptions as at the Balance Sheet date

Discount rate 5.00% 5.28%

expected rate of salary increase 6.00% 6.00%

 Notes:

 i) assumptions relating to future salary increases, attrition, interest rate for discount & overall expected rate of return 
on Assets have been considered based on relevant economic factors such as inlation, market growth & other factors 
applicable to the period over which the obligation is expected to be settled.

 Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income                                                                                              (rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Gratuity

For the year ended March 31, 2021 (0.20)

remeasurement - actuarial gains/(losses)

For the year ended March 31, 2020

remeasurement - actuarial gains/(losses) (7.11)

Sensitivity analysis:                                                                                                                                        (rs. in lakhs)

particulars Change in assumption effect in Gratuity 
obligation

For the year ended 31st March, 2021

Discount rate +1% 17.61

-1% 18.76

salary Growth rate +1% 18.74

-1% 17.61

withdrawal rate +50% 18.13

-50% 18.15

mortality rate -10% 18.14

-10% 18.14

For the year ended 31st March, 2020

Discount rate +1% 91.98 

-1% 99.01

salary Growth rate +1% 98.94 

-1% 91.97

withdrawal rate +50% 95.25 

-50% 95.30

mortality rate -10% 95.27 

-10% 95.28

the above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. in 
practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. when calculating the 
sensitivity of the deined beneit obligation to signiicant actuarial assumptions the same method (projected unit credit 
method) has been applied as when calculating the deined beneit obligation recognised within the Balance Sheet. 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2021 (Contd.)



104

ALfREd HERBERT (iNdiA) LTd.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2021 (Contd.)

Estimate of expected benefit payments (In absolute terms i.e. undiscounted)                                      (rs. in lakhs) 

Particulars

Gratuity

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

for the year ended 
march 31, 2020

1st year 14.71 56.26 

2 to 5 years 0.10  22.99 

6 to 10 years 0.90  11.53 

more than 10 years 6.98  31.78 

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2021
as at  

march 31, 2020

Average number of people employed 9 33

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The accounting classiication of each category of inancial instrument, their carrying amount and fair value are as follows: 
(rs. in lakhs) 

Particulars

As at March 31, 2021 as at march 31, 2020

Carrying 
Amount

Fair Value Carrying 
amount

fair value

Financial Assets

Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost

Cash and cash equivalents  8.23  8.23  567.62  567.62 

other bank balances  129.60  129.60  42.65  42.65 

receivables

(i) trade receivables  19.35  19.35  37.50  37.50 

investment in bonds  549.97  689.60  549.97  675.61 

other financial assets  55.95  55.95  57.68  57.68 

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

investment in mutual funds  2,134.36  2,134.36  2,116.54  2,116.54 

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

investment in other entities (Quoted)  3,528.33  3,528.33  1,763.48  1,763.48 

investment in other entities (unquoted)  837.16  837.16  531.46  531.46 

Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities measured at Amortised Cost

Trade Payables

total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  -    -    35.28  35.28 

total outstanding dues of credtiors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises

 67.11  67.11  275.80  275.80 

borrowings (other than Debt securities)  -    -    90.14  90.14 

lease liabilities  46.77  46.77  57.86  57.86 

other financial liabilities  79.96  79.96  50.69  50.69 

Fair Valuation Techniques

The fair values of the inancial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid 
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.    
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the following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and payables, other inancial assets and liabilities  approximate 
their carrying amount largely due to the short-term nature of these instruments. the management considers that the carrying 
amounts of inancial assets and inancial liabilities recognised at nominal cost/amortised cost in the inancial statements 
approximate their fair values. 

investments traded in active market are determined by reference to the quotes from the stock exchanges as at the reporting 
date. Investment in unquoted equity shares have been valued based on the latest audited inancial statements. Investments in 
mutual funds have been valued based on their respective net asset value as on the reporting date.

Fair value hierarchy

the following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as at 
balance sheet date:                                                                                                                                                   (rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31

Fair value measurements at reporting date using

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets

investment in mutual funds  2,134.36  -    2,134.36  -   

 (2,116.54)  -    (2,116.54)  -   

investment in equity instruments  4,365.49  3,528.33  -    837.16 

 (2,294.93)  (1,763.48)  -    (531.46)

(*) Figures in round brackets ( ) indicate igures as at March 31, 2020.

During the year ended march 31, 2021 and march 31, 2020, there were no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3.

the inputs used in fair valuation measurement are as follows:

fair valuation of financial assets and liabilities is amortised based on the effective interest rate.

financial instruments are valued based on quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets or inputs that are 
directly or indirectly observable in the marketplace. in respect of unquoted equity shares, the inputs used was the audited 
balance sheet for the year then available.

FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS

The Group’s activities are exposed to variety of inancial risks. The key inancial risks includes market risk, credit risk and 
liquidity risk. The Group’s focus is to foresee the unpredictability of inancial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse 
effects on its inancial performance. The Board of Directors reviews and approves policies for managing these risks. The risks 
are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and accordingly inancial risks are identiied, measured and managed in 
accordance with the Group’s policies and risk objectives.

MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk or uncertainty arising from possible market luctuations resulting in variation in the fair value of future 
cash lows of a inancial instrument. The major components of Market risks are currency risk, interest rate risk and other price 
risk. financial instruments affected by market risk includes investments, borrowings, trade receivables and payables.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash lows of an exposure will luctuate because of changes in 
foreign exchange rates.

INTEREST RATE RISK
the company doesn’t have any material exposure in market risk relating to change in interest rate.

OTHER PRICE RISK

The Group is exposed to price risk arising from investments in Equity Shares held by the Group and is classiied in the balance sheet as 
fair value through other Comprehensive income. the Group is also exposed to price risk arising from investments in mutual funds 
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and Bonds held by the Group and is classiied in the balance sheet as fair value through proit or loss and amortised cost respectively.  
To manage its price risk arising from investments, the Group diversiies its portfolio.

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a inancial instrument or customer contract, leading 
to a inancial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities.  The management has a credit policy in place 
and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. The Group periodically assesses the inancial reliability of its 
borrowers, taking into account the inancial condition and current economic trends.

The carrying amount of respective inancial assets recognised in the inancial statements, (net of impairment losses) represents 
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk.

the Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of doubtful 
loans and advances. receivables from its borrowers are reviewed/evaluated periodically by the management and appropriate 
provisions are made to the extent recovery there against has been considered to be remote.

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

Cash and cash equivalents, investments and deposits with banks are neither past due nor impaired. Cash and cash equivalents 
with banks are held with reputed and credit worthy banking institutions.

LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is deined as the risk that the Group will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a reasonable 
price. the Group’s objective is to maintain optimum level of liquidity to meet it’s cash and collateral requirements at all times.

Maturity Analysis of Financial Liabilities 

As at March 31, 2021                                                                                                                                                             (rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Carrying Amount On Demand Less than 6 months 6 to 12 months More than 1 year Total 

trade payables  67.11 67.11  67.11 

lease liabilities  46.77  6.29  5.32  35.16  46.77 

other financial liabilities  79.96  -    79.96  -    -    79.96 

As at March 31, 2020                                                                                                                                                                     (rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Carrying Amount On Demand Less than 6 months 6 to 12 months More than 1 year Total 

trade payables  311.08  -    179.51  131.57  -    311.08 

borrowings  90.14  -    90.14  -    -    90.14 

lease liabilities  57.86  -    6.72  9.49  41.65  57.86 

other financial liabilities  50.69  -    50.69  -    -    50.69 

The Group has inancial assets which will be realised in ordinary course of business. The Group ensures that it has suficient 
cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses.

The Group relies on operating cash lows to meet its need for funds.
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

the primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a healthy capital ratio in order to 
support its business and maximise shareholder value. the Group’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard their ability 
to continue as a going concern so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and beneits for other stake 
holders. The Group is focused on keeping strong total equity base to ensure independence, security, as well as a high inancial 
lexibility for potential future borrowings, if required without where the risk proile of the Group.
since at present there is no borrowings obtained by the group for the year ended march 31, 2021 so Capital Gearing ratio is 
not disclosed for the said year end.      
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The gearing ratio as at March 31 are as follows :                                          (rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

loans and borrowings  -    90.14 

Cash and Cash equivalents  -    567.62 

Net Debt  -    (477.48)

total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the parent  -    7,799.05 

Capital and Net Debt  -    7,321.57 

Gearing ratio (6.52)%

44A Maturity Analysis of Asset and Liabilities

 the table below shows  an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected  to be recovered 
or settled.                                                                                                                                                         (rs. in lakhs)

particulars  As at March 31, 2021  as at march 31, 2020

Within 12 
months

After 12 
months

Total within 12 
months

after 12 
months

total

ASSETS

Financial Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents  8.23  -    8.23  567.62  -    567.62 

other bank balances  -    129.60  129.60  -    42.65  42.65 

trade receivables  19.35  -    19.35  37.50  -    37.50 

investment  2,134.36  4,915.46  7,049.82  2,116.55  2,844.90  4,961.45 

other financial assets  8.53  47.42  55.95  6.28  51.40  57.68 

(a)  2,170.48  5,092.48  7,262.95  2,727.95  2,938.95  5,666.90 

Non Financial Assets 

inventories  103.30  -    103.30  487.35  -    487.35 

Current tax assets (net)  -    47.63  47.63  -    68.32  68.32 

investment property  -    284.26  284.26  -    284.26  284.26 

property, plant and equipment  -    142.66  142.66  -    231.83  231.83 

Capital work in progress  -    2,438.01  2,438.01  -    2,031.18  2,031.18 

Other non inancial assets  -    79.93  79.93  -    112.58  112.58 

(b)  103.30  2,992.49  3,095.79  487.35  2,728.17  3,215.52 

Total Assets (a+b)  2,273.78  8,084.97  10,358.74  3,215.30  5,667.12  8,882.42 

LIABILITIES

Financial Liabilities

lease liabilities  12.96  33.81  46.77  11.02  46.84  57.86 

borrowings  -    -    -    90.14  -    90.14 

trade payable  67.11  -    67.11  311.08  -    311.08 

Other inancial liabilities  19.83  60.13  79.96  5.28  45.41  50.69 

(a)  99.90  93.94  193.84  417.51  92.25  509.76 

Non Financial Liabilities

provisions  1.20  -    1.20  9.13  -    9.13 

Deferred tax liabilities (net)  -    430.73  430.73  -    248.59  248.59 

Other non inancial liabilities  202.43  -    202.43  315.88  -    315.88 

(b)  203.63  430.73  634.36  325.01  248.59  573.60 

Total Liabilities (a+b)  303.53  524.67  828.20  742.52  340.84  1,083.36 
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45. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)
 A) Contingent Liabilities                                                                                                                          (rs. in lakhs) 

sl. 
no.

particulars As at
March 31, 2021

as at
march 31,2020

1 bank Guarantees for advance issued in favour of customers  21.00 

2 bank Guarantee for obtaining waybill from wbCtD  13.40  13.40 

3  Central excise demands not accepted 29.77  29.77 

4  penalties in respect of excise / service tax 29.77  29.77 

5 Penalty u/s 72 of KVAT Act for delay in iling VAT 100 for the month of January 
2007, against which the interim  order was passed by the hon’ble high Court 
of Karnataka  on april 13, 2007 staying the order of penalty until further   
consideration of the writ petition. 0.77  0.77 

 B) Commitments:                                                                                                                                        (rs. in lakhs)

Sl. 
No.

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

a
estimated amount of contract (net of advance) remaining to be executed on 
capital account 126.92  347.97 

b uncalled liability on shares partly paid 81.70  -   

46. Disclosures as required by Indian Accounting Standard(Ind AS) 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 
Assets

 A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be conirmed only by the 
occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity. During 
the normal course of business, unresolved claims remains outstanding. The inlow of economic beneits, in respect of 
such claims cannot be measured due to uncertainties that surround the related events and circumstances.   
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47. Segment Reporting

a) the holding Company and one of its subsidiary Company, herbert holdings limited operate mainly in one business 
segment viz. non-banking inancial activities and therefore the segment reporting as per Indian Accounting Standard 108 
“segment reporting” is not applicable.

b) in respect of one subsidiary Company, alfred herbert limited, operation predominantly relate to manufacturing and 
trading of industrial machineries & spares (manufacturing operations). accordingly, manufacturing operations, sales & 
marketing operations, realty and business services comprise the primary basis of segment. Others include proit on sale 
of long term investments and income there against. the only geographical segment is india.

(rs. in lakhs) 

Particulars

 Year ended 

 March 31, 2021  march 31, 2020 

 (Audited)  (audited) 

Revenue from Operations

(i) manufacturing operations  465.37  930.46 

(ii) realty, investments & other non-banking financial activities  252.33  300.68 

(I) Gross Revenue from Operations  717.70  1,231.14 

(II) Less : Inter Segment Revenue  -    -   

(III) Revenue from Operations as per Statement of Profit & Loss  717.70  1,231.14 

Segment Result {Profit(+)/Loss(-)} before Tax & Finance Cost

(i) manufacturing operations  (169.67)  (84.89)

(ii) realty, investments & other non-banking financial activities  181.57  222.74 

(IV) Total  11.90  137.85 

(V) Less : Finance Cost  17.50  16.83 

(VI) Profit before Tax (IV - V)  (5.60)  121.02 

(VII) Tax Expense

(i) Current tax  12.25  -   

(ii) Deferred tax  7.41  29.42 

(iii) income tax for earlier years  (3.12)  0.05 

(VIII) Profit/(Loss) for the period (VI - VII)  (22.14)  91.56 

(IX) Segment Assets

(i) manufacturing operations  182.71  698.18 

(ii) realty, investments & other non-banking financial activities  10,128.40  8,115.91 

Total  10,311.11  8,814.09 

add : un-allocable assets  47.63  68.32 

(X) Total Assets  10,358.74  8,882.41 

(XI) Segment Liabilities

(i) manufacturing operations  275.17  715.38 

(ii) realty, investments & other non-banking financial activities  122.30  119.39 

Total  397.47  834.77 

add : un-allocable liabilities  430.73  248.59 

(XII) Total Liabilities  828.20  1,083.36 

(XIII) Depreciation

(i) manufacturing operations  2.22  8.92 

(ii) realty, investments & other non-banking financial activities  17.63  16.38 

Total  19.85  25.30 

(XIV) Capital Expenditure including CWIP

(i) manufacturing operations  -    -   

(ii) realty, investments & other non-banking financial activities  2,438.01  2,031.18 

Total  2,438.01  2,031.18 
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48. Additional information as required by Paragraph 2 of General Instructions for Preparation of Consolidated 
Financial Statements to Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 as on March 31, 2021:

(rs. in lakhs) 

Particulars

 net assets
i.e., total assets minus 

total liabilities 

share in
proit or loss

share in
other Comprehensive income

share in
total Comprehensive income

as a % of 
consolidated 

net assets

 amount as a % of 
consolidated 
proit or loss

 amount as a % of con-
solidated other 
Comprehensive 

income

 amount as a % of con-
solidated total 
Comprehensive 

income

 amount 

Parent

alfred herbert (india) limited 91.93% 8,761.49 (156.2)%  (34.58) 84.37%  1,502.39 83.47%  1,467.80 

Subsidiaries

Indian

alfred herbert limited (6.63)%  (631.82) (775.19)%  (171.63)  -   (9.76)%  (171.63)

herbert holdings limited 9.75%  928.98 55.06%  12.19 15.63%  278.24 16.52%  290.43 

Elimination 4.95%  471.89 776.36%  171.89 0.00%  -   (9.77)%  171.87 

49. the outbreak of CoviD - 19 and resultant lockdowns declared by Central and/or state Governments of india have impacted 
business and earnings prospects in case of alfred herbert limited (ahl), the wholly owned subsidiary involved in the manufacturing 
of machinery for the rubber and tyre industries. operations have been severely affected due to loss of production coupled with 
insuficient orders making it unviable to operate the plant eficiently with the required economies of scale on a sustainable basis. 
Production at the said subsidiary remained suspended signiicantly during the year and AHL continued to incur signiicant losses. 
as a matter of prudence, the parent company’s investment in ahl has therefore been fully provided for on account of potential 
impairment in the value of such investment. The Parent company has cumulatively infused Rs 541.89 lakhs to provide inancial 
support by way of loan. this includes repayment of dues of the bank towards working capital facilities provided to the said 
subsidiary. In the given situation and absence of required volumes etc. there is signiicant uncertainty vis-a-vis sustained viability 
of the said subsidiary on an independent basis.

 Pending inal decision and review of the alternatives to continuing operations including through third party sources, accounts 
of ahl have continued to be prepared on a going concern basis till the year end.

 barring the above, investments and other related operations are not affected materially. based on indicators available from 
internal and external sources of current and future economic conditions, the parent company expects to recover the carrying 
amount of inancial and non-inancial assets barring any unforeseen circumstances. The Parent company will continue to 
monitor any material changes to the future economic conditions and effective steps will be taken on crystallisation thereof.

50. In respect of the year ended March 31, 2021, the Board of Directors of the Holding Company has proposed a inal dividend of 
27.50% (rs. 2.75) per share to be paid on fully paid equity shares. the said dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at 
the Annual General Meeting and has not been included as a liability in these inancial statements. The proposed equity dividend 
is payable to all holders of fully paid equity shares.

51. Previous year’s igures have been re-grouped/re-arranged wherever necessary to conform to current year’s classiication.
52. these Consolidated financial statements have been approved by the board of Directors of the holding Company on June 30, 

2021 for issue to the shareholders for their adoption.

as per our report of even date
for alps & Co. For and on behalf of the Board 
Chartered accountants    
firm registration no. : 313132e v. matta r. C. tapuriah 
r s tulsyan Chief Executive Officer Director
Partner pan : aDmpm4399r Din-00395997
membership no. : 051793
 shobhana sethi s. s. Jain
place : Kolkata Company Secretary & Chief Financial Officer Director
Dated: 30th June, 2021  pan : Dlbps7691G Din-00013732
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(Pursuant to irst proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of

subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: subsidiaries

(information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in rs. lakhs)

Sl. No. Particulars Details

1. name of the subsidiary alfred herbert limited

herbert holdings limited

2. reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, 

if different from the holding company’s 

reporting period

n.a.  

3. reporting currency and exchange rate as on the 

last date of the relevant financial year in the 

case of foreign subsidiaries

n.a.

4. share capital alfred herbert limited – rs.90.00

herbert holdings limited – rs.22.00

5. reserves &surplus alfred herbert limited – (rs.721.82)

herbert holdings limited – rs.906.98

6. total assets alfred herbert limited – rs.188.44

herbert holdings limited – rs.1123.02

7. total liabilities alfred herbert limited – rs.820.26

herbert holdings limited – rs.194.04

8. investments alfred herbert limited – nil

herbert holdings limited – rs.1014.94

9. turnover alfred herbert limited – rs.516.60

herbert holdings limited – rs.14.48

10. Proit before Taxation alfred herbert limited – (rs.180.69)

herbert holdings limited – rs.12.80

11. provision for taxation alfred herbert limited – rs.(9.06)

herbert holdings limited – rs.0.60

12. Proit after Taxation alfred herbert limited – (rs.171.63)

herbert holdings limited – rs.12.20

13. proposed Dividend nil in the case of both the Companies

14. % of shareholding 100% in the case of both the Companies

for alps & Co. For and on behalf of the Board 
Chartered accountants    
firm registration no. : 313132e v. matta r. C. tapuriah 
r s tulsyan Chief Executive Officer Director
Partner pan : aDmpm4399r Din-00395997
membership no. : 051793
 shobhana sethi s. s. Jain
place : Kolkata Company Secretary & Chief Financial Officer Director
Dated: 30th June, 2021  pan : Dlbps7691G Din-00013732
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